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Hannah Bernard
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ITEM NO. 37: CHANGE IN ZONING FOR MAKENA RESORT (C.C. No. 00-242, C.R. No. 01-240,
and C.C. No. 02-46)

CHAIR MOLINA:
The Land Use Committee meeting for Wednesday,
. . .(gavel). . .
November 19, 2008 is now in session. For the record we have in attendance Committee
Members Mateo, Baisa, Johnson, Medeiros, Victorino, and Committee Chair Molina. If you
could please turn off the cell phones to.. .
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: . . .as not to disrupt our proceedings today, I'd appreciate it. And temporarily
excused are Committee Members Anderson, Hokama, and Pontanilla who will be joining us
shortly. From the Committee Staff we have our Legislative Analyst Carla Nakata, Committee
Secretary Tammy Frias. From the Corporation Counsel's Office we have James Giroux, and
from the Planning Department we have Director Jeff Hunt and Senior Planner Ann Cua. Good
morning, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right, good. I'm glad to hear your exuberance and enthusiasm. We have a very,
very busy day ahead of us. We have one big item to consider today, that is Land Use Item 37, the
Change in Zoning for the Makena Resort. Before we proceed, Members, the Chair would like to
make a few opening comments. Earlier this year I had considered having a meeting in
November on this matter but did not make a final commitment. As some of you may recall at the
November 7 th Council meeting, Councilmember Victorino proposed to discharge this item from
the Land Use Committee to the full Council. After concerns were heard from other Members, it
was suggested to me by the Council Chair to consider having a Committee meeting as an option
for the Members to consider. Your Land Use Chair made that offer to all the Members, and the
motion to discharge the matter by Mr. Victorino was still on the floor at the time and could have
been pursued; however, the motion was withdrawn. And it was then agreed upon to have this
meeting by all Members with no objections. And I say this, Members, because one of our local
media outlets gave many the impression that this meeting here today was solely my decision.
No, it was not. It was our decision. So I'd ask that our local media provide our community all
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the facts before making one-sided opinions. So now that I've got that off my chest, Members, let
us proceed.
We're going to start first--I realize there's a lot of testifiers here today. At this point we have
92 people signed up. But just so all of you can have a full understanding of what is being
presented by the applicant, we're going to start first with the applicant doing for us a brief
PowerPoint presentation which may answer some of your questions. And after that we'll have
the Planning Department make a few brief comments, and then we will go into public testimony
from herein. Okay? So, Members, we're going to take a brief recess to set up the Chambers for
a PowerPoint presentation from the applicant. This meeting in recess, subject to the call of the
Chair. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS: 9:05 a.m.
RECONVENE: 9:07 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting for Wednesday, November 19 th is now
back in session. We have from the firm of Munekiyo & Hiraga, Gwen Hiraga to do a
presentation on Land Use Item 37. Before we do that, the Chair would like to recognize the
presence of Committee Member Joe Pontanilla, as well as Committee Member Michelle
Anderson. Proceed.
Note: Computer generated presentation.

MS. OHASHI HIRAGA: Good morning, Chair Molina and Members of the Land Use Committee. My
name is Gwen Hiraga from Munekiyo & Hiraga, and assisting me is Rowena Dagdag also from
my firm. I will be presenting a very brief PowerPoint presentation to you this morning. Okay.
First of all, this is our, the application before you is for Makena Resort, and Makena Resort is
proposing to change the zoning for various parcels of land totaling 755.689 acres in order to
implement the Kihei-Makena Community Plan and the Makena Resort Master Plan. Of this
acreage approximately 477 acres have been developed, the majority of which are the two golf
courses, the Makena North Course and the Makena South Course. Other developed lands
include the Maui Prince Hotel, Makena Prince. . .Makena Tennis Club which has six courts,
Makena Golf Clubhouse, public comfort stations, public parking, picnic areas at Makena
Landing and across Keawalai Church and at both sides of the pedestrian walkway fronting the
Maui Prince Hotel. Of the remaining 278.589 acres, 125 acres are vacant lands where existing
zoning is not proposed to be changed, and 153 acres are vacant lands for which the zoning is
proposed to be changed.
As I mentioned, the request before you is a Change in Zoning application to implement the
Kihei-Makena Community Plan and Makena Resort's Master Plan. This application was
submitted to the Department of Planning back in November of 1999. The location is the Makena
Resort area consisting of various TMKs, for a total land area of 755.698 acres, excuse me. With
regard to the land use designations, it's primarily Urban; however, approximately 95 acres of the
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existing Makena North Golf Course is still within the State Agricultural District. The
Kihei-Makena Community Plan designates these areas into several designations: Park, Park
Golf Course, Single-Family, Multi-Family, Business/Commercial, and Hotel. Existing zoning on
the property consists of various zoning districts: Agriculture; Park; Golf Course and Open
Space; Open Zone; A-1 and A-2 Apartment; R-1, R-2, and R-3 Residential; B-R Business Resort;
H-M Hotel; and SW for the designation of the Makena Sewage Treatment Plant.
By way of information and history, the Maui Planning Commission--as I mentioned the
application was filed in November of 1999, and the Maui Planning Commission held a public
workshop on July 10, 2000. That was followed by a public hearing by the Maui Planning
Commission held on July 25, 2000. During the Planning Commission's hearing, written
testimony, there were no letters in opposition or support. There were a couple of oral testimony,
one person in support, two persons noted concerns, but there were no people testifying in
opposition. Okay. The Maui Planning Commission did recommend approval of the Change in
Zoning application with ten conditions.
I want to, the next couple of slides are maps. This first one is the Kihei-Makena Community
Plan map, and as I mentioned a few, a couple of minutes ago, the Kihei-Makena Community
Plan has Park designation, all this. . .what you see as PK and PK-4--I'm sorry, PK Golf Course is
golf course. Then you have Single-Family which is, should be yellow but I know it looks kind of
greenish, and Multi-Family, which is the orange. Business/Commercial is red, and Hotel are the
brown parcels. So this is the existing Kihei-Makena Community Plan map that was adopted by
the County Council in 1998. This is like a composite zoning map. I have for the Council
Members 11x17 copies of the same map which the colors are more vibrant. The first designation
is in blue--I'm sorry, yeah--developed areas where no Change in Zoning is proposed. Second are
the pinks here, here, here, vacant areas where no zoning, Change in Zoning is proposed. And
then we have green, which is developed areas. I'm sorry, I cannot see the key. Let me start all
over. I can't see the colors very well on this screen, I'm sorry. Yeah. Okay. The first
designation is the green and this represents developed areas where no zoning change is proposed,
and that consists of approximately 27.24 acres. The next is the yellow which are vacant areas
where no zoning is proposed, and that consists of 125.146 acres. The third is blue, this is the
developed areas where the Change in Zoning is proposed and this is approximately 450.448
acres. The fourth category is pink
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(Inaudible). . .
MS. OHASHI HIRAGA: It's the same.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(Inaudible). . .
MS. OHASHI HIRAGA: Yeah. Okay. The vacant areas where Change in Zoning is proposed, and
that's approximately 152.855 acres. Now on this map you see certain cross, certain hatched
areas, and this represents zoning that has been recognized by a recent court decision. And then
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you have a crosshatched area, there's four, three areas, I'm sorry, four areas, and this represents
the Department of Planning's zoning interpretation based on that court case.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Inaudible). . . can't follow.. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me. We need to proceed with the PowerPoint. Proceed, Ms. Hiraga.
MS. OHASHI HIRAGA: Okay. This next map represents again another version of the existing zoning,
and it's a clearer version of what I just showed you where the zoning is designated as such. And
for informational purposes we had indicated the special management area line that goes here.
County Council Review. The Department of Planning transmitted the Change in Zoning to the
Council in August of 2000, and the Council received it at its meeting of September 15, 2000.
The County Council and its committees held numerous meetings on the Change in Zoning
application in 2001, 2002, 2003, and 2004. The latest meeting was held in April of 2004 by the
former Planning and Land Use Committee which was chaired at that time by thenCouncilmember Wayne Nishiki, and the Committee did recommend approval of the Change in
Zoning application with 41 conditions. At the current time, the application is before this
Committee and that's why we're here today. In 2007, Makena Resort Corp. was sold to Honua
LLC and Keaka LLC, and this occurred in May of 2007. Again the application consists, the
application summary is, consists of developed areas where no zoning change is proposed, and
that's 27.24 acres; vacant areas where no Change in Zoning is proposed, 125.146 acres;
developed areas where Change in Zoning is proposed, 450.448 acres. And I may note that the
bulk of this acreage is within the existing, is for the existing golf courses. The last category are
vacant areas where Change in Zoning is proposed, and that's approximately 152.855 acres.
The application will bring the zoning in conformance with the Kihei-Makena Community Plan
adopted in 1998. The application includes parcels that have, that have already developed or that
are already developed with golf courses and parks. There are no beachfront properties being
rezoned. The current plan calls for approximately 1,000 units, 500 multi-family, 500
single-family. No new hotel is being proposed. And the applicant is agreeing to the 41
conditions recommended by the former Planning and Land Use Committee in April of 2004.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Hiraga. Members, we're going to take a short recess to
bring the screen back up, and then we'll continue to proceed with Land Use Item 37. Meeting in
recess, subject to the call of the Chair. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 9:18 a.m.
RECONVENE: 9:20 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting for Wednesday, November 19, 2008 is
now back in session. I'd like to thank the applicant for that presentation. Now I'd like to ask the
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Planning Department to give a few brief remarks, and after you are done we're going to go ahead
and start with public testimony.
MS. CUA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee. Again to reiterate, the applicant is
requesting a Change in Zoning for a very, various parcels of lands in the Makena Resort area in
order to implement the Kihei-Makena Community Plan. A very important thing to note for this
Committee is that there is no Community Plan Amendment application before you. The parcels
are all community planned and the applicant is requesting the Change in Zoning to bring the
zoning of the properties into conformance with the approved Community Plan which, as Gwen
mentioned, was approved in 1998. Couple of things I do want to confirm that has changed since
this Committee completed its work in 2004, and, as Gwen mentioned, it was the court case, the
Hanohano case that did have an affect on this property. I want to discuss it very briefly. If you
look at the proposed zoning map that was in the PowerPoint and that the Members have an
11x17 copy of, you know, the two things that I want to point out that are changes from the maps
that we've been dealing with since 2000 when the Planning Department transmitted the
application up to the Council. The red hatched area are, are four properties basically or four
different project areas, and that was directly part of the settlement agreement. And what the
settlement agreement said for, for those four parcels is that the County needed to recognize the
existing zoning map. But what that means for this application is that although we recognize
what was on the zoning map, the applicant still needs to change the zoning of those parcels.
Because, for example, on the three red hatched areas at the top of your map the, whereas it was
Interim, the County was saying it was Interim before and the court decision and settlement
agreement says it's R-3 Residential, the applicant has requested from the beginning A-2
Apartment zoning for those properties. So I think that's an important note, even though we are
recognizing the existing zoning map and what the project is being changed from has changed,
what they're changing it to has not changed. Similarly the black crosshatched areas, you can see
this, this parcel here which is the clearest, but there's some other small pieces, not many, I think
there's maybe about four. The Planning Department, after the Hanohano case, basically is
recognizing the existing zoning maps, not only for Makena, for the Kihei area, Upcountry area.
So parcels that may have been zoned Interim are now zoned what is on the, on the map. And
again for those parcels with regard to this application, the important thing to note is that even
though the zoning may not be Interim, it's something else like your R-3 or A-1 Apartment, the
applicant still needs a Change in Zoning to be able to develop those parcels. So the Change in
Zoning application before you is still the same. It's just for some of the parcels what the zoning
was has changed. So hopefully that's clear, and that should not be a big issue, but it is, it is a
change.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. CUA: That concludes my comments, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you, Ms. Cua. Okay. Members, I'll open the floor just for a
couple of brief clarification questions, because out of respect for the public who've come here to
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testify and there may be some parking issues as well. So we need to be concerned about that.
Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman. Ann, on the big zoning map that we've got
that shows the red hatched areas, it shows that the light pink areas, vacant areas where a Change
in Zoning is proposed is 152.855 acres. So these red hatched areas are included in that?
MS. CUA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And then what about the Interim to PK-4, the black hatched
areas? Do we have--well, they're just doing that to PK-4, so there would be no real change, it's
just on the books, I mean change in use.
MS. CUA: Right. Right. The, the blue area. . .yeah, is blue. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I mean I'm just talking about -MS. CUA: It's the entire golf-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the red hatched area.
MS. CUA: Right. But that was part of the blue area before.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So ...
MS. CUA: And so that's part of the golf course.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just to get a, yeah, the change is just to get it right on the books?
MS. CUA: Correct. And then-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's no change in use?
MS. CUA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And then can you please tell us how many units the pink
areas would support? Is it just the pink areas that are supporting the thousand units? In other
words the thousand units that he's talking about would be inclusive of all the yellow areas and all
the pink areas?
MS. CUA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
- 10 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. Just so I understand we're clear what's before us
today, I'm going to just kind of do a rewind to when we last heard this issue, and it may require a
little bit of clarification from Corporation Counsel. Because we took a vote in Committee at that
point in time and my assumption is that, you know, why we're here now is because there were
changes to the unilateral agreement made by the applicant, I guess what was originally passed
out of Committee, and we're back here now and what are we actually considering? Because if
we already took a vote on it and we're just, you know, having a public hearing at this point, I
want to make crystal clear what it is that we're considering. And then do we have to reconsider?
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel, are you able to respond?
MR. GIROUX: Thank you, Chair. It, Jo Anne, usually Corp. Counsel leaves all the issues of Robert's
Rules of Order to the Chair. But I can give you my, my understanding is, is that because you did
already vote and now it's back in front of this body, in order to make any changes...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, folks, hang on. Hang on. Let the man speak, please. And if I could ask
those of you out in the hall to please tone down so we can all hear what's being said. Proceed,
Mr. Giroux.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Put it close to your mouth.
MR. GIROUX: Thank you. Can you hear me now?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Inaudible).. .
MR. GIROUX: Okay. Member Johnson, I guess what I can do is just to clarify that in, I guess, normal
procedure what would happen is that because you did already vote, whatever is in front of you in
order to proceed with any changes you must start with a motion to reconsider or a motion to
amend whatever was previously voted on.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and, Mr. Chair, from my recollection and just from a
procedural perspective, I believe in order to reconsider you had to be on the prevailing side. So
because the membership has changed on the configuration of the Council, I just, you know, I
realize it's a technical question, but I think the public needs to understand and we need to
understand what our options are. So, you know, I don't know, you know, if--and, and I'll pose
one final question. If the unilateral agreement that was executed did not have any changes and
there were, there was nothing that was different from what we passed out of Committee, is there
a need to take a vote then? And what would be, you know, if, other than the clarifications and
technical flaws is there, is there some kind of need to revisit this if everything that we agreed to
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in Committee was also agreed to as part of the unilateral agreement, in other words that there
were no changes in the unilateral agreement?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Giroux?
MR. GIROUX: Thank you, Chair. I, I was given a chance to review the unilateral agreement, and I, and
I think that the premise that it's the same is flawed. The, what I reviewed did not mirror your
conditions, and I think that needs to be addressed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and that, Mr. Chair, would be a key question and at
which point you want to ask it or you want to clarify.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because I think we need as a body and plus the testifiers need to
understand procedurally what we're considering and what is actually before us. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Well, thank you, Member Johnson. I think you bring up some good points
here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: What, what we'll do, we do have some time to consider to confer with Staff as to
procedurally how, you know, we're going to deal with this matter today. Okay. Again couple
more brief questions, Member Pontanilla followed by Member Anderson, so we can give the
public a chance to testify. Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman From 2004 to today, you know, we've had some
ordinance in regards to the Workforce Housing Policy, and, you know, looking at the unilateral
agreement that was signed back in 2000, that we came out with in 2004 and agreed to, now going
forward when the Workforce Housing Policy was approved, that projects that are approved going
forward would now need to comply with the Workforce Housing Policy. So, Chairman, you
know, that's one, one of the things that I see that need to be changed in the unilateral agreement.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, I beg to differ with what was just mentioned
regarding the status of this application. First of all, Robert's Rules of Order, I have looked into
this and have been given advice by our legal counsel in Council Services. And first of all, a
motion to reconsider according to Robert's Rules has to be done on the same day the vote was
taken. It, you know, you can't move to reconsider something that's four years old. Second of all,
because the votes in this Committee were done in a previous term, in a very previous term of
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which many of these Members were not Members at that time, in fact I think we only have three
Members that were, maybe four Members that were on this body at that time. But because it was
done at a previous term, the votes are null and void. You can't carryover votes from Members
that are no longer Council Members to a Land Use Committee decision that goes to the full
Council. So everything has to be voted on again by this body as the current Land Use
Committee, and that was advice given to me by our legal counsel who specializes in land use in
Council Services. So if you would like to further clarify that, I think it would be important.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for those comments. I will take that under consideration, and I'm
sure we'll have a lot of time in-between to work on that matter. For right now, Members, we're
going to consider public testimony. And before we do, ladies and gentlemen, couple of ground
rules I'd like to set. Simply put, please turn off all cell phones and pagers to, so as not to disrupt
our proceedings. And I do realize this is a very sensitive matter for all and I would ask that you
maintain respect and decorum for the Council Chambers, and please respect all testifiers. Please
refrain as much as possible from cheering or jeering comments from testifiers. Okay? Let's be
respectful of one another, and if rules are not followed, you will be asked to leave the Chambers
voluntarily, and if that is not adhered to, then you will be escorted out by our law enforcement
officials. So I'm hoping we don't have to get to that point. But I'm confident that all of you will
work with the Chair and work with the Committee to provide us the assistance we need so we
can get through this for today.
So with that being said, let us go ahead and start with public testimony. At this point we have
roughly over 100 people signed up. First to testify, Jacob Mau followed by Chandrika
McLaughlin. Jacob Mau? Jacob Mau going--oh, there he is, okay. Mr. Mau?
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. .

MR. MAU: Aloha.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. MAU: Thank you for having this public meeting, this hearing. In behalf of me, my ohana, and a
lot of the kupuna in this room and outside, I'd like to share a little bit about my background just
to let you know where I come from. The area that we're talking about today is the Makena area.
My ohana, I come from the line of Liloa, Piena. My family came here either on the first or the
second canoe around 400 A.D. So when you talk about the Makena area, you're talking about
Honua'ula. My great, great grandparents were born either in Honua'ula or Kahoolawe. And the
reason why I wanted to share a little bit about my mana'o, when we came here 400 A.D. all the
land mass from Keoneoio, Kahikinui, Makena, Pu'u Olai, Kihei, and all the shoreline people
were all in one ohana, one big family. Okay? I get my genealogy here and the documents to say
that I'm with the Kamehameha line. Okay? Kamehameha was born way down here. My family
born up here, from Liloa. King Kamehameha I, II, and III were born here. I come all the way
past the line of Alapai-Nui-A-Mahi.
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I'm concerned, the area, what you folks doing in Makena, and I just want to voice my opinion
and my mana'o because of the land which has changed landowners, landowners. And I'm in the
process of finding out some of the land that belonged to my kupuna or my ohana is now owned
by Ulupalakua Ranch and other big name developers. How did they get the land when I get the
genealogy, when I get the royal patent of those lands? So just for public testimony I wanted to
let you guys know if anybody belong to the names that I've said, I like talk story . . .(change
tape, start 1B). . . I think it's vitally important that we share this mana'o and our information
with everybody here, the concerned. More little bit note, when I went to Lahainaluna in 1953,
we had only one Caucasian who was related to the Principal Kineson(?) of Lahainaluna.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. MAU: The rest was all kanaka. And he had all the privileges that we didn't have. I worked in the
dairy, get up four o'clock in the morning, milk cow. We had other guys working with the cattle
and the pigs and everything else, and that was really an experience for me. But my growing up
days I want to talk about is in Kaupo, Naua(?), all the makai land from Mokulau to Kipahulu.
But anyway, if anybody get any question I would appreciate if anybody wants some kokua and
information, let me know. That's all I have to say.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mahalo, Mr. Mau. Before I open the floor up to questions, my apologies to
everyone. I should have established the time parameters. You will have three minutes to testify
with one minute to conclude. And, Mr. Mau, thank you for finishing within those parameters.
Member Anderson, question for Mr. Mau?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. Thank you, Chair. I just want to clarify, Mr. Mau, that you're
saying then that there are royal patents attached to these lands in question that you are a
descendent of those who the patents were issued to?
MR. MAU: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you know how many there are and how many acres there are?
MR. MAU: I have no idea. In fact I've been working with the land agent, with the Department of Land
and Natural Resources here on Maui. They don't have that information. I got to go to Bureau of
Conveyances in Oahu.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well actually, actually, Mr. Mau, in the Change in Zoning
application there is a section that gives the land ownership documentation and the patents are
listed in this, throughout this documentation. So if you want a copy of this, later I'll give it to
you.
MR. MAU: Please.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MR. MAU: Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, any other questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Mr. Mau.
MR. MAU: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, we have Chandrika McLaughlin followed by Angie Hoffman.
MS. McLAUGHLIN: My name is Chandrika McLaughlin. Chair, Members of the Council, thank you
for this opportunity. I read your ideas for the near future in The Maui News and they were
excellent plans. Councilman Pontanilla, you talked about how the Council has budgeted for
capital improvement projects to support our infrastructure, including highways, water, parks,
landfills, and facilities for public safety. You stated that the County is in a good position to make
these investments. You said, "We need to consider expediting the much needed repair and
maintenance of our infrastructure," adding, "The County is in a good position to make these
investments because of the County's excellent bond rating". You added that, "The decline in the
construction industry will make for more competitive bids resulting in lower costs to improve
our infrastructure." I agree with you, this is where the need is and the needed jobs are, not in a
speculative development by the same company who stopped the Maluaka by the Maui Prince,
leaving an unsightly sea of dirt to silt one of our most precious reefs.
Councilwoman Baisa, you said, "Now is not the time to reduce support for our visitor industry,
economic development efforts, and alternative energy programs." You suggested efficiencies
and minor property tax and rate and fee revisions would provide more revenue. Councilman
Medeiros and Councilwoman Johnson, you both stressed energy self-sufficiency. Here you
would have the support of President Obama whose plans for alternative energy sources are slated
to produce 2 million jobs. None of you said we need to sacrifice Makena by building four-story
high-rise condos and commercializing the area. In fact, Councilman Molina said, "The single
most important issue is the completion of the General Plan and the updating of our community
plans." To approve the rezoning of Makena now would subvert this process.
I know that six of you have received donations totaling at least $26,650 from Dowling Company
and the major construction unions for your reelection campaigns. Dowling Company has also
conducted a massive public relations campaign for a number of years, even giving donations to
non-profits, then obtaining letters to the Council in return, all in support of Makena development.
It may be a challenge and I understand to make the ethical decision in the face of this kind of
pressure. I urge you to do so as a public trust of your office requires it. And here, this is 32
pages of needed Capital Improvement Projects for Maui, this is what's really needed. This is
what will give you all jobs. You know, I know many of you are on salary to be here and, and you
feel like you need to be here to keep your job. But this, this is where your jobs are, and this is
where jobs are that you can feel proud of. Thank you very much.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. McLaughlin. Okay, folks. . . . (gavel). . . Committee Members,
questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you, Ms. McLaughlin. Next to testify, we have
Angie Hoffman followed by Kehau Rand.
MS. HOFFMAN: Good morning, Council Members. Just a few points I'd like to make. Number one,
there really needs to be a night hearing in Kihei. It's very, very hard for working people to come
here. You know, they're just taking the day off work and not getting any compensation, and, you
know, just a lot of people my age wanted to be here today and couldn't. A lot of people came
this morning and had to leave 'cause they have to work, and so there just really needs to be a
night hearing in Kihei. I know a lot of high school students that wanted to be here. Some of
them may come in the afternoon. But, you know, it's just real hard, this is a hard time of day to
hear something that's really important that affects everyone in Kihei. And then just to speak
about the project, you know, this signing off on the 41 conditions that were agreed on four years
ago, you know, I don't think should be allowed. I think it needs to go back to the beginning, and
we need to look at all these again. A lot of these conditions were weak, need to be revisited. A
lot has changed since 2004. Water, our sustainable yield is different. We don't have what we
thought we had back then, so we need to look at all of these things. Third point I'd like to make
is, you know, the General Plan Advisory Committee is still meeting, still trying to come up with
a solid plan. They've been working on for three years on the Maui Island Plan for 2030, and,
you know, I think it's real important that you look at what they come up with first before
deciding on anything like this. They're spending hours, these volunteers, looking at what would
be right and prudent for Maui now, for Maui in 2030. And, you know, things are different, very
different on Maui now than 40 years ago when this project was first talked about, when this
project was first put on the Community Plan. I mean a lot of, you know--you guys know better
than me. You've been here longer, you know, you're older than me. I just had my 29 years here
in Kihei and seen a lot of crazy stuff go down and, but you guys have seen more. And so you
know it's much different, Maui is much different than, than 40 years ago, and this was talked
about. On that point, we know so much more about Makena and the Makena area now than we
did back then. Maui knows so much more now than we did back then. We know much more
about the archeological history than we did back then. We know much more about the biological
diversity down there, all the amazing species that call that place home. A lot of them are
endangered because of development and human impacts. I used to work in the natural area
reserve, Ahihi-Kinau Natural Area Reserve, and one of the things I was so proud to tell people -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. HOFFMAN: --I had a little table and the tourists would come up and talk to me. I was so proud to
tell them, this is one of the cleanest reefs on Maui right here, you're going to see so much
beautiful stuff right here. And the reason, there's lava across the street, no one can build right
there. And that's, that's the, you know, that's the plain fact, you know. It's like we need to
protect these areas and, you know, we've seen this happen over and over where just building way
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too close to the coastline, you know, surrounding the coastline, and it's just been a proven fact
we have like point source pollution where the reefs are dying because of, you know, the
development. And so we just need to think about all these things. That reef in Ahihi actually
grew back, this is one of the few reefs that grows back. It takes years and years, decades and
decades for reefs to grow back, and the reason is because of the protection, the natural protection
from the lava and nobody has built out there yet. So -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. HOFFMAN: --thank you for listening.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Hoffman. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, and forgive me if I mispronounce your first name, it looks like a "J"
Jellen [sic] McCarthy or Ellen [sic] McCarthy? I apologize.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. And followed by Corey Leong. Oh! Excuse me, excuse me.
I'm sorry. We have Kehau Rand and then Mr. McCarthy. My apologies. I'm a little ahead of
myself.
MS. RAND: Thank you, Mr. Councilman
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead, Ms. Rand.
MS. RAND: Good morning, Mr. Councilman, Committee. My name is Kehaulani Rand and I reside in
Kihei. I'm here to testify against the change in rezoning for Makena. I realize that the
landowner has the right to do what's best for his land, but the question I have for all parties
involved as well as the Council Members, is development really the answer to our economy? I
understand that in the short term it will create jobs, taxes, and revenues, but in the long run we
take away the beauty of why people visit Maui and the very reason we all live here. Collectively
as people of this aina we should all be thinking about when and where this type of development
ends. I believe this project will destroy one of the last beautiful areas of South Maui, and it will
hurt future generations as it devastates more of our beaches, reefs, Hawaiian culture sites, native
dry land forests, and not to forget the water issues we have. This isn't about who owns what, it's
about doing what's right. I ask that as you review this matter you really search deep within your
na' au for the answers to do what is pono, what is right with respect to our past, our present, and
our future generations. Mahalo.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Okay. Mr. McCarthy followed by Corey Leong.
MR. McCARTHY: Good morning. Council Chair Molina, Council Members, my name is Declan
McCarthy. I work at the Maui Prince Hotel and I'm in favor of the Change in Zoning at Makena.
I, like many employees at the Maui Prince Hotel, are concerned for our future. Maui has been
heavily impacted by the recent downturn in the economy, and many of us have friends, our
family members who are without jobs or on reduced work hours. The truly worrying part is the
uncertainty regarding how long it will take for visitor arrivals to start improving. It may take a
long time before hotel occupancies return to the strong numbers that we have experienced over
the last few years. In this climate of uncertainty, we must work even harder to attract visitors to
our island. This demands much patience, particularly much patience from our ownership. As
employees of the Maui Prince Hotel, we are lucky to have owners who are so concerned about
our future, owners who are committed to the community, and owners who are committed to
doing things the right way. Right now there's a lack in confidence surrounding our economy.
Visitors are not confident with committing their well-earned dollars to a vacation on Maui.
Employees are not confident about the security of their jobs. We need to instill confidence in
those vest or investors who are willing to lead Maui out of these challenging times by investing
in Maui's future. By approving the Changes in Zoning that we are being, we are being
requesting we are sending a clear message of confidence in the future of Makena. For the past
seven years, I've attended numerous hearings on the proposed Changes in Zoning for Makena
Resort. I have heard many testimonies and much time is being spent deliberating these issues.
Much time is being spent drafting conditions to address the concerns of the community, and
yeah, we are still waiting for a decision. The time is right for strong leadership on the part of our
elected representatives. The time is right for a decision. Our future is in your hands. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. McCarthy. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, Corey Leong followed by
Donald Poepoe, Sr.
MR. LEONG: Aloha.
CHAIR MOLINA: Aloha. Excuse me, Corey, can you bring the mic closer? Okay. Thank you.
MR. LEONG: Aloha. I'm from Makawao, been born and raised. I'm a native Hawaiian and I'm
against the development of Makena, Wailea 670. Currently Iao Aquifer is being drained of
18 million gallons of water each day. The level of water in the Iao Aquifer has, was once at
24 feet and is now at 12 feet, half capacity. Maui's water supply is being used about two times
faster than it is naturally being replenished. It can take years for rainwater and groundwater to
percolate back into the aquifers. Also, until this day there hasn't been attained any solid
information on how much water is actually in Maui's aquifers. So far we only have inaccurate
estimates of our aquifers' water supply. With this in mind, the development of Makena should
not be allowed. We don't really know if Maui can supply more developments with water. We
cannot allow wasteful water. Our aquifers will not be able to keep up with increased water
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usage. With water usage continuing to increase, what will happen to the water supply for our
children and our children's children when there's no, you know, there's going to be no water?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Leong. Committee Members, questions
for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, we have Donald Poepoe, Sr. followed by James Kahalekai.
MR. POEPOE: Aloha, Mr. Chair. Aloha, Council people. My name is Donald Poepoe, Sr. and I'm here
in behalf of myself. Everyone here, I'm a native Hawaiian, born on the island. In Makena my
ancestors is buried at Keawalai Church. I see signs out there, Save Makena. You know, my
family sold land in Makena to Seibu. Nobody came up and offered us money to save Makena.
At that time we needed the money. We was having hard time, so my family sold 12 acres, you
know, and Seibu left town. Seibu was the first ones that came to Makena to save Makena and
you all against that. Seibu came in, put money down, bring water from Iao Valley to Makena.
Seibu came in, developed roads to Makena. But what happened? Because they're the last boys
in town, the last boys way down there, they got left out. Everyone in front, Maui Meadows,
Kihei took all the water, took all the infrastructure away from Makena, and you're here saying
no. I'm here saying yes. We need Makena. Makena is building up the way it's supposed to, and
I love the people that is doing that and I'm in support of it. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Poepoe. Okay, folks. . . .(gavel). . . Committee Members,
questions for Mr. Poepoe? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Mr. Poepoe. Next to
testify, we have James Kahalekai followed by--I'm having a hard time with this name,
Zabrig[sic]? Okay. We'll work on that afterwards. Go ahead, Mr. Kahalekai.
MR. KAHALEKAI: Good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.
MR. KAHALEKAI: I'm here against what's happening. I'm here for myself, my ohana, and my
kupunas. I'm sorry for what's going on, but you say you need jobs. We all need jobs. Just
imagine you take the water and goes back to Makena, ho'o loi(?) is going dry, farmers not going
get job. So you say you need job, we all need job, but also we going have, we're going to lose
our culture, we kanaka maolis. We live, we live on this aina for many years. Our kupunas come,
they fought for what they believe was right. We who have koko on this island, on this aina, we
will lose what we have. If they keep developing, where are we going to go fishing? We are we
going to go to teach our keikis, our grandchildren? I have no grandchildren yet, but I have four
sons. They ask me everyday, Dad, what is that road down there? The King's Road. What is the
King's Road? You know, this is just an example of what I say, and I have to explain to them.
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And what if development keep moving on? They will take away all that our children needs to
know. They would take all that away. I sit, I listen. But you know what, we all gotta think about
it, you take one job and you're going to take away somebody else's job. We all need jobs. There
is jobs out there, too. I need job, too. I have a job, but it's very slow, too. But also I look
forward to, to teach my children and their children the history of Hawaii. That's all I got to say.
Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kahalekai. Okay. . . .(gavel). . . Committee Members, question for
the testifier? Okay. Seeing none, thank you. Okay. Back to, I think it looks like Patrick
or. . .15 Laiki Place, the mailing address, if that is your mailing address. Okay. Please come.
Thank you. And followed by Leo Tai. Sir, if you could please state your name for the record.
MR. ANCHETA: Hi, everybody, good morning, and God bless everybody. All my life I see everybody
struggle and all I see now is young generation coming up, sore hearts, everything. What brokes
my heart, we all gotta live and breath the same air, drink water. Water is more important than oil,
and I feel that all of us gotta go forward. I know so hard, but what blows my mind, everyone
going get one grandchild. Everyone going have to go forward and now is the time for go
forward. I for this, I for this growth. I know get plenty water underneath this, just gotta drill.
The pollution coming from boats that dumping in the water, in the ocean, stay killing lot of
things. I for this thing that goes on because in case of emergency and growth you need water out
there. I hate for say it, but I need to say it because all my life I see every family get hard time,
very hard time, and I approve that this project goes on for all of us. Because all you kids that
going be behind going need work and for support their knowledge for us. And that's what life is
all about. I just came back from foreign countries and I see them more worst than us, and we
gotta stick together and work together. Hard, hard. This is one island, I know that. I so sorry,
but I love everything, you know, like how you guys love everything. We need to work it out and
I hope this project go through. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Sir, can you state your full name, please? Your name for the record.
MR. ANCHETA: My name is Patrick Ancheta.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
mahalo for your testimony.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, we have Leo Tai followed by Patri McLaughlin or Patri Laughlin I
should say, or maybe it's McLaughlin. Okay.
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MS. TAI: Good morning, everyone.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.
MS. TAI: My name is Leo Tai and I am the wedding manager at the Maui Prince Hotel. I've worked in
the visitor industry for 30 years and have seen the impact that development has made in the
tourist industry in Hawaii. As hotels went up, resorts were built, spin-off industries were created,
and there were jobs for just about everyone. That's not the case today, and our employees and
their families are concerned about their future, their welfare, and so am I. I do support the
Makena Resort project but I, I would like to say something a little bit more also. Change is
inevitable, it's coming, whether it comes today or whether it comes in the next ten years. I
personally would like to see change take place while Mr. Dowling is still here. He lives among
us, he is responsibly effective with the environment, he is culturally sensitive. He has resources,
such as Charlie Maxwell and Bully Kapahulehua and Leslie Kuloloio. So I ask you to please
vote and discharge. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Tai. Questions for the testifier, Members? Seeing none, next we
have Patri, I hope it's McLaughlin or Laughlin, forgive me, and followed by Heather Ganancial.
MR. McLAUGHLIN: Dear respected Members of the Council...
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me. Sir, could you put your mic up closer to your voice so we can hear you
loud and clear. There you go.
MR. McLAUGHLIN: That good?
CHAIR MOLINA: Very good.
MR. McLAUGHLIN: Dear respected Members of the Council, my name is Patri McLaughlin. I am a
19-year old college student and was raised on this little island we call Maui. I am convinced that
the development of high density condo units around Makena will be devastating to the island's
long-term economy. Yes, there might be a short-term surge of work for the union members, but
what about long term? I've seen this island change a lot in the past 19 years. Recently I have
noticed that our island is addicted to development. Eventually we will run out of land to build
upon. The aina is the soul of Maui, it is what captivates the visitors that continue to return time
and again. We must, as children of Hawaii, protect the aina, the land. Without the serene beauty
of the land our number one economic driver, tourism, will be dramatically halted. This year
most of the resorts are at less than half capacity. We must protect the tourist industry. If we
continue to transform the aina into high density condo units, the soul and attraction of the island
will be lost. If we can't break this build addiction, soon we'll have fewer tourists, no land and no
economy. We'll have more roads, more houses, and more rich retired mainlanders moving to
Maui to follow the trends of the decade. Maui is a unique place, this island is a democratic
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melting pot of hardworking people. But how can we consider ourselves democratic if we sneak
the decisions under the noses of the people? Holding this hearing on Wednesday morning with
little to no notice is wrong. If we truly call Maui a democracy, let the people make the decision.
Hold a public hearing on Sunday at Makena Beach and ask the hardworking people of Maui if
this truly is positive development. A man's decision can be altered when his pocketbook says
otherwise. Most of the people in favor of this development will also profit from this
development. I have taken the day off of work and school to speak, to speak for all my friends
and family that can't be here because they must work. I speak for the aina that needs protecting.
I am not profiting by speaking. I am here on my own free will to convince you that this
development is not only wrong but also unfair to residents of Maui. If we truly call Maui
democratic, you must make the decision for the people. Give the people fair representation and
hold a hearing on the weekend in South Maui to give the hardworking school-going residents a
chance to voice their opinions. Please, Council Members, reject this bill or at least make the
democratic process fair and let the people make the decision. Thank you for your time.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Patri. Okay. . . .(gavel). . . Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify, we have Heather Ganancial followed by
Nalani Chun.
MS. GANANCIAL: Aloha. My name is Heather Ganancial and I just want to say thank you for this
opportunity. Wai is key to the life of any Hawaiian, even non-Hawaiians. The wai flows
naturally through our veins and is essential to our mana. The disruption of this natural flow by
diversions installed by greedy white men, irrigation companies, can be felt each and every day
by many families who depend upon the wai to continue to live their self-sustainable lifestyle.
Wailea 670 [sic] is a drastic development that I feel will only bring more problems to our
beautiful island. Born and raised in Haiku, I have watched from afar as Kihei and Wailea have
been developed, subdivision or luxury housing one after the other. And now they want to
develop some of the most sacred grounds on the island, Makena. These lands which contain
anchialine ponds, opae ula, and many endemic endangered species will be exploited and
developed for the greed and wealth of Mr. Everett Dowling. These beautiful natural ways of life
will forever be devastated. . . .(change tape, start 2A). . . in denial of the fact that development
is bad, not any longer. I am against this development and any development because we do not
have excess water available for any projects. In East Maui, kalo farmers are fighting to restore
water back to the stream to fill its natural flow. They have lived years without enough water for
their families and crops and still are fighting for their water. Where will we get the water for this
development in the desert? Water doesn't even flow through this region. Where will they get the
water needed for 1,000 homes? I also don't feel that low-income or native Hawaiian families
will be able to partake of any of the benefits of this development. Most of the homes are beyond
the means of the working class citizens of Maui. This is the third meeting that I have attended
and I have witnessed many people in opposition to this project. I don't know who promised this
development years ago, but to you I say what a sellout. The people of Maui are tired of being
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taken advantage of and I am strongly against this Wailea 670 [sic] development, and I hope that
it will not go through. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. . . . (inaudible). . . Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Next to testify, we have Nalani Chun followed by the Reverend Alalani Hill.
MS. CHUN: Aloha kakou. My name is Nalani Chun, and I am at the Maui Prince Hotel. I'm a Food
and Beverage Manager there. I'm here in favor of the Makena rezoning. I am Hawaiian, like
many of us that are here. My roots are from Ulaino and Kipahulu, so I am Hawaiian, and I am
speaking in favor of this. I have a son who builds hotels. I have a daughter that is a kupuna at
the Punanaleo Maui, and I have a son that sings and dances about our culture. So this is very
important to me on a personal level that it will give jobs, not only to me and to my colleagues,
but to my children who are performing and who are living the island. We are originally from
Oahu. We came here more than 30 years ago and we don't want to go back there. We want to be
here. We want to raise, I want to see my grandchildren grow up and do the things that I have
been able to see. Please do the right thing, take care of the Makena and take care of my
coworkers and my colleagues and my family. Mahalo. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Chun. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, we have the Reverend Alalani Hill followed
by John Carty.
MS. HILL: Aloha.
CHAIR MOLINA: Aloha.
MS. HILL: Aloha kakahiaka, aloha kakou. First of all, I'd like to say that I do support conscious
development on our island. I've been a part of a lot of that, whether it's all the homes or cottages
or villas of Stanford Carr all the way to this courthouse or on the south side past Kihei just going
into Wailea, Makena. I blessed the last resort. That was very challenging, the last piece of land
to ever be built for Wailea Beach Villas that's on 12 acres there. I have blessed, even though
they're in process, that was sad to lose Renaissance Wailea, Baccarat, with the economic
challenges of our country and world are now moving slowly. I've blessed all of Na Hale 0
Makena. Mrs. Chang is here today. That was hard, remember, 'cause she sold the land and it
was hard 'cause the heiau was split. That begins on the old Makena Road in Makena. I've
blessed development in all the high-end luxury condos for Hoolei and blessed over 100 of those
units just last week. I know Makena well. I used to live between Makena Landing and North
Maluaka near the church, as my mother did. I know Makena well because of my kupuna "Papa"
Kahu Kawika Ka'alakea who used to have Jesus is the Way Church in Kihei, 'cause he used to
go from Kipahulu, run the cattle all the way down to Makena Landing. Lots of stories. I used to
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sit on . . . (inaudible). . . land and look up at the stars before that was sold, which is now a parking
lot across from the building that's going to go up at South Maluaka. Just sitting there, there are
jobs that are going to be there. But I have pule'd on this, I have prayed on this, and I have sat
and kneeled on Makena, and it makes my heart heavy, really heavy and I could feel the land. So
I speak for my voice today and those close to me. But I speak for the aina and the ka lepo, the
land there. Papa, my kupuna used to say, "Take what you take and leave what you leave". Take
the fish, take the la' au lapa' au, the medicine, take what you need for yourselves, for your
families, but leave the rest for those here, for those coming behind. So much has been given, 150
acres. There's going to be jobs. It's coming up that area. There's so much that's been given.
We need to support what's been zoned and who's approved it behind this, and not to go against
what's already been accepted and voted on and agreed on by those here and those not here today
but are part of our past. Makena is -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. HILL: --full of memories. There are archeological sites everywhere, they cannot speak. I do speak
sometimes for the unborn child who has no voice, sometimes for the children and for the land.
What I do is blessings, and I can tell you that once this is done it will not be undone. And I do
not feel this is good for Makena to build at this degree, at this level to expand to the level that is
being proposed here today. It will change the spiritual energy of Makena, it will change the
mana. We need space in our brains, we need space in our island. We need to preserve, it's our
kuleana to take care of some of these places. We need this. Those that come here need this. We
are mind, body, and spirit. So, please, come to Kihei and hear the voices in a time when those
that have jobs, too, can come and speak. Please don't support this up-zoning, let us support
what's been given. Like my kupuna Papa would say lawa, enough. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you, Reverend. Committee Members, questions?
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Seeing none, thank you. . . . (gavel). . . Okay, folks, I need your help, please. Next,
we have John Carty followed by Justin Tafuri.
MR. CARTY: I should have come and testified yesterday when you were talking about height
restrictions here.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. CARTY: I'm John Carty. I live in West Maui. It's in places like Makena where people feel most
alive and inspired; where we feel most connected to something bigger than ourselves; where we
take a deep breath and choose to enjoy ourselves, our family, our friends; where we choose to
spend our special time; where we feel. It's where children want to spend all day, everyday and
can't wait to get back there, and where adults remember what it can be like to feel like a child
again. But today there are people here in this room that want to take that specialness, that magic,
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seal it up in concrete boxes and try to keep it all for themselves, and then sell it to those from the
mainland who are willing to pay top dollar for it. They tell us that all these different ways that
they think that is in our best interest to let them do it. For those that want to develop in Makena
even though there's no water and coastal development destroys our natural aquatic resources, it's
good business for them to be here today. It is time well spent in the pursuit of all that is
important to them, money. That is what they will get, that's what they would get for sacrificing
Makena. They stand to make a killing by converting some of our most beloved and sacred open
space into concrete and buildings. For the rest of us, we sacrifice our time here today and other
days to try and hold on to that which we hold dear and sacred while we struggle to pay rent and
provide for our families. It's a sacrifice worth making, because we know that money is not more
important than taking care of the aina, being pono, and preserving that which is sacred for
generations to come. We do not have the right to even consider sacrificing Makena for their
wealth and their comfort. We do not have the right to deny future generations the natural
experience and open sacred space of Makena. Decisions should not be made based on how
much money can be made right now or some, a few paychecks. Decisions need to be made on
what is best for the long term and what is best overall for the island. Living on an island means
that we have to look at the big picture and see how everything works together, and turning
Makena into California does not fit the island way. Why on earth, why on this island would we
take one of the most sacred places, and places that people love to escape to and enjoy, and ruin it
with development for the benefit and comfort of outsiders? Now is our chance to save Makena.
It's our last chance to preserve something sacred and beloved. Leaders, please don't let them
turn Makena into new Malibu or Dowlingville [sic] because it is, if this development is allowed,
it will no longer be Makena.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, John.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Next
to testify, we have Justin Tafuri, and I apologize if I mispronounce your name, followed by
Robert Cabacungan.
MR. TAFURI: Okay. No problem. I'm Justin Tafuri. Good morning. Good morning. All right. When
I first came here this morning, I felt pretty cut and dry what I was coming to testify about. And
hearing the political jargon back and forth about whether it was just to revisit a plan or vote for a
plan four years ago, it seems like a lot has changed in four years. I see a lot of people more
interested in the results that come from this. It still feels pretty cut and dry to me. I'm testifying
completely in opposition of developing this area not only for its environmental causes but the
nature, definitely the beauty of that area. I'm, I'm actually at the same time disturbed a little bit
that this is taking precedence over a lot of the issues that Maui is faced with as far as
infrastructure, water, roads, things, other things that Maui, people of Maui care about that could
also support jobs and support economy. The only point that I'd ever heard of in favor of
Dowling's developments in Makena are for jobs, all the construction jobs that this will create.
So what I'm wondering is when did construction workers' jobs become more important than
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anyone else's jobs? When did they come, become more important than the environment and the
culture being preserved on these islands? I was wondering are these national heroes that we're
talking about? Are these firemen and police and lifeguards that we're talking about? I've done
construction work before. I never felt like it made me a hero. Unfortunately, their income is
based on an extremely detrimental industry to the environment. As green as Dowling says he is
in support of his developments, there's no green condo developments. It's detrimental to the
environment, no ifs, ands, or buts about it, and the tide of this big development as many people
growing up and the new generation on Maui feel it must be abated to, to have any environment
left to enjoy on these islands. At some point it has to end or they'll be creeping down into
La Perouse. Let's put some condos on Ahihi-Kinau. When does it end, really? I feel at heart
personally as far as when did anyone who works for Dowling's job become more important than
mine I'm a kayak guide. I'm on the water every day. I take people out on kayak tours and I
teach them about the environment, I teach them about the turtles, about the reef. I take them out
to look back at the land that's proposing development here, and I get to teach them about
ahupua' a. I get to teach them about the system that the Hawaiian culture had here, that when
somebody up the land from you is poisoning the land, it's poisoning you down below as well. I
get to teach them what effect golf courses have on that ahupua'a system -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. TAFURI: --what effect condos... Wow, that's fast. So my wife is Hawaiian, my child's Hawaiian.
I have another baby on the way, she's going to be Hawaiian. So when did these jobs become
more important than my job? Dowling just pushed us aside so that he could run his commercial
tours off of Maluaka. So how long before, you know, how long have the people of, of Maui been
fighting this development? There's so many issues that, you know, about rezoning and
government changing. Let's talk about green development. Maybe a bed and breakfast that's
also a farm, that's green development. I don't see how thousands acres of dense development on
Big Beach is anything green about that or any future for Makena. Thanks.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Justin.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Justin, you said that you were pushed off Maluaka Beach,
the use of Maluaka Beach so Dowling could -MR. TAFURI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --operate commercial tours there?
MR. TAFURI: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you explain that?
MR. TAFURI: Yeah, absolutely. Just recently the company that I work for has had permits from the
County for operating kayaking tours out of Makena Landing area for over 20 years. Just recently
Dowling claimed that land as his own and pushed commercial operators, basically kayak tours
and dive companies who use that, that land aside saying it was illegal. So we got pushed aside
for Makena Landing and also Maluaka. Maluaka is also where he rents kayaks. He also does the
Kai Kanani boat out of there. He conducts his own commercial activities off that beach. We
were told that it's illegal for us...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Was, was Maluaka one of the locations on your permit?
MR. TAFURI: On, on other kayaking company's permits, not ours exactly, but on other company's
permits, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they were shunted aside?
MR. TAFURI: Makena Landing, it's, it's truly all the same.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. TAFURI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I don't believe that Mr. Dowling owns Makena Landing. I
think that, in fact I know that Makena Landing is supposed to be a County park and Seibu has
just never deeded it over to the County.
MR. TAFURI: Right. That was my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I think that we need to follow through with that.
MR. TAFURI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. TAFURI: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Committee Members, other questions? Seeing none, thank you, Justin.
Okay. Next to testify, we have Robert Cabacungan followed by Maile Lu'uwai.
MR. CABACUNGAN: Aloha, Council Members.
CHAIR MOLINA: Aloha.
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MR. CABACUNGAN: Thank you for having us today. You know, I'm for this project. You know
why? I'm 30 years old. Half of my friends, people I know, people I grew up with either they're
in the tourism industry or they're in the construction industry. You know, eh, we all love
Makena, we all love Makena. Every year we gotta go through this, or every so many years, you
know, we gotta come over here. You know, this project going help local people who are mostly
local working inside this, you know, this construction, pay for their mortgages, pay for one better
life for their family. You know what I mean? Eh, I think, I strongly think we need something
like this, and everybody know that Dowling, you know, he get stuff planned, you know, he not
going just go about it, you know, stupidly, you know. He get, you know, alternative use for
power. He get all this kind stuff planned. Recycle, we get our own sewage treatment plants up
there, you know. It's going to be self-sufficient in the future. You know, I never like speak today
because, you know, my family, my dad is against this, you know. But, eh, he's old already. You
know what I mean?
AUDIENCE: . . .(laughter). . .
MR. CABACUNGAN: You know what, he had his time. You know what I mean? Let's face it, sugar,
sugar and pineapple is gone already, it's gone. The majority of the jobs going be in the hotel and
the construction industry. It's a scary thing for say, but it's the truth. It's the truth. But I like for
thank you guys for having me today. Aloha.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for your testimony, Robert. Committee Members, questions?
. . . (gavel). . . Okay, folks hang on, hang on. We have a question. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Robert, you don't think wisdom comes with age?
AUDIENCE: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. CABACUNGAN: Yeah, it does.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. CABACUNGAN: It does.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Any other questions, Members? Thank you. Robert, Robert, hang on, hang
on. We got a question from--Mr. Medeiros, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chair, no, I didn't. I just wanted to, yeah, if anybody has a
question for the testifier, go ahead with that. But I have a question on some information after the
testifiers.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, okay. All right. Thank you for your testimony. Okay. Next to testify, we have
Maile Lu'uwai followed by Larry Oberto.
MS. LU'UWAI: Aloha kakou.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Aloha.
MS. LU'UWAI: Mahalo to all the Council Members for hearing this rezoning request and honoring this
process. My name is Maile Lu'uwai. My ancestors made Makena their home. I am here to
speak in behalf of my ancestors and to honor their memory and their history, and to honor future
generations by asking, no actually demanding that this Council ensure the protection of the
archeological and cultural resources in Makena. I flew over the Maluaka project this morning
and I am concerned. According to Dowling's publicity, and he has excellent public relations, this
is going to be the finest second home community in the western hemisphere. It's going to be
Makena. And Maluaka is the first phase of the new Makena. So let's look at the first phase of
new Makena, let's look at Maluaka. What a lot of you don't see, because of Dowling's good
public relations efforts, is the truth. His first archeological study at Maluaka was so horrific and
inadequate, I complained to the Cultural Resources Commission and the Planning Commission
because it is, it is my responsibility and kuleana to make sure that our archeological and cultural
resources are protected. And I made so much pilikia that he allowed my archeologist to walk on
that property, and you know what she found? Numerous archeological sites. A heiau, cultural
platforms, and a burial site. He would have bulldozed this if I didn't complain. If I didn't stand
up and grumble, all gone, all pau. So Theresa Donham who I admire as an excellent and well
respected archeologist, she redid his survey okay, because he didn't want this in the newspaper,
and you guys don't know that. So she redid his survey, and she made a lot of recommendations.
She found numerous--this is our culture, okay, this is our history. You know once, once all this is
pau, it's pau. And she made these recommendations to Dowling, and you know what he did? He
only preserved, threw crumbs at us, a small percentage of these sites. A fishing heiau on that
Maluaka site, my grandfather fished right below that. My father told me that was his favorite
fishing site. That is gone. I flew over Maluaka this morning, it is scraped clean. I went down
there this past Sunday, I showed my daughter, it is scraped clean. I said there was a heiau there,
there was a fishing heiau there. Okay? So if you are promoting yourself, if you are saying I am
pono and I honor Hawaiian culture and people and protocols, then be pono. Do the proper
archeological work, bring in highly qualified people, and when they make these
recommendations, bring us in, you know, bring the families in, you know, not a cultural advisory
group that you compensate and you give money to. But bring us in because we would be happy
to work with you to make sure that our family, our family's history and our ancestors are
honored. Be pono. Okay? He has really good public relations. Most of you don't know a lot of
things that are going on. But this is what's happening. So if Maluaka is the first phase of the
new Makena--and that's not from me, that's from his consultant, it is the first phase of the new
Makena--then we are in trouble. We are in big trouble as Hawaiians. And I see the Hawaiians
here who need jobs and I hurt for you, and I am not against you. But I have a kuleana and I have
a responsibility.
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MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. LU'UWAI: So I am not against your working. Okay? And I am not speaking against you. But I
want you to tell him to be pono. Do the right thing. Okay? Okay? Don't just scrape everything
clean and throw us a few sites. You know how much archeological work is needed to be done in
Makena? Choke! That whole 600 acres that he needs his zoning for, that needs to be done.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Ms. Lu'uwai, I'm sorry, you have to conclude.
MS. LU'UWAI: Okay. I'd like to conclude.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MS. LU'UWAI: So I, I am not against you here. You know, we Hawaiians, we are all one, and I am not
against you working. But because my family is from Makena and the voices have come to me, it
is my kuleana to make sure what is done is pono. And I want to let you all know when it is pau,
it is pau. Your jobs is pau and Makena is pau, and there's nothing we can do and we cannot go
backwards. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for your testimony. Member Anderson, question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Maile, thank you so much for being here. Welcome back to your
homeland.
MS. LU'UWAI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We're happy to have you back from the Big Island, and I know
that your ancestors are proud of you today for taking the time to coming and represent.
MS. LU'UWAI: I had no choice.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the, the koa that you spoke of, was, was that designated for
preservation by Historic Preservation Division?
MS. LU'UWAI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And why not?
MS. LU'UWAI: I am not sure. At the time --30-
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 'Cause it has religious significance.
MS. LU'UWAI: --at the time that this all went through, the SHPD was short-staffed, it was--you know,
I don't, I don't even know if they have full staffing now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. LU'UWAI: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, other questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Ms. Lu'uwai.
MS. LU'UWAI: Thank you. Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What's, what's your schedule for our morning break?
CHAIR MOLINA: You know what, thank you for bringing that up. I have just two more testifiers.
Then we'll go and take our morning break. Okay. Next to testify, we have Larry Oberto
followed by Kevin Haleakala, and Mr. Haleakala will be our last testifier before we take our
morning break.
MR. OBERTO: Wow. A lot of people. Important issue. As, I actually flew in from Seattle just to be
here to talk to you all today. I appreciate your time. There's been a lot of really heartfelt
testimony and important points brought up. I've been coming to this island as a tourist and
spending my money here since, since the '70s. I have relatives that have lived on the Big Island
for 30, 40 years. My, my, I'm, I'm an outside, I'll always be an outsider. My son's Jamaican,
Scott-Irish, Filipino, Hawaiian. Great kid. And he really, really likes this place. I think what
you all must realize that as people have brought up, that construction is a short time, is a
short-term fix for your construction issues. It's the cultural diversity that this island has in its
people, in its topography, in the offerings it has both for the big palatial resorts that on occasion
my family and my other family members spend their money and like to enjoy. My wife and I,
we just recently purchased a house in South Kihei, and one reason we did that is out of respect
for the area and that not everything always has to be built on. This way we, our footprint is more
in a condensed area of people; and therefore, we felt we'd do a little less damage to the rest of
the environment. When I travel, I travel all over the world and when I look at the big resorts I
realize more and more that they create such a generic atmosphere. And at some point I don't
always want to come to this island, because I can go anywhere else in the world and spend my
money at the palatial spa and resort and have somebody do my nails. That's not what it's about.
It is that diversity. You can come here, you can go just out, you can stay in Wailea and spend too
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much money. You can stay in South Kihei for the balance it represents. Then you can take a
nice, short drive and you're in a wonderful area that reminds you of more what Hawaii once was.
And as you build around it, as you bulldoze, pave, and build, you will forever ever change what
you have and you can never ever go back. There's lots of land, I look up this mountain, that
would be less environmentally sensitive that could be built to house new people And, you know,
you don't have an easy choice and it sounds like it would be much easier for this Council just to MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. OBERTO: --bless it and move on. I read, I saw this, this morning which I thought was interesting.
The economy gets worse, and if you see, it's all based on tourism. Remember, not all your
tourists want to stay and get their nails done. Thank you for the hard choices and the effort you
put in and I'm sorry I'm an outsider giving you--and I can also say that living in Seattle, I've
watched developers and outside interest change, and as they push and manipulate codes they
always, they say this is it, but it's always more. It's a take, take, take, and not that that's bad, but
you must be strong against some of it. I watch zoning go from 126 feet in a whole south Lake
Union area so we wouldn't have these kind of meetings, only to watch two years later them come
back and they want -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. OBERTO: --to upscale it to 600 feet. It's going to happen here. Protect against it. Save your
diversity.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Oberto.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Next
to testify, we have Kevin Haleakala, and after Mr. Haleakala is through with his testimony,
Members, we'll take a break and then we'll have Ryan Quinn and Michael Duberstein on deck.
MR. HALEAKALA: Aloha, good morning, Chairman, Council Members. I talked to you earlier last
Friday, and I know this is a big issue today, you know, with water, economy, everything going
up. I mean it's hard. I mean you look, we lost our agriculture here on Maui, sugar, pineapple. I
mean now, you know, we into the tourist industry now because of agriculture being gone. I
know water is a big issue here on Maui and that we had this problem like years ago and it's never
been settled, you know. And I just want this project to go forward and hopefully . . . (change
tape, start 2B). . . committees and clubs, you know, come together and understand, you know,
there's jobs that need to be fulfilled. I mean I have family and friends in the construction, you
know, that's out of work right now. Sure they may not be heroes, but, eh, they build people's
houses, families that's here on Maui that's, you know, need, needed also. So I'm just hopefully
that this project go forward. Mahalo.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Haleakala. Committee Members, questions for
Mr. Haleakala? Seeing none, okay, Members, it is 10:40. We're going to call for a 15 minute
recess, and when we return we'll have Ryan Quinn followed by Michael Duberstein. Meeting in
recess until 10:55. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 10:40 a.m.
RECONVENE: 11:00 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA:
. . .(gavel). . .
The Land Use Committee meeting for Wednesday,
November 19, 2008 is now back in session. Ladies and gentlemen, we're going to continue with
public testimony on Land Use Item 37. We now have before us Ryan Quinn to testify followed
by Michael Duberstein.
MR. QUINN: Aloha, good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.
MR. QUINN: My name is Ryan Quinn. I moved to Kihei...
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me. Mr. Quinn, could you put the mic up a little bit? There we go.
MR. QUINN: I moved to Kihei in 1987.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (from the audience): Louder.
MR. QUINN: I moved to Kihei in 1987 and I immediately fell in love with Makena, and when I think
about really what I love about it, I think it's, that it feels somewhat isolated there. You feel far
away, although you are actually pretty close to everything, and the promise of the beauty there
and perhaps seeing something in nature that, that you don't normally see, you know. And I've,
just last week took my four year old son to see the hatching of a Hawksbill turtle nest which I
found to be very special, and I feel that if these things keep progressing as they are, those special
things are going to be lost forever and certain animals will die and never come back. I swam
with a Hawaiian Monk Seal in the water outside there with a second entrance, and I got to spend
like half an hour just watching this beautiful animal swim out there in a crystal clean, just
gorgeous water. And it just hurts, hurts the heart to think that kind of short-term gain can ruin
such beauty forever. And I've seen three huge resorts be built in Kihei or Wailea or whatever
you want to call it. Wailea is just Kihei with sprinklers as far as I'm concerned. It's all the same
zip code and it's all the same community. Only more affluent and prosperous people seem to
want to call their area Wailea. But I've seen a lot of fishing sites, a lot of beautiful reefs, a lot of
things go and be just bulldozed and, you know, houses built. And you can't get there, the access
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just isn't there anymore for many, many, many places that we used to play when we were kids,
and I'd like to see my two sons be able to salvage these areas and be able to enjoy them in the
time to come. And that's about it. Thanks for your time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Quinn. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, we have
Michael Duberstein followed by Lance Holter.
MR. DUBERSTEIN: Aloha kakou -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aloha.
MR. DUBERSTEIN: --and malama pono. My name is Michael J. Duberstein and I live in South Kihei
and I'm a retired economist. I added our need to do well in this meeting because Makena aina
requires the highest degree of pono and the willingness of all of us involved to try and
understand where each other is coming from. But first to my sisters and brothers in the labor
movement and especially the, the building trades, beware. Do not fall for handshake agreements.
There's no court in the State of Hawaii or in the entire United States that will enforce an oral
agreement. That's point blank. If a developer says he or she will employ union workers, get it
on paper and signed by both parties; otherwise, I have a bridge in Alaska to sell you. I also
would like to add my voice to those who would want an evening or weekend hearing in South
Maui because there are so many who would like to come out who have to work or go to school.
My bottom line is that you should not grant these changes and here's why. First, let's go back to
early February this year when the Mayor and the Director of Planning announced that they
would not support any applications for a Community Plan Amendment until the new General
Plan is completed. I've testified before GPAC and participated in a Planning Department
exercise dealing with new urban growth boundaries, and I can assure you that there is a
significant amount of citizen input that would result in Makena Resort being outside those
boundaries. Whether or not that happens obviously is up to you. Nevertheless, why approve
something now that might not be County policy a year from now? Next, I have in my hand here
Chapter 19.510 of the County Code which pertains to applications and procedures for the
planning process. Section 19.510.010, General Application Procedures contains in Section D,
Content of Applications, the stipulation that all applications shall provide the following
information: Numbers 8 through 11 and 13 through 16 cover detailed land history, archeological
studies, and approval from DLNR and OHA as well as mitigation plans approved by those
agencies; analysis of secondary impacts of the project; current traffic impact studies, and -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. DUBERSTEIN: --a traffic master plan which is approved by the Department of Transportation and
the Public Works Department; a water source supply and distribution analysis; sewage disposal
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analysis; solid waste disposal analysis; and finally identification of environmentally sensitive
areas, plants, and animals with comments not only from relevant State agencies also, but also
from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the Corps. of Engineers. Now I've asked the
Planning Department to produce those documents for you today, and I believe it is absolutely
ridiculous to consider voting for these, these zoning changes until each and every one of you has
thoroughly reviewed not just those aspects but everything else in Section D. I don't know if the
Planning Department produced them, but I can assure you that most -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. DUBERSTEIN: --of those sections do not have current studies in them. And why deal with an
incomplete application? Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Duberstein. Committee Members, questions for
the testifier? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Duberstein, thank you for being here, and thank you for
bringing that up. When this application went through the previous Land Use Committee, most of
those application requirements were not met, and the Committee Chair sent letters requesting
that information from the owner and applicant at that time. And none of that information was
forthcoming and the Land Use Chair previous to Mr. Nishiki was Mr. Arakawa, and the
Committee was told at that time we're not going to get all the information we want so you just
have to decide if you like it or not. You think that's a prudent way to, to approve an application
for so much development when it doesn't meet the requirements of the Code?
MR. DUBERSTEIN: Obviously not, because I can assure you that if I wanted to build something or to
do something that was covered by the zoning process, I would have to meet each and every one
of them. Now why does someone who was willing to spend $575 million not have to meet those
requirements? I mean there are conditions that the Council itself set. There are new conditions
that are likely to come out of whatever happens, but you have the prime conditions that are in the
application process that no rational Planning Director should ever approve. Everyone here
should understand what's involved here, that when your project where you live was built, they
had to go through the entire process. They had to find out what the archeological information
and cultural information was there, and if there were problems, to mitigate it. Now is there a
mitigation plan? No. The water issue here is still--and I mean this is, you know, the best
word--murky. It's very murky. We don't, we don't know. I mean the need for a potential desal
plant means that there is an immense amount of energy needed for the desalination process, and
the brine and other chemicals coming out of that have to be dealt with. Well, where are they
going to put them? It's going to go right into the ocean. So we are already facing major
problems in the reefs off of Makena. How can anyone think of ever being able to do their scuba
diving or whatever else you want to do there when there's not going to be any life there, when
it's going to be the white coral that washes up that I deal with every week at the South Maui -CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Duberstein, Mr. Duberstein, -- 35 -
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MR. DUBERSTEIN: --Heritage Trail?
CHAIR MOLINA: --I think you've answered her question.
MR. DUBERSTEIN: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson, do you have another question for Mr. Duberstein?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, any other questions? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony, Mr. Duberstein. Next to testify, we have Lance Holter followed by Gail Manibog.
MR. HOLTER: Good morning, everyone. I just want to make two issues available to us. Number one,
we need to conclude before any action on this proposal, we need to conclude the General Plan
Advisory Committee hearings and hear what their General Plan recommendations are. And
secondly, we need to have an evening meeting in Kihei when all the hardworking people, other
than these hardworking people, can also attend. I know of many that can't attend because they
can't get the day off as the hotel workers and others are. But most of all, congratulations,
everyone. Your vote counted this year, 76.3 percent of Maui County voted for Barack Obama,
one of the largest turnouts in the entire nation. We won the election for Hawaii. We have the
. . .(inaudible). . . And also in my discussion with the congressional delegations, we are in the
process of being allocated $15 billion for new energy development, new energy economy, a new
energy development. In the next six months this money will be coming to this nation, especially
to Hawaii, because we are in the most die-hard predicament here. We are importing quarter
billion dollars worth of oil to run our electric plants. That's a quarter billion dollars worth of oil
for our electricity. But what we're talking about today is obviously about jobs, and the
developers of this proposal tell us that jobs will result. But I maintain it's not about jobs, it's
about the fact that the developers are using this for bait. What they really want to do is real
estate speculation and selling off lands with zoning entitlements. It's about continuing a
misguided economic policy of exclusive homes and exclusive neighborhoods and second and
third homes for the wealthy. If it were truly about jobs and people, we'd be looking at green and
blue collar affordable homes and public facilities, schools, infrastructure, and real solutions. But
I want to know, where is the water? Since the 2004 agreements, the water shortage has become
serious to acute. There's no water left anywhere, especially for 1,600 units. Remember, luxury
homes in Kihei use 2,000 gallons or more per home, per day. And the electricity requirements
for this project are huge. We have neither the capacity or available supply either to provide any
of this for Makena's proposed development. I want all of the people in this room to have jobs. I
want long-term sustainable jobs. Our jobless rate in Maui is increasing directly because visitors
in the world are saying Maui has lost its allure and its Hawaiian aloha as being smothered by
overdevelopment and class distinction. People are now going to Kauai, and tourism, our
economic golden egg is still strong on Kauai, but not on Maui anymore. We need jobs, and if we
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really are talking about jobs, let's build solar power plants right here, right now. We have a
35 megawatt power plant in Kahului -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. HOLTER: --being held together with wire and gum and Band-Aids. It's falling apart and there's
no backup plan If it's really about jobs, then we should have, Maui Electric should be here
today telling us how they are going to end our County's quarter billion dollar dependence and
addiction on imported oil. If it's really about jobs, they should tell us you need to be asking the
real questions here. How can we implement real solutions, real jobs and not duplicate past
mistakes? We need a plan. . .cutting our utility rates for us, all of us, a real job plan, improving
our quality of life and creating real sustainable jobs, including outreach to tourism for Canadians
and to incorporating incentives for our airlines to bring tourists to Maui. This solution of a
proposal for 1,600 homes is inappropriate. I hope that you'll reconsider it -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. HOLTER: --and that you'll table it for a future event in Maui, in Kihei. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Holter. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Holter, thank you for that testimony. I know that you've spent
a lot of time and research on the energy problems we have in Maui County. We were told that,
Maui Electric told us that when Wailea 670 came up just recently that there wasn't enough power
in that area of Maui County, and a new substation would have to be developed. So obviously the
same would hold for Makena. So do you know if Maui Electric has to put in another substation
for both of these developments, if the cost of that would be passed on through their electric bill
to everybody?
MR. HOLTER: All of the development cost for Maui Electric's implementation of a larger capacity will
be passed through to the consumer. All of us in this room will be paying for this through higher
billing rates. They'll be putting sub-charges on our bills and so forth. The only solution is to
begin the construction of these, for example, these solar electric power plants that have been
used for the last 20 years in the Southwest and in Spain and in Nevada and proposed now for
Arizona. But there's no plan, they're not planning on this. They're still stuck in this old
methodology, this old failed policy of passing the increase cost on to the consumers. And all of
you hardworking people out there, this is the real solution for jobs, new power plants, new
substations, new infrastructure that we can all put you all to work doing this right off the, right
off the union bench. We can take carpenters, electricians, and plumbers, and sheet metal
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workers, and all these trades can immediately be put to work building a sustainable future, not a
failed policy based on real estate speculation for the wealthy.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Holter.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, any other questions? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony. Next to testify, we have Gail Manibog followed by Gene Weaver.
MS. MANIBOG: Aloha and good morning, Mr. Chair and Council Members. My name is
Gail Manibog and I am also an active member of the local union ILWU 142. I basically have
lived my whole life in Kihei. I've watched many people come and go, and I have seen many
things change all over. I hear people talking about oh, let's do this, let's do that, da-da da-da
da-da. You know what? It is what it is. What about the human beings? I hear everything about
the animals, the endangered birds, the Monk Seal. Well, what about our people, the people who
have to live every single day? Where you going to find food? Has anybody applied for welfare
recently? Has anybody ever not been able to put food on the table for their child? I have. I'm a
single mom, I raised four children. Yes, we need check and balances, I totally agree to that. But
the facts are the facts. I am for this project. It will increase jobs, not for just now, but for the
future as well, for me, for my children, for everybody else. If we kept everybody else from
coming into this island with their ideas, maybe it would be a different and better place. But it is
what it is. We are all human, we are not perfect, and we have to work together and figure out
what's going to be the best for our community in the future. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Manibog. Committee Members, questions? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you. Next to testify, we have Gene Weaver followed by Ron Chapman.
MR. WEAVER: Aloha, everyone here today. Thank you for having this meeting. Certain Members of
this Council didn't even want to hear from the people and have this meeting today. Thank you,
Jo Anne, and thank you, Michelle, for standing up for the people that you represent. I believe
this is your job to represent us. I do not believe that your vote is your vote. Your vote is our
vote. This is. . .you are who we have. You work very hard, some of you. All of you, you're here
in these Chambers day after day, but I don't really believe all of you have the information that
what the people want is a place to go to the beach. What the people need is to be represented. I
know you're here in your Chamber. How many of you have been to the beach lately, to Makena,
to really be there, take the time to find out what this issue is about? This issue is not just about
some jobs. Jobs are important. There's, we got to be creative in this. But this job, this, this
issue is about our sacred land, Makena, the jewel. This, that is what this is about. When you
pass through Kihei, you already see what's happened here. You pass through Wailea, you fmally
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get to Makena, and you can finally relax and go oh, okay, we're, we're getting to nature now,
we're getting to a place we can relax. We've worked hard and we have to continue to work hard.
Is this going to be taken away from us? Are we going to just keep paving over paradise? Well, I
don't think that's good for our economy, and the people who live here and the people who want
to come here love Makena. Please, take some time, go down to Makena, talk to the people.
Now I understand that there was a poll in The Maui News and it said that 65 percent of the
people that voted and. . .in this poll said that they don't want this resort. So I know, they have
some zoning, let Makena Resort do the best they can with what they have. But please, do not
upscale their zoning. Please represent the people, all of the people, not just the people who pay
for your campaign support and the people that come to you and talk to you. Go out and fmd out
what the real needs of, of all of the people are who live on this island. That's from my heart to
you. I moved here because I can come to these beaches and these places and enjoy my life. I
think the people of these islands ought to start spending some time growing your food, because
these are the crucial things at hand right now for us, our water and our food -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. WEAVER: --not more resorts, not more 5,000 square foot million dollar condos. Thank you,
Jo Anne, thank you, Michelle, for speaking up for us people and having this meeting. I strongly
urge this Council to have a meeting in North Kihei where the people who couldn't make it here
tonight can be heard. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Weaver.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to
testify, we have Ron Chapman followed by Ashley Kamili [sic].
MR. CHAPMAN: Aloha. Hi, my name is Ron Chapman. I'm in support of this program. Okay? I'm
here to testify for Makena Resort. I'm in support of the project because it will create jobs. I'm a
single parent. Okay? Ms. Anderson, do you have kids? I have three. Okay? You know really
and truly, you know, it kind of disturbs me because-CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Mr. Chapman, can you bring your mic up?
MR. CHAPMAN: Yeah. To me it's like you guys, my kids are graduating from school. What are they
going to do? Where they going work? Okay, you guys forget, okay. I'm trying to instill in my
kids some values. I can't go on no welfare programs. You know, you talk about Obama is going
to do this, Obama's wanting to do that. Yes. He's talking about change, but with change you've
got to make some changes that you--God I tell you...you people, you just don't understand that
it's about...arrgghhh-CHAIR MOLINA: Hang on.
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MR. CHAPMAN: Hey, I'm telling you this is, this is heartful. Okay? You got any questions for me in
regards to how I'm going to put food on the table? I'm a single parent of three. Okay? You
talking--what are they going to do with no jobs? Okay? Yes, I'm in support of the project,
anything that's going to create economy. Get it moving. Okay? I don't know what you're
thinking about, people, really. I really don't.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (from the audience): Go, Ron.
MR. CHAPMAN: No, I'm telling you-CHAIR MOLINA: Hang on, folks.
MR. CHAPMAN: --this is serious business now. I mean come on! This just don't make no sense when
you're going to sit up here and try--what, you got kids who want to work. I'm trying to sit up
here and trying to figure out what I'm going to do for my children. Okay? What I'm going to
give them. All right? I've been on this island 30 years, I'm not no newbie. Okay? I ain't going
sit up here and I ain't got no rooms to go travel someplace. I ain't living for Maui tomorrow, I
live for it today.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER (from the audience): Yeah!
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
MR. CHAPMAN: Okay? I mean I don't know what you're thinking about. Okay?
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. . . .(gavel). . . All right, guys.
MR. CHAPMAN: And you know what, I really, I'm just too emotional about this thing. Okay? All
right? Now I'm going to sit up here and you guys, come on, please ask me some questions,
Ms. Anderson, you know, because really, I really need you to.
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. CHAPMAN: Now I be, I really want you to tell me what I'm going to tell my children. Okay?
Come on, you asked these other guys questions. Ask me some. All right?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Chapman, are you done? All right. Thank you for your testimony,
Mr. Chapman
MR. CHAPMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions? Mr. Chapman? Mr. Chapman? Ron? Ron, come.
Okay. Member Anderson has some questions for you. Member Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chapman -MR. CHAPMAN: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --what job do you do for the Maui Prince Hotel?
MR. CHAPMAN: I work at the front desk, deal with guests all day long. Okay? All day. Okay. Their
problems, their needs, what they tell me about Maui and, you know, growth and all that. People
have all kind of issues, ma'am. Please, any more? Come on. Come on. Come on now, really.
Come on now, seriously.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Chapman, hang on. Hang on.
MR. CHAPMAN: No, because I'm serious, this is about my future for my children. Okay? I ain't
worried about nobody else but them.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Ron, hang on. Okay. We understand your passion. Member Anderson, do
you have any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think he answered the question. . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. CHAPMAN: Please, no.
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, any other questions for Mr. Chapman? Okay. Seeing none,
thank you for-AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. All right. . . .(gavel). . . Okay. All right, gang, help me out here. Okay.
Next, we have Ashley, and, Ashley, forgive me if I mispronounce your last name, is it
Kamili [sic]?
MS. KAOWILI: That's okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Sorry.
MS. KAOWILI: It's Kaowili.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. And followed by Kainoa Casco.
MS. KAOWILI: Okay. Good afternoon, County Council Members. Okay. First off, I'd like to present
to you some of the headlines of the newspaper that recently been published. Starting off from
today, if anybody's seen the Honolulu Advertiser, "The Economy Getting Worse State Says".
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This is on the headline. So and then also "New Forecast Predicts Bigger '08 Tourism Drop, No
Jobs Growth". But actually they kind of colored it for it you. It's pretty interesting, so you want
to read that. That's today's newspaper. Also Tuesday, November 18 th, The Maui News
"Citigroup Cuts 53,000 Jobs". That's horrible. That, that was sad. Also on November 18 th ,
"Healthcare Plans Facing Cost Crunch", that's also in the Honolulu Advertiser. The Maui News
on November 17 th, "County Ordered to Slice Spending, Departments Will Cut 16 Percent to Save
Around 55 Million". Also on November 17 th , the Honolulu Advertiser, "Layoffs Likely to
Deepen in the Year 2009". So these are just some examples that every day, you know, every day
it seems that I look in the newspaper or read it that there is a new or even more complicated issue
occurring or facing our economy today. Like we all know the unemployment rate is creeping up
along with the rate of foreclosure, creating homeless of jobless because mortgages can't be paid.
Also, we know unemployment is increasing as our income tax revenues are decreasing. For
example, our school, our public school system will not have enough money to pay simple things
like electricity or food or buses for the students. Also, the visitor industry is suffering which in
turn has caused hotel room taxes to go down. This is causing the County to cut spending. So the
biggest issues that Maui County will face in the upcoming year are issues related to the economy.
Makena Resort is a project that will help our economy in many ways. Hundreds of jobs will be
created in hospitality and construction which are two of Maui's most largest, biggest industries
that are severely suffering today. So all of Maui County's citizens will benefit from the increased
property tax revenues that this project will bring in. Please, I'm asking you to favorably vote for
the future of Maui, and please approve the Makena Resort Change in Zoning request. Mahalo a
nui.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ashley.
MS. KAOWILI: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any questions? Ashley? Ashley, can I ask you one question? Can you
just state your last name for the record for our Secretary?
MS. KAOWILI: Sure. It's Kaowili.
CHAIR MOLINA: Kaowili. Okay. Thank you very much. Next to testify, we have Kainoa Casco
followed by Dick Mayer.
MR. CASCO: . . .(change tape, start 3A). . . Members, my name is Kainoa Casco, born and raised in
Lahaina, Maui. I'm a Green Development Coordinator for Dowling Company. And after I
graduated from Lahainaluna High School, I went off to Portland, Oregon to go to college, and
while there, I worked for a green building company. I learned all the benefits of green building
and sustainability and the benefit it has to the economy, the environment, and the people. And so
when I was moving back to Hawaii after I graduated, I researched top organizations and
companies on Maui and in the State of Hawaii who were involved in green building and green
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development. And the, the leader that I found was Dowling Company. So they're the first
person I sent my resume and that I called who I wanted to work for when I was coming back
here, 'cause I wanted to make a difference here. I wanted to make sure that we build on Maui
the right way, because growth is inevitable and you have to grow the right way, and you have to
do it in a way that manages the effect on the environment. And so I actually had difficulty
finding any other developers or companies in Hawaii that were doing any kind of green building,
any kind of green development that even matched what Mr. Dowling is doing. You know, he
goes above and beyond what he's required to do and what others are doing right now. And I
think it would be a shame not to approve the Change in Zoning for the Makena Resort when they
are a leader in green development in the State of Hawaii. Some examples of what we're doing,
although we have an onsite wastewater treatment plant that's going to treat all the wastewater
from Makena, it's solar powered, the whole thing is going to be run off of solar power, and then
that water treated from that is going to be used towards irrigation and landscaping to reduce the
amount of fresh potable water that we need to drink. And all the buildings on the, at Makena
Resort will be LEED certified, which a DBEDT study showed to be 50 percent more energy
efficient than the Hawaii Model Energy Code. So that's, you're talking about reducing the need
for energy and oil. That's going to--I mean how do you argue with that? Also, we have the
storm water filters which all the storm water generated on site will go to a mechanical filtration
system and then will go into a, when it gets filtered through that we are, it's going to go into a
retention basin which is then going to reduce the amount of chemicals that go onto the reefs, go
onto the beach. 'Cause I know that's a big concern here. Growing up here I loved to dive, I
loved to surf and all that, so I care about the beach. I, it's hard to find anybody else in the State
of Hawaii that is taking those actions right now. We're eliminating toxic chemicals from
fertilizers for landscaping to reduce that runoff if it does run into the ocean. All the homes are
going to have solar panels on top to power the homes to reduce the need of energy and electricity
and reduce our foreign dependence on oil.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. CASCO: And so I've just, I support the Makena Resort Change in Zoning. I think we have to get
behind leaders like Mr. Dowling who are trying to be an example for a green development in
Hawaii. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Casco. Committee Members, questions? Hang on, Mr. Casco.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: Councilmember Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much for being, and congratulations on choosing
a field of the future -MR. CASCO: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and hopefully of the present. You mentioned that a certain
amount of the water from, well you didn't mention how much but you said water from the
sewage treatment plant will be recycled I'm assuming to R-1.
MR. CASCO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you have, for irrigation, do you know how much that would
amount to?
MR. CASCO: I, I don't have the numbers on that right now. I mean I'm sure it'll change depending on,
you know, how many, what kind of improvements we put at the resort. I-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you know how much you have to expand the wastewater
treatment plant?
MR. CASCO: I know right now we are, it's over, the capacity of it, it's over. . .is a lot more than what
we need right now, what we have right now, and I'm pretty sure that it, it will cover all of the
development at Makena Resort.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. CASCO: You're welcome.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Casco, you mentioned about the wastewater
treatment plant -MR. CASCO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --being powered by solar panels.
MR. CASCO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Do you know the wattage on that?
MR. CASCO: Oh. . .I, we do have it, I don't, I didn't memorize it. I don't have it with me right now.
But I can, if you ask me later, I can get that to you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Committee Members, any other questions for
Mr. Casco? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
MR. CASCO: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, we have Dick Mayer followed by Michael Howden.
MR. MAYER: Thank you, Council Members. My name is Dick Mayer. I gave to you, I'm going to be
doing two parts of my testimony. One, I'm going to speak on behalf of something the GPAC
wrote. I'm Vice-Chair of the General Plan Advisory Committee. Then, I'd like to make some
comments on my own separate from that. I passed out to you a resolution that was adopted by
the GPAC in, earlier this year, and in there they ask that you do not make these kinds of changes
at this stage until the General Plan Advisory Committee has had an opportunity to make its
recommendations. Right now we're looking at these issues and during the next week or two, the
next several weeks we'll be going very intensively into this area into South Maui as well as West
Maui to see where development should take place, where it shouldn't take place. And we're
going to be considering all of the factors such as water, highways, sewage, drainage, et cetera,
et cetera. And hopefully, we'll be able to give you a comprehensive recommendation. We're
also going to be looking at housing needs, et cetera, and we're asking you, please, do not make
these kind of decisions at this stage until you have the recommendations from us. That's the
statement I'd like to make just on behalf of the GPAC. It's a resolution that you have in front of
you.
My own comments now separate from that. I don't believe an approval is needed at this stage. I
think we have enough houses and units already entitled on this island to take care of our
immediate construction needs and for the construction needs into the future. And I'd like to give
one example, and that is right on this property itself. This site, even if you do no rezoning at all,
already has hundreds of acres of land, excuse me, yeah, something like 150 acres of land that's
already zoned for development. So if you did nothing, most of that is in A-2 zoning and some
A-1 zoning. At even eight, eight, eight units per acre we're probably talking about close to 1,000
units that could be built today to put these construction workers to work. I would like to see a
good faith effort on the part of the developer to build those units first, show what they can do,
show that they can do the right solar things and the water retention and the purification and avoid
drainage problems, et cetera, before we rezone for another 1,000 units. There's no need to give
that much at this time, because it basically would be land banked. There's no rush to do this at
this stage. We also have just up the street from there Wailea 670, 1,400 units. There are plenty
of jobs available in South Maui that can be built. We do not need to rezone at this moment. As
far as the developer himself and his track record, Mr. Dowling has a property up in Pukalani
which was rezoned for urban use for. . .in the Community Plan and he got the entitlement for it to
put up houses across from the Pukalani Triangle up there, that has not been built. Kulamalu was
approved already a decade ago, it's still has not been built out. There are many construction jobs
available even from this developer let alone from all of the other developments that are out there.
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With regard to the Prince Hotel employees, it's interesting how many of them have come here
today really, essentially paid for by the developer himself to be here. You don't see hotel
workers from Kaanapali here, from Wailea here, from all the other hotels up and down Kihei
saying, hey, we need more jobs. These are people paid to come before you. And to the Wailea
and to the Prince Hotel employees, I say to you, what do you think the traffic on that highway
will be if this project is built out? Do you think you'll be able to get to work quickly? That
highway cannot be widened anymore. And what we'll have then if this 1,000 units is added to
the 1,000 approximately that they probably already can build, we will total gridlock on that
highway for you getting to and from work, because there will probably be no affordable
housing -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. MAYER: --for you employees in that area. You will all be having to commute along that
particular thoroughfare. Lastly, it was earlier mentioned in the slide show, in the overhead that
this began in the year 1999 or 2000. I would like to show you a headline from a Maui
newspaper, "Save Makena and Makawao". This article was written in 1974. Save Makena. And
on here is a very lovely picture of Charlie Maxwell here as a. . . and, and he's quoted in here
extensively, and I'd like to read from the quote from my good friend Charlie Maxwell who was a
testifier at that meeting back in '74. And this was on one of the very first meetings on Makena.
He said, "Lahaina is a lost cause. We all, we all got to agree to that,". . .continuing. . .he said,
setting off a wave of applause. Maxwell warned that the same thing should not happen to -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. MAYER: --Makena. "The people of Maui will have to wake up now. This is their last
stronghold". His solution was to avoid inaction, "Let us not sit down on our okoles, on our
fannies. Let it be known that we are against this rezoning". As Maxwell sees it, and now
quoting again, "The local people are being pushed out while the Japanese tourists and the rich
haole people from the mainland can afford this, the types of homes that are being built".
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Mayer, I have to stop your testimony. You've already gone over the four
minute mark.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for Mr. Mayer. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman. I just want to take advantage of your
GPAC knowledge, Mr. Mayer. This recommendation is GPAC's recommendation not to this
specific project but to overall development on Maui that we hold off until the GPAC is done for
any large developments?
MR. MAYER: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And in this. . .well, first I wanted to ask you, your Maui Island
Plan which is going to set urban growth boundaries, do you have any drafts in mind? I mean has
a draft come forward from the Department to the GPAC yet?
MR. MAYER: Yes. We have it, we're working on a draft that was put together by the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So can you tell us right now if this area is included in the
urban growth boundaries?
MR. MAYER: In the draft it is, but it has not yet been reviewed by the, by the GPAC itself, and they
will be looking at that. And I know that we did a number of charettes in South Maui where the
residents of all of South Maui indicated a variation of we should be changing that urban growth
boundary from what was recommended.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And then in this testimony when you say "we", you're
talking about the GPAC?
MR. MAYER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They're requesting this "moratorium" because. . .until you guys
get your job done, because there are over 16,000 units which have already received entitlements
to build.
MR. MAYER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So do you know if those 16,000 units have water, if, if they've
gotten to the stage where they have received either a commitment for water or a water meter?
MR. MAYER: No, they have not. Not all of them by any means. Many of them would if--they have
land use entitlements, they do not have water, and the developer would have to come and show
me the water according to your regulations right now as I understand it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mayer.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, questions? Councilmember
Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Mayer, thank you for your testimony
and for your presence this morning. Being that you're on the GPAC and you're the vice-chair, I
believe, right.. .
MR. MAYER: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .can you give us an accurate projection of when the General Plan
and the Maui Island Plan will be completed and approved? How many years are we looking at?
MR. MAYER: The, the GPAC will be making its recommendation to you by the end of February,
March 1 st , and that's because of a unanimous extension that the Council gave to us to complete
our work. It will then go to the Planning Commission for their review, and then probably at the
end of 2009 it will come to the Council and it'll be up to you how fast you act to make that
approval. So conceivably you will have sometime, about this time next year you'll have a copy
of it on your desk with a much more comprehensive look at all of the land issues, not just South
Maui but all of the areas of Maui, urban growth boundaries, whether the infrastructure can
handle it, how much it would cost, those kinds of issues.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And I can appreciate your recommendation to wait for the General
Plan and the merits behind that. But in light of our economy and where we stand right now, do
you think that's realistic to stop everything until the General Plan is approved?
MR. MAYER: I think that was the point, that there are 16,000 that are already entitled, including this
developer has on this site. If you look at the lower part of your maps that he gave out this
morning, that pink area, those are all areas where he's not asking for changes. Those are all A-2
zoning already. He could go in tomorrow morning and apply for the development of those areas.
So. . .and that's 1,000, you know, eight times whatever the 150 acres all together on all that pink
area. He has a lot, lot of units that he could build today. So I don't think in any, your, your
inaction will not in any way stop development from taking place, not to mention Wailea 670
right up the street.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, so what you're saying is that those projects that have received
their entitlements and so forth should go forward, but anything that needs any kind of
Community Plan Amendment or zoning change should wait until the General Plan is being
reviewed and approved by the Council?
MR. MAYER: I think that was the request to the GPAC that we, we, because there are so many
developers who have come in to us--I mean this one that's coming to you now. But A&B, Maui
Land and Pine, and dozens of others have come in from all over the island who will be looking at
some of the same water sources. And I think it's up to the GPAC and eventually to the Council
obviously who will pass the fmal thing to decide which of those are really the best ones and
which ones can be best handled.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Mayer, I appreciate your testimony. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Mayer, for being here. And thank you to
you and your committee in regards to the GPAC and all of the work that you do. I'm looking on
-48-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

Page 2 and the thing that caught my eye is that, you know, you say we have entitlements for
16,000 units today.
MR. MAYER: Yes. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: How far back do we, or do you know, if you know, that these
entitlements for, you know, some of these projects has gone?
MR. MAYER: Many of them go very far back and have not been built. A lot, a lot of them are actually
right here in Kahului area. The Maui Lath project I think, I forget, 2,400, 2,500 units; Kehalani
another, well over 1,000 units still have not been built and are being built, the ones in both Maui
Lani--and so they are building out. Those jobs are there, they're entitled, they're closer to the
water supplies and will probably provide homes for a lot of local residents. The question will be
do we want to build? And that's the question that the GPAC will be wrestling with. I don't
know how the body's going to act. We'll be deciding, do we really want to build these kind of
residences that probably will be affordable, or would we want to build places down in Makena,
which I think most of us would agree will probably not be affordable. That will be the decision
you have to make.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So is it safe to say that some of these projects go back probably 1980 or
maybe late 1970?
MR. MAYER: Yes. And, and like Maui Lath as I said, they all of a sudden, they got a huge number
well over, I think over 3,000 units and they've been building them, but they still have a lot more
that they can build.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes. Thank you. Thank you for that information. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Just real quick, Chair. Dick, do you know of the entitled
lands that Dowling has in projects that you mentioned, how many units that translates to?
MR. MAYER: I, I looked at the pink map, the map that you had in front of you this morning-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. No. No. Not for Makena Resort, but like Kulamalu and all
the other projects that he has. One Palauea Bay and, and...
MR. MAYER: Yeah, the Palauea Bay, I don't know. The one up in Pukalani I believe there are about
80 units, 70-80, something in that range, units that he has the entitlement for that. On his own
project in Kulamalu there's a large shopping area that has been very slowly being built, and then
what did happen was, and I didn't mention in my testimony, but there was a senior citizen
housing project that was supposed to be built there. And rather than building that senior citizen
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housing, he sold the land off to another developer who put up houses which are not senior
friendly at all which were, were sold off. There was a slight opening for I think for 90 days that
seniors could buy in there; after that, they're just market sold prices. So, you know, I think you,
you have to look at this very, very carefully. That, that's...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you know how many units at Kulamalu haven't been built yet?
MR. MAYER: A lot of those units that were originally on the proposal were not built because the land
was sold off to Kamehameha School for their school site. So that's over 100 acres of that land.
There was some housing built, but I don't know how many more houses will be built there.
There's, there's a lot of commercial space left.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. 'Cause he's got water.
MR. MAYER: Uh-huh, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Any other questions for Mr. Mayer? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony.
MR. MAYER: Thank you and good luck, Council Members.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Next to testify, we have Michael Howden followed by LaJon Weaver.
MR. HOWDEN: Chairman Molina, Council Members, I'm Michael Howden. I'm a member of the
Maui County Board of Water Supply. I'd like to comment on a few issues surrounding the
proposed rezoning, the first of which is that we really have no water in the public system.
There's no redundancy in the County systems. That was known, I believe, to all of you from
April on of this year. Ellen Kraftsow who's head of Water Resources Division appeared before
the Maui County Board of Water Supply and very painstakingly pointed out to us that we're not
simply short of water Upcountry, but we're short in both Central and South and also West Maui.
The developments especially in South Maui for Wailea, for instance, you have over 2,000 gallons
a day used per capita in Wailea as opposed to Mayor Tavares' mom who uses just 100 gallons a
day up in Kula. And I'd like to also speak to what Kainoa Casco said in terms of green belt,
green building, and green development. It appears to me as a person who's worked with
sustainable design for about 40 years now that green building. . .it, it seems strange that when
you're building makai of the road and you know that anything that washes off that property will
deteriorate our nearshore waters and our reefs, that's not really green building. You have green
building and, and your, and you're destroying archeological and cultural landscapes? That's not
green building. The impacts in that whole area, I mean all the contentious arguments around
Wailea 670 and that the strong opposition of the South Maui community to these developments
-50-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

was based on the impacts on these communities and on our natural resources. I think that, that
Councilmember Victorino's motion I think was very well intentioned, especially in terms of our
economy at present. But I think it's misguided in terms of the impact that it will have, the lasting
impacts on our community and our cultural resources. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Howden. Committee Members, questions? Councilmember
Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. Thank you, Mr. Howden, for being here this
morning. In regards to your statement regarding redundancy, water, you got any ideas how we
should do that?
MR. HOWDEN: Well, the simple solution seems, and the mantra that most people repeat, is drill. But
when you have USGS reporting a rise in salinity of more than 200 feet in the Iao and Waihee
Aquifers within about 20 years, and these aquifers are the great engine for development in
Central and South Maui. And now, of course, the West Maui Na Wai Eha is a designated area, so
we're really uncertain of what our water resources are. And I think as an early, earlier testifier
pointed out, a lot of this is guesswork, even Mink's work as a hydrologist is, is subject to further
scrutiny. I think as an island community we really need to follow Hawaiian tradition and value
above everything else our water resources.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that statement. Chairman, if I can ask him one more
question?
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. What do you think about integration?
MR. HOWDEN: . . .How do you mean?
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Systems, water systems.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Integration of water systems, integrating East Maui watershed to
provide resources to Upcountry as well as Central Maui.
MR. HOWDEN: I think the first step toward meaningful integration would be for the County to take
action through eminent domain to secure permanent and open access to the water resources of
East Maui. It is a complex question. Na Kua'aina, the traditional homesteaders and native
Hawaiians in East Maui, have been absolutely deprived much to their detriment of, of their
entitlements to the running waters. The watershed itself has deteriorated considerably. The
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nearshore waters and the reef systems and the fishing have all deteriorated. So I think that you,
you want to work out a meaningful balance. But if you want to begin, you need to, the County
needs to take control and have the political will to take control of these water resources.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, any other questions for Mr. Howden?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Seeing none, and good to you see again, Mr. Howden, and thank you for your
service on the Water Board. We know your job isn't easy serving on that board as well.
MR. HOWDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Next we to testify, we have LaJon Weaver followed by
Earl Bialeck.
MS. WEAVER: Hi. Thank you for having this meeting. I feel quite disturbed about this whole
development that's going in, and I really appreciate that it didn't just get slipped through last
week and that we have a chance to tell our feelings about it. I'd like to request an extension on
my time after everybody else has spoken if I don't finish. I just flew in from Kauai. My mother
is having surgery and I wanted to be here to speak. I don't feel, I'd like to research a lot more.
Do I have. . .?
CHAIR MOLINA: Do you want to, I guess, decline your opportunity right now and come back at a
later time?
MS. WEAVER: No, no. I want to speak now and ask for the-CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. You have up to four minutes to, to speak.
MS. WEAVER: And then isn't there also something that we can-CHAIR MOLINA: No. We're not going to provide that option today because we have about another
100 testifiers to go through. So please continue.
MS. WEAVER: Okay. Well, there's so much planned to be developed, and we need to work on more
conditions and take our time because it's not something to rush into. I know, I have empathy for
everybody that is afraid about their jobs. This is something that it's not just a shortsighted thing.
It's something that, what about 1,000 years from now? You know? It needs, Maui needs to be a
beautiful place. It's not just supposed to be Oahu. We already have Oahu and Waikiki, and I
don't understand why people from the Prince are saying that oh, it's important to have this
development to get tourists here, because the reason the tourist come to Maui is because there's
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still some beauty left here. And it's just seems like there is myths about jobs and about just
different issues that are going on here. We need to really take our time and work on conditions.
Even what about Wailea 670? That's rushed through and this is kind of like a smoke screen for
that, because we still need to work on issues for that development and all the other ones. The
people who think that this is going to be good for their jobs, I think they're going to have to fly
in all kinds of construction workers from the mainland. This is really going to be a disadvantage
for all of you. Makena Resort will be in charge of planning the future of Makena State Park. Is
that scary or what? I mean it's already been proven that sure Dowling says he's green, but
there's so many examples about things that he does to slip through this and that.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. WEAVER: There's all the things, all kinds of, the track record here by Rob Parsons of another one
of his projects, grading more than 15 acres all at once, raising the grade as much as 20 feet, final
grading blueprint unsigned by the Planning Director, kiawe cutting and grading in archeological
area. It goes on and on. And the water scenario, all of this is like the US Geological Survey
Regional Director said at one point, this is a train-wreck scenario. And I think that if all of us
could look at like 1,000 years from now. . .let's, just looking at right now, I mean is it, the people
who want jobs -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. WEAVER: --does that mean all the way until every square inch is filled? We need to have some
more planning and have committees to help the Council to make their decisions, 'cause it can't
be possible for all of you to just make a decision with what research has been done already. We
all need to help. That's my extra minute already?
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Ms. Weaver, I have to stop your testimony. Yeah. Your four minutes
are up. Okay. We have a question for you from Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The USGS quote that you just said, this is a train-wreck scenario.
MS. WEAVER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What was that in reference to?
MS. WEAVER: Well it's in, it was May 2002, as an early warning of growing world water crisis, an
article about Hana, Hawaii. On the paradise island of Maui, where some of the world's heaviest
rains pelt lush peaks, scientists say big users squander water so badly that main wells may soon
be contaminated by salt, even where there's the most water on the island. And it was a William
Meyer who had . . . (change tape, start 3B). . . the regional director that said that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and what's the name of that article or the, where it's, where
you got it?
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MS. WEAVER: Water, this is one is from savemakena.org or net. I forget which one. . . . (chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All right. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, any other questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you, Ms. Weaver.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, we have Earl Bialeck followed by Zeke Kalua.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: How long we going to go till?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Members, the Chair is aware of the time. I know there's some stomachs that
are growling out there. I'd like to ask for your indulgence, Members. I'd like to take this up to
12:30 if possible, unless there's objections. Members, can I have some feedback? I see some
faces changing. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are we going to get an hour and a half break -CHAIR MOLINA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --if we go to 12:30?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, 12:30. And the Chair was looking at 12:30 and coming back at 2:00.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your indulgence, Members. Okay. We have, again,
Earl Bialeck. Not here? Okay. We shall move on. We have Zeke Kalua followed by
Chisa Dizon.
MR. KALUA: Can everybody hear me all right? Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead, Zeke. Good.
MR. KALUA: Good almost noonish, Chair, Members of the Committee, Council Members, and
everybody that's here today. My name is Ezekiela Kalua and I've many other hats, but today I'm
just going to speak as an individual. I just wanted to apologize if I offended anybody earlier by
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shushing outside in the hall, but it's really hard to hear in here. Also, I want to thank everybody
that came here today for or against the project because this is, this is what we do as a community,
and we cannot let a hidden screen of development divide us in that kind of way. I'm opposed to
the project, but I would still shake hands with any one of you that are for it 'cause you're all
entitled to your opinion. I think the one thing that's really not being spoken about today is
sprawl. Sprawl. This County has enveloped a lot of time in the smart growth communities and
infill, that's why we're working on urban growth boundaries. That's why we're working on
things like that that's going to help make Maui a stronger community. Everything has been
talked about, about they're going to have their own sewage plant. They have to have their own
sewage plant. They have to. We don't have the capacity in that area. They want to put in a
desalination plant. They have to put in a desalination plant, there's no water in the area. Okay?
Let's stop being, you know, shielded by all of this. . .well, you know, they're doing such a good
thing. They have to do these things. They have to. It's not I want to. They're not being
applauded for taking technology that's been used all over the world and imploring it here to be
the first in Maui. They have to. Otherwise, they cannot build the development. You know
Everett Dowling is not a bad man I'm not here to make his name (inaudible). . . anything.
He's not, he's done a lot of good things for the community. He's providing a lot of these people
with jobs whether it be this development or another one, and that's needed right now. The
economy and the nation is suffering right now. But the bottom line, people, is that being a
person from Lahaina, two hours of waiting in traffic, makes your experience at the hotel suck.
And when we get one accident on the Pali that makes the traffic back up for four to six hours and
people miss their flight and then have to pay $1,000 more above what they had planned on their
vacation budget just to get home, it sucks. And people hate that. That's why they hate starting
to come to Maui. They hate it because it's not Maui anymore. Oahu already is Disneyland,
okay? We want to be Knott's Berry Farm over here. Okay?
AUDIENCE: . . . (laughter).. .
MR. KALUA: We want to be different. Okay? We want to, we want to still be the best island in the
community. Construction workers, I love you and I respect what you do. Hotel workers, the
same thing. You know, I used to work construction. I stopped because I was like, you know
what, there's somebody else that needs this job more than I do, and I'm doing something else.
And I'm 32 years old, about to be 33, and I've never owned a home in my life other than when I
was on the mainland, and you know what, it sucks. It sucks that there's more people than in the
County of Maui in Las Vegas right now, and if you ask them if they want to be there, they going
tell you they don't want to. But money is the root of all evil and it's also what put some of our
kids through schools. That's also what puts food on our table, pays for our utilities, and allows
us to own homes. And you know what, if I'm going to be a renter for the rest of my life but with
the option to at least go to Makena and enjoy it, that's how I want it to be.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. KALUA: And there are compromises out there, construction workers, there are. Lance Holter and
Dick Mayer already told you about all the other entitlements that this developer, one of many,
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already has. The question you guys should taking back to Mr. Dowling is why we cannot build
over there instead? If we can build Kulamalu tomorrow, why we cannot build over there
instead? And I'll tell you again, people, we're not against you. We just know that without
Hawaiian culture and culturally specific places, Hawaii going become Disneyland. It's just like
the sticker said, Malama Makena, Nuff Already.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kalua.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Nice to see you, Zeke. Were you saying that there are more local
people living in Vegas now than there are on the island of Maui?
MR. KALUA: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KALUA: The last census was almost 185,000 registered.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And are they registered as, you're talking about Las Vegas? Are
you. . .those aren't native Hawaiians, those are local residents of Maui?
MR. KALUA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wow.
MR. KALUA: It's not even a Hawaiian thing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. KALUA: Japanese, Filipino, haole--it's everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. KALUA: And, and most of those people are from Maui. They're not born in Oahu and moved
here because they wanted a smaller atmosphere. I mean that, they're forced to move with what
they know is going to feed their family.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Affordable life?
MR. KALUA: Affordable life.
-56-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Any other questions for Mr. Kalua? Seeing
none, mahalo for your testimony, Zeke.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Chisa. . .next to testify, Chisa Dizon followed by Lisa Judge. Chisa, I hope I
pronounced your name correctly. Forgive me if I didn't. Thank you.
MS. DIZON: It's Chisa, but it's okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. DIZON: At least it's not Cheetos or something. . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. DIZON: All right. My name's Chisa and I am born and raised on Kauai. I've lived here for a
couple of years now looking for work, like everybody else in this room. Okay. I just want to
again beg the Council to please have a meeting at night in Kihei so we can be here more in
numbers, people who are opposing this. Okay. I just, I keep it pretty simple because I don't
know everything that's going on, but I'm a bodyboarder, or I try to be one, and I love going
down Oneloa, Big Beach, and I think that some of you guys like to do that, too. How would you
like to be swimming and you see all kind rubbish in the water? Okay. Fecal matter, aka doo
doo. Get plenty in the water already, choke. It's disgusting that we're just polluting our water
like that, and that's how it's affecting me personally. I've spoken to many tourists--I do nails at
the Four Seasons, one the best hotels I think, and they don't want to come over here if we have
all this development going on. They want to keep it like this. If you guys want more
development, go Honolulu, build over there. We want you guys to be busy building things that
we need, things that will benefit us in the future. All this archeological sites, all these heiaus, all
these awesome sites that get all over that land, it's such a shame that we would just build on that.
That is so like, it's disrespect to your kupuna, your elders, you know, your ancestors that's on
that land. I would never think about building on my tutu's grave, never. I can't even speak of it.
I think that is just so dirty. We need to take care of this aina, we need to take care of our land, it
will give back to us. You guys going get a couple fat paychecks guarantee, you guys going be
able to afford your Explorers and your Hummers and whatever you guys going buy, big screen
TVs. But is that really all that necessary? We need to just live within our means. I'm broke, just
like everybody else. I have nothing. I'm a single mother, too, trying to support my family. I
haven't worked in two weeks, they shut off my cellphone already. But I'm going to do what's
pono, I'm going to do what's right. I'm not going to stand by everybody who like build on, on
these heiaus, not to mention, yeah, the birds and the endangered species and all that. Protect
them, yeah, but we need to take care of our number one and aloha is ohana. Basically being
Hawaiian is all about being with our family. I don't have much, but I going try give you guys as
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much as I have. And if we all do that, we all going take care. I have nothing, come and have
nothing with me. We can make something together. We can grow off the land, we can grow
sweet potato. This big girl likes French fries. I know a couple of people like French fries, too.
We can grow potatoes and make our own French fries.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. DIZON: We can. . .there's so much things we can do on this land, not cement, not another
mountain of cement for people who are looking for--what was it?--the finest second home
community in the western hemisphere. Second home. I don't even have one home. I going get
evicted next month. I'm going be honest. For real. Aloha. We're supposed to be a lot of aloha.
And I just was making shishi and I seen this big poster, aloha, akahai, lokahi, 'olu' olu, ha' aha' a,
ahonui. Kindness, unity, agreeable, humility, modesty, patience, and perseverance. If we all
stand together, brothers and sisters, brah, I going give everything that I get to you guys. If we all
do that together, we will preserve the land. We will, the land will take care of us.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. DIZON: Done.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chisa.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony, Chisa. Next to testify, we have Lisa Judge followed by Lala Caballero.
MS. JUDGE: Good afternoon, Committee Chair Molina and Council Members. I'm Lisa Judge. I am
currently a State Land Use Commissioner. I'm also Principal Broker of Makena Bay Properties
and a former Planning Director. But I'm here today to speak as a private citizen. After reading
some recent editorials in The Maui News and listening to some of today's testimony, it's clear to
me that some people don't understand that Makena already has zoning and that the application
presently before you is just to make the zoning consistent with the Kihei-Makena Community
Plan that was adopted by the Council back in 1998. And just a little background. As Dick
Mayer said, the Makena Resort started in December of 1974, when the land was changed from
Agriculture to Urban by the State Land Use Commission. The County granted zoning just a few
years later. The Makena Resort was discussed in the 1980 General Plan and it's also in the 1985
Kihei-Makena Community Plan. The application that you are considering today is a result of the
changes that were made to the 1998 Kihei-Makena Community Plan. And as many of you may
recall, the adoption of that plan was not a simple matter. It took over six years with 19 citizen
advisory committee meetings, multiple Planning Commission meetings, several of which were
held in Kihei, several Land Use Committee meetings, literally six years of meetings and fmally
culminating on March 6, 1998, with the County Council adopting the Kihei-Makena Community
Plan Now if you look at the plan on Page 43, under Planning Standards, under the heading Land
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Use Standard, it mandates that all zoning applications and/or proposed land uses shall be
consistent with the land use map attached to the Kihei-Makena Community Plan So in 1999, the
applicant submitted this application to do just that, to bring the zoning into conformance with the
new Community Plan Now again if you look to the Community Plan on Page 41, under the
section on government implementation, it tells us that the government is supposed to implement
the Community Plan by modifying present zoning to incorporate the land use guidelines in the
new plan. So, again, in 2000 the Council did just that. The Land Use Committee had held
several meetings and recommended approval of this application with 41 conditions. The
problem is, is that the full Council has never taken action on that Committee recommendation in
the last eight years. So as an aside, I have to chuckle when people say that Makena is being fast
tracked when in fact this application has been pending for eight long years. And another public
misconception, it seems that people seem to think that this is the last approval before some
construction will begin. Now anyone familiar with the County process knows that -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. JUDGE: --this is only the very beginning for any development. Any construction will require
many more permits, either SMA permits, subdivision approvals, building permits, all of which
require further State and County reviews and approvals. And lastly, and I'll wrap this up, it's
also disturbing to see the letters disparaging the developer. I would just like to remind the
community that the Dowling Company has been a great citizen of the County of Maui. In
cooperation with the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands they have built over 400 homes for
Hawaiian families in Waiehu and Lahaina. And in the last three years the Dowling Community
Foundation has given over $3.5 million to dozens of Maui organizations, with over 1 3 million
going towards educational needs. So in conclusion, it has taken over eight years to approve
something that is consistent with the Kihei-Makena Community Plan, something that should be
just a matter of procedure. Now is the time to take action.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. JUDGE: I humbly ask that you vote today and approve this application to make the Makena zoning
conform to the Kihei-Makena Community Plan, and I thank you all for your time.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Judge. Councilmember Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Ms. Judge, for being here. Just to further clarify the
misconception that's out there, the Makena rezoning was approved by the Land Use Committee
with 41 conditions. And the reason it has not come forward to the Council is because the owner
refused to sign a unilateral agreement to those conditions, and that's a requirement of our County
Code in order to bring something forward for first reading, they have to sign an agreement that
gets filed with the Bureau of Conveyances and runs with the deed on the land. And they refused
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to do that, and that's the reason it never came forward for final approval. It's not the fault of this
body, and I just want to make that very clear for everyone.
MS. JUDGE: Okay. Thank you for that clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MS. JUDGE: It's my understanding, too, that the, that the developer now is-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The current owner has now sent forward a unilateral agreement
with some changes, so that's why we have to review that again.
MS. JUDGE: Okay. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other questions? Councilmember Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Judge, for being here. I was wondering if
you can leave a copy of your testimony for the Members?
MS. JUDGE: Oh, absolutely. Yes. Can I just clean it up 'cause I've got like lots of notes, or would you
like it in this handwritten format?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Handwritten format is good.
MS. JUDGE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. JUDGE: Will do. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Any other questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Ms. Judge. Next to testify, we have Lala Caballero
followed by Bonnie Newman.
MS. CABALLERO: Aloha all. My name is Lala Caballero and I live in Kihei. The reason why I chose
to speak during this hearing is to voice my opinion and thoughts of Maui, and as well as my
future on this beautiful island. I grew up on the mainland in the Bay area and it took me a long
time to get here. With God's help I'm here and this is where I choose to make my home and
hopefully die. I feel obligated to voice my opinions and my questions to all. . .to the future of
Makena, which is at stake of losing so many natural and beautiful wonders that God has
presented to us, now chosen for the rich to enjoy and exclude all the local folks who live here.
And the concern for me is I surf at Big Beach. What happens when the runoff from the
pesticides come to the beach? What happens when the sea life is affected. . .when something
happens and who knows, you know, tsunami or whatever? If the fish, if we cannot eat the fish,
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what's going to happen to us, you know? Where will the sewage pumps dump their waste?
Where will all the new people park at Big Beach? Will I be welcomed and will all your families
be welcomed in this community and in its shopping mall, or will we all just be workers who sell
to the rich and go to our side of town at the end of our shifts? Would you feel comfortable
demolishing your family's livelihood? My grandmother's dream was to come back home and
die here, and she never made it. And I speak on behalf of her and behalf of you. This is not a
Hawaiian thing. This is people who love the aina. My support and blessings to all the carpenters
and construction workers because we all need jobs, we all need to eat, we all need to feed our
families. And we respect you all and we all want you to work. If the business people are truly
concerned about money in the hands of local families, do not outsource out of our local union.
We want something in writing to show that our men and women will have jobs and not people
from other islands and other states or wherever. The people in Maui need to feed their families,
so take care of our men and women. Keep, keep local families working and off unemployment.
Do we really need another high end resort or a timeshare? Occupancy levels are at the lowest
sine 9/11 with no signs of things coming back anytime soon.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. CABALLERO: Shouldn't we as a community save the aina? I've spoken to many tourists and
they were very upset due to development. Why come to Maui if this company wants to turn it
into another Waikiki? At least 50 percent if not more rely on tourist dollars to make our living.
If they stop, if they stop coming here due to the natural beauty of this land, what's going to
happen to all of us? Where will we work? What will we do? I would like to leave you with a
scripture from Ezekiel. "The word of the Lord came to me, son of man, the inhabitants of these
waste places in the land of Israel keep saying, Abraham was only one man, yet he got possession
of the land; but we are many." God bless everybody who needs a job and take care of the aina.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Caballero. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, we have Bonnie Newman followed by
Lili Townsend, and Ms. Townsend will be the last testifier before we take our afternoon break.
Proceed, Ms. Newman.
MS. NEWMAN: Aloha and mahalo, Council people, for all you do for all us. So I have gratefully lived
on Maui for over 22 years, and for the last almost 19 years, I have been a member of the Realtors
Association of Maui. I have been a licensed realtor salesperson all that time. I'm a rare realtor
who doesn't want any more high-end properties built, and I'll tell you why. Yesterday, I spent
hours doing research in our multiple listing system to give you some real facts. Because I agree
with a lot, that many of the other people opposed to the further development and rape of this aina
have already said, but I want to just add this, these facts for you. And by the way, I have
printouts, a couple of copies from the multiple listing systems to verify what I'm about to say. In
South Kihei, but primarily in Wailea and Makena, on the market actively right now that is
they're, they're listed active in the multiple listing systems. There are 145 high-end condos over
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$1 million now for sale, 145. Of that, there are only two in escrow. So, do we need any more
high density condos, I ask you? In the Hoolei new development opposite the Grand Wailea,
which is already an eyesore, there are 23 on the market for sale. This has not been built out yet,
there are more to be built. Talk about the rape of the aina, and do you think that the people really
want to be there, so dense they are? I've been in a lot of them. And the Kai Malu in Wailea has
24 actively on the market for sale right now. This is also not yet finished building, and I could
go on and on. Again, there's 145 already high density condos over $1 million and they go up to
$20 million in Makena on the market. Do we need any more? Absolutely not. Because as you
very well know, there's hardly a person who resides on Maui that can afford to buy any of these.
It's only people from the mainland and other parts of the world who come in with their money
and their second, third, and fourth homes. So talking about homes, we have presently on the
market in Wailea and Makena 40 homes actively for sale over $1 5 million, and again they go up
to $20 million. Of those, there are only two in escrow right now. Plus over a million and a half,
there's 17 active on the market in Kihei. So that's a total of 55 homes already on the market
right now. Again, no one who lives here can afford to buy. Second, third, and fourth houses,
there is no way to know how many sit vacant all year long except for maybe two or three months
a year. They're like ghost houses. They are keeping landscapers busy and housekeepers before
they come to spend their one or two months a year here. So only very wealthy, not the residents,
can afford what is proposed to be built here.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. NEWMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MS. NEWMAN: So I'm just going to say, again, I have copies if anyone would want any of these lists,
and that, these are real hard facts, folks, plus the 16,000 already approved, plus what he's already
got entitlements for. I don't think we need to give Mr. Dowling anymore. He's got plenty to do
for many, many years, and there's many jobs for all the people that want jobs. We don't need to
further rape the aina. So I ask you, please, to have the courage to do what is right to do here,
what is pono, to stop the further rape of this very sacred land in Makena because once it's gone,
there just is no more. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Newman.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony. Members, prior to recognizing Ms. Townsend's testimony, Committee Secretary, we
received an e-mail from Chairman Hokama, I believe it was yesterday, regarding he would be a
little late at 9:30. Have we had any updates as to his presence to our meeting today?
MS. FRIAS: No, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I'd like to ask Staff to follow up to see if Mr. Hokama will be joining us for
the rest of our proceedings this afternoon and possibly this evening. To the rest of you, I want to
thank you all for being here for the meeting this morning. Okay. Ms. Townsend, proceed.
MS. TOWNSEND: Hi, I'm Lili Townsend. Thank you very much for having us all here this morning.
I'm an ocean person and I've been fortunate to swim in many oceans around the world, but I
always come home to Maui, and I'm always so thrilled to see our pristine reefs. And it worries
me very much just swimming in front of the Prince the other day, I couldn't see anything, there
was so much material in the water. And this is material that kills our reefs, and I'm very
concerned that we need to look forward to the future where we can have pristine oceans. And all
of these runoffs that we're talking about are taking its toll every single day. Maui, Bonnie has
given us some really good facts about the kinds of real estate that's available here. Let's not
build anymore. Let's just urge our Council Members to vote with an eye to the future, take the
courage to vote for the future for our grandchildren and for the beauty of our island. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Townsend. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you. And thank you, I want to thank everybody in the audience for
conducting yourselves in a very civil matter. It's much, much appreciated. And thank you for
showing respect to all of our testifiers. When we come back from our break, Ray Van Wagner
and Samson Harp will be the first two individuals to testify. So, Members, we will take a break
until 2:00 p.m. This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS: 12:29 p.m.
RECONVENE: 2:04 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: . . .(gavel). . . The Land Use Committee meeting for Wednesday,
November 19, 2008 is now back in session. Thank you very much for that break, Members. I
think we, all of us, the Members and, of course, our friends in the gallery needed the break to
reenergize ourselves. And I want to especially thank Daniel and Claire for that wonderful spam
musubi. It was certainly delicious, and I hope I don't get myself in trouble with any animal
activist groups, as Mr. Victorino probably is well aware. But thank you so much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Mr. Chair, I will say I did not take the spam musubi out of
respect for PETA. . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: . . .(chuckle). . . Okay. Well, we got you on record for that, Mr. Victorino. Thank
you. All right. We have a long day and possibly early evening we're looking at, Members. So
we're going to go right ahead and continue with our public testimony on Land Use Item 37. And
for the record, for this session we have in attendance Councilmember Anderson, Councilmember
Baisa, Councilmember Medeiros, Councilmember Victorino, and yours truly, your Chair Mike
Molina, and entering the room Councilmember Danny Mateo. We have Ray Van Wagner
followed by Samson Harp to provide public testimony. Ray Van Wagner, are you around? Okay.
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We shall move on. And, Members, for the record we have 132 signups. We have completed 40.
Okay. So we've got, still got a ways to go. Yes, Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks, Chair. If I could just ask real quickly. In the past when
we call people who aren't here, you give them a second chance before we close public
testimony.. .
CHAIR MOLINA: The Chair will consider that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: . . .in case they're still having lunch or moving their car or
whatever?
CHAIR MOLINA: The Chair will be open to that consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Next, we have Samson Harp followed by Leia Kahaleauki.
MR. HARP: Aloha, everybody. My name is Samson Harp. Mahalo for giving me the opportunity to
speak on behalf of the. . .my birthplace, the island of Maui, which I love so much. It's hard for
me to watch our aina sliced up and slaughtered for profit especially in these sanctuaries to which
should be protected for all of our future generations to enjoy. I hear all sides of the debate and
I'm sympathetic on both sides. People talk about jobs and, of course, I want jobs for our Maui
residents, our ohana. Over the last couple years all I've been seeing is our friends, ohana, and
people struggle because they don't have jobs, and the terrible thing is that our people are
struggling even with jobs. But what's worse is I see a lot of Maui residents that are jobless while
I see out-of-state people thriving here in the workforce. I asked the question why and is there
anything that can be done to keep our kamaaina and Maui residents alike in these jobs? It seems
to me and makes sense that it could possibly be that cheaper labor equals more profit to the
developer and their shareholders. Now, eh, I don't know the, I don't know the answers to that,
but hopefully someone, if anyone knows this can share with us today in your testimony, I would
really . . . (change tape, start 4A). . . these questions. I hear people talking about homes and yes,
I agree the affordable housing for the hardworking Maui ohanas, but only if they are truly
affordable. Now I like ask one question. How many people in here can afford $2,500 a month
mortgage on top of everything else, you know, talking medical bills, car bills, needs for your
children, et cetera? I don't know anybody in my family that can afford that, and that's the kind
of prices these houses are going to go for. If you can build housing our Maui residents and
kamaaina can afford, then solid, God bless you guys. But no deceive the people and hide million
dollar homes, shopping malls, and golf courses behind the notion of affordable housing. I refuse
to live in an older time and state of mind that a kanaka is better to be seen, not heard. I
understand that the great reality that jobs are needed for our people, while I know in your hearts
you don't want to destroy cultural sites that could be used in the perpetuation of our Hawaiian
culture, build golf courses for people to play on our kupuna iwi, and have shopping malls with
heiaus as centerpieces and backgrounds. And if you're all okay with that, then I like ask how do
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you guys sleep at night? That's just pilau. I know times are hard and people need to kokua their
ohana. I know everyone has keiki and I'm here for them, and I'm here to protect these places for
all of our keiki to enjoy in the future. I no like Makena look like South Kihei Road. We are
running out of places for our kamaaina and malihini alike to enjoy in our hectic life of paper
chasing. We need these places to rejuvenate our souls. Please, aunties and uncles, no destroy
these godly places, we don't have much left. Another point is that we really. . .that we rely
primarily on tourism, and over the last two years of talking story with them, the commercialism
and development are making them consider vacationing on less developed islands. We don't
need two Oahus. I still can't believe that Maui came this far and for what it seems to be for
profit and greed.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. HARP: Bottom line, I don't disagree with development. It's probably going to happen because the
horrible fact is money talks. But I firmly disagree on the questionable development, where they
want to do it and what the developers really stand for. In closing, if the inconceivable decision is
already made for building, then at least you owe the jobs to our kamaaina and residents alike. I'd
like to say mahalo again. I pray Akua guides you for a righteous decision. Aloha kakou.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Samson.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to
testify, we have Leia Kahaleauki followed by Hoku Faye.
MS. KAHALEAUKI: Aloha. My name is Leia Nahenahe Kahaleauki, and I'm against the building
through Makena. I'm proud to say that I'm an ancestor of the Poepoe's and Kukahiko's. Along
with me and myself, we're from Makena. Growing up was always an enjoyment. . .to enjoy
what Makena has to offer. Makena has shaped me to be the person I am today. Let's keep Maui
our home, leave what's left untouched. My ancestors lay throughout Makena and in respect
we've let them be. If the economy is failing, let's do something, put our lives of accommodating
the tourists aside and do what is needed for us. I understand the situation for the needed of more
jobs, but us, as Hawaiians, we need to do what is pono. That's it. Thanks.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Leia.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Next
to testify, we have Hoku Faye followed by Sherianne Kaulia.
MS. FAYE: Aloha and mahalo for letting me to speak today. My name is Hoku Faye. I am 21 years old
and I am born and raised on Maui. And I'm speaking on behalf of myself, my ohana and
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preserving this land that I hold dear to my heart. My family is from Makena. That's where their
burials are, that's where I grew up swimming, and I just enjoy it a lot and I don't want to see
development done on the land. I understand the needs for jobs and for the affordable housing,
but I don't understand if that's going to help enough. Because who's to say if the people that
build these buildings are going to be people from Maui? I mean you can always bring in people
from Oahu and everywhere else. And I mean affordable housing, what is affordable? Because to
me I can't afford nothing right now. . . . (chuckle). . . But I don't know, I just think if the plan
goes through, I mean, what beauty will we have left? Because to me that side is untouched, it
still has all the land there as you need and I think it's beautiful the way it is. Building on it is not
going to do much for us. So that's why I'm against the, sorry, that is why I'm against it, you
know. I just want to keep it the same as it always has been. I want my children to see it, if I
have any, you know, I want them to grow up how I did, and that's it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Hoku.
MS. FAYE: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony. Next to testify, we have Sherianne Kaulia followed by William Sakugawa-Souza, Jr.
MS. KAULIA: Aloha. My name is Sherianne Lokelani Kaulia, and I just like to say I hope you guys no
build on the rest of our land, what we get left, the rest of our joy, you know. And coming from
one root family, we kanaka, you know, we stand up for our rights, and hopefully you guys can
see what the other kanakas out there was telling you guys 'cause, you know, I know you guys
just trying for, you know, make more jobs. But the job going end soon and what we going have,
you know? You guys going build around our sacred grounds and we need that, you know. So
aloha. Hope you guys take that in mind.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mahalo, Sherianne.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to
testify is William Sakugawa-Souza, Jr. and prior to hearing testimony, formally the Chair would
like to recognize Councilmember Johnson as well as Councilmember Pontanilla joining us for
our afternoon proceedings. William Sakugawa-Souza, Jr.? Okay. He had to leave? Okay.
We'll move on. Desmond Yap followed by Mark Hyde. Desmond? Desmond? Is he on the
way? Yep. I believe I see him coming.
MR. YAP: Okay. Aloha. I just going stand here be silent little while.
MS. CLUBB (from the audience): It's okay, Desmond.
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MR. YAP: Yeah, it is okay. Get plenty that has been said already and you heard from two sides, and it's
up to you. It's in your hands now. We reap what we sow. Once the land is developed, cannot go
back. But if it's still there, it's still there to be developed. You see? Get the future and we get
the past, and we get right now. Kahoolawe was being bombed long time ago. PKO had enough
courage to go over there and risk their lives to stop bombing on Kahoolawe. I think it might go
this far this time 'cause that's the only place get left. Hawaiians going down there and illegally,
legally, whatever you like call 'em, they going down there because life is more precious than
gold. But you hold this in your hands now. God bless all of you. Love all you guys.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mahalo, Desmond.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions? Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify, we have
Mark Hyde followed by Lehua Clubb.
MR. HYDE: Thank you very much. I'd like to share three thoughts with you. First, I don't believe that
approval of this project will produce jobs in the short term. Second, I would ask you to please
request and get all the information you need before forwarding this project on to the full Council.
And third, I urge you to decide whether permitting private utilities for large developments like
this is good public policy. As you know, we're in a worldwide fmancial crisis. We have concrete
evidence of the effects here on Maui. Maui Land and Pineapple Company lost financing for
Kapalua Resort with Lehman Brothers' bankruptcy. The Baccarat project in Wailea and the Maui
Lu redevelopment in Kihei have been idle due to financing woes. More to the point, Morgan
Stanley who is Makena Resort's money partner nearly failed last month, like Lehman,
temporarily saved at the last minute by an equity infusion from a Japanese bank. And
construction trades now report that work on Dowling's Maluaka project has halted due to lack of
access to the next round of financing because of loss of sales. Given this backdrop, it's highly
unlikely that rapid approval as opposed to thoughtful approval of Makena Resort's application
for a zoning change will produce jobs in the short term, and suggestions to the contrary should be
examined with respectful but healthy skepticism. Besides the exercise of legislative discretion
by this body must be guided by criteria that's contained in the County Code and not based on
perceived short-term job creation. This development is too large and too complex to be given
anything other than careful scrutiny by this Council based upon a complete portfolio of key
project information which I believe is lacking here, particularly with respect to core issues,
including water. Keep in mind that this project laid fallow the past four years at the owner's
choice, and in the interim circumstances have changed particularly with respect to water
availability, a risk that the owner assumed by inaction. That's called sleeping on your rights.
This brings me to my second point. The developer has not explicitly defined its water strategy or
assessed its impact on the environment, making it absolutely impossible for citizens and this
Committee to determine whether its water plans will negatively impact the environment and/or
be sustainable. Furthermore, Condition 30 that was attached to this project in 2004 states that the
developer may access County water for domestic supply when this is no longer feasible in light
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of what we now know about the Iao Aquifer's sustainable yield and current usage and trends.
The developer now wants to resort to desalinization but provides, to the best of my knowledge,
absolutely no information supporting the wisdom or impact of this approach, and I believe it is
your duty to insist that the developer make the case for desalinization before any further action is
taken. In my view, the underlying cause of the public's outcry -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. HYDE: --at hearings like this is a direct result of inadequate workup on the front end made worse
by extended developer delays we have here, leaving it to the people to come forward to insist on
an acceptable level of due diligence and oversight by this Council, putting the Council, once
again, in the hot box. And I suggest that you should not let that happen to you again as it did
with Wailea 670, and I suggest that the solution is to demand more and sufficient information
from the developer before forwarding this matter to the Council for further deliberation so that
you can carefully and intelligently weigh the merits of this huge transformative South Maui
project. This is nothing more than due diligence and it is central to the role fulfilled by this
Council and to engender the public's trust. And third and finally, I ask that you consider whether
it is good public policy to permit large developments -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. HYDE: --to rely on private essential utility services in light of lessons learned from Molokai
Ranch. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hyde.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Council Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Hyde, thank you so much for coming. You made a comment
about Maluaka being shutdown because its second phase of financing has been withheld due to
loss of sales. Can you explain what the loss of sales, what do you mean? He couldn't sell the
project?
MR. HYDE: Well, they're covenants in loans as there was, for instance, with Baccarat. Baccarat had
the financing, it's now at carbuncle in Wailea because it sits vacant and has been that way for
about six to nine months, and the reason is because they could not access virtue the covenants of
the loan, the next round because they didn't have 50 percent of the units sold. That's a common
provision in commercial lending. I don't know what the provisions are with regard to the
lending on this project. But I have heard that they have stopped construction and additional
work because they have lost the sales needed to get access to that next round of fmancing. As I
said, I live in Wailea and I walk out to this project from time to time and I've made it a point in
the last week, and I can tell you that there is no heavy equipment or personnel on the job site
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other than those who are working to repair the fairways, but it looks to me like the project is
shutdown. And I think that bears testament to the fact that beyond the control of everybody in
this room, the global fmancial crisis is making it impossible for projects like this to proceed. It's
too big and too expensive and no one wants to finance it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so Maluaka is graded out and since you go out there on
foot--I've driven by there several times this last week--but the area that's been graded out, is that
all exposed soil now?
MR. HYDE: It's all exposed soil.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right on the shoreline?
MR. HYDE: I haven't gotten down to the shoreline 'cause the public's not permitted down there, but
it's the fairway that they tore out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. HYDE: They are working that, I believe it's just all bare land and just dirt, they're working the
fairway now. They are starting. . .it looks like to put some grass down, some sod is being put on
the fairway, that will help mitigate at least at the shoreline.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. HYDE: But if they don't have the financing to proceed with regard to the rest of the development
where the condos are going to be, that's going to be just like, you know, we have on other spots
on Maui where they just sit. And my prediction is that will sit for years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I hope they get some seed on that barren land so that it
doesn't runoff into the ocean when we have a heavy rain.
MR. HYDE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. HYDE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, any other questions
for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Mr. Hyde. Folks, we're going to
take a couple minute recess to address a technical matter. Meeting in recess, subject to the call of
the Chair. . . .(gavel). . .

RECESS: 2:25 p.m.
- 69 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

RECONVENE: 2:33 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA:
The Land Use Committee meeting for Wednesday,
. . .(gavel). . .
November 19, 2008 is now back in session. And the Chair would like to apologize for the
spontaneous delay, if you will. We had some technical difficulties that we needed to address, so I
thank you all for your patience. Before we proceed with testimony, I've had a number of
questions asked of me as far as how long we will go till tonight. As the Chair of the Committee,
I'm ready to go on as long as I can, but it's not up to me. We need at least four Members to stay
here. At this point we're looking at anywhere between 5:00 to 6:00, maybe longer, but it all
depends on how far we get through public testimony. So we have, we're about maybe one-third
of the way through. So for those of you who want to stay with us all the way, you're welcome
to. If not, we totally understand you may have some other commitments as well. So let us get
back to public testimony. We have Lehua Clubb followed by Tiare Lawrence.
MS. CLUBB: Aloha mai kou(?), Council.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me. There you go.
MS. CLUBB: Not loud enough?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There you go.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: There you go.
MS. CLUBB: Okay. I'm the Chair of the ILWU 142, Unit 2511, Maui Prince Hotel; member of the
Kupuna 0 Maui; member of 'Ahahui Kaahumanu; Maui, Hawaiian Chamber of Commerce;
Committee on Aging. And before I forget, this is a 15-year project. By the way, the heiau and
the burial site is still in Maluaka, intact. So ask me a question, Michelle. Okay. Today was a
day where I should be at the Grand, there was an expo for the Maui, Hawaiian Chamber of
Commerce with our dear friends or my dear friends, Judge Mossman, Chubby, Kai, and Henry.
But I'm here to support a businessman, like those in the Chamber. I'm here to support the
release of the Makena Resort rezoning application from the Land Use Committee because it
pertains to jobs and the future of Makena. Just give us a yes or a no, so we can decide for
ourselves what our future will be. Today, I can only hope that the Council along with my
inexperienced political associates from Makena Resort is ready as I am to hear all the garbage
and the untruth that will be expressed by the opposition, especially those who know nothing and
just want to come up here and be on TV. This is called, officially is called a stall. I feel very
sorry for those people who try murky politics to get their way, because in this case what goes
around will definitely come around. If ever Maui did run out of water and our developer did put
in a desalinator, guess where these people would go? I resent the fact that Lucienne stated that
the Council was being paid by the developer. That is an insult to all the retirees and kupuna who
went out in the sun, the hot sun walking and holding signs to campaign for each of them. She
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ran for office. She knows what the limited amount of donation you can give to a candidate, or
maybe because nobody donated to her, it only shows she was a poor loser. I resent the fact that
Michelle Anderson says she represents my area. I live there, bought and paid for, girl. Where?
Because Makena Resort, because of Makena Resort there would be no Kihei town. I resent the
fact when she says I know it's about jobs, but, but what? We're paying your salary, you have
medical, you have food, you got gas for your car. Look behind you, Council. Please see the
hunger along with the shame of not being able to pay their electric bill or their water bill, see the
real world. Guava and berries, we don't eat. As for me, I know our rezoning would be removed
today or tomorrow and it would be because Akua knows that a man who gives with his heart is a
man who will receive what his heart desires. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, folks. Okay. Members, questions for the testifier? Okay.
Seeing no questions, thank you for your testimony, Ms. Clubb. Next to testify, we have
Tiare Lawrence followed by Michael Reed Gach.
MS. LAWRENCE: Aloha, greetings, Committee Chair Molina and Council Members. I would like to
start by thanking you for allowing us to speak our opinion regarding this important matter. My
name is Tiare Lawrence and I am one of the many community members here today that supports
the rezoning of the Makena Resort property. The resort is going to be built in a way that is not
only five star but also environmentally friendly. The owners, Dowling Company, have planned
to use measures such as dual-flush toilets and aerated showerheads to conserve water, and
photovoltaic solar panels to produce electricity. They even have a team of scientists that perform
water quality studies and monitoring to ensure that the coastal reef ecology is as healthy as
possible. My job involves the beach directly in front of the hotel, and I know that Dowling is
working to install filtration systems as we speak that will make the storm water runoff even
cleaner than before it reaches resort property. The resort has put millions of dollars toward
improving the area's infrastructure, including the expansion of Piilani Highway, the construction
and operation of a wastewater treatment and conveyance systems, and public beach access
facilities. Between the environmental measures and the economic endowment to the area, I
cannot imagine a more appropriate arrangement for the resort. And just to set the record straight,
Dowling Company does not own Kai Kanani Charters and the beach activities fronting the Maui
Prince Hotel. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you for your testimony. Committee Members, questions? Seeing
none, thank you. Michael Reed Gach followed by Colin McCormick.
MR. GACH: I'm testifying on behalf of my wife Barbara Gach and myself Michael Reed Gach.
Makena is absolutely sacred. The definition of sacred according to Webster's Dictionary is to
dedicate a place that's a natural treasure and secure it against any deformation or intrusions. Out
of respect for Makena, its land, the aina, I believe this Council first must have proper impact
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studies and plans, which is yet to be obtained, to take full responsibility to protect Makena as a
natural treasure. Since 1998, ten years ago, when this project was first approved, the condition
of the land and the sea has completely changed. I know this, I've seen this with my own eyes.
The land, the infrastructure, the roads, the traffic, the pollution, the real estate all are completely
different. It's a completely different ball game. I know this firsthand, also from swimming in
the oceans. I know this from swimming in the oceans right in front of, of the Maui Prince where
just south of it is just, there used to be such pristine, gorgeous fish life. It's no longer there. Last
time my wife and I swam there we heard the pounding of the concrete, and my wife cried. My, I,
I want you to know that I'm here to testify to explain why I believe we need to protect this
beautiful land. There's nowhere on earth like Makena, it's unbelievably awesome. To develop it
you'll destroy much of its significance. My wife and I envision keeping our beautiful beaches
unpolluted. As South Kihei residents we believe any large developments in Makena will affect
the quality of the water, the reefs, and increase traffic and pollution. Makena beaches are still
pristine and we want to keep it that way. We must protect our island's beauty which is the basis
of tourism, Maui's biggest source of income. Join me in rejecting this enormous project to stop
urban sprawl throughout South Maui. There's no doubt once Makena is developed it will never
be the same. At this point in this time, I would like to request an evening and weekend hearings
in Kihei to hear local testimony. As Maui condo owners, my wife and I put local people to work.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. GACH: We choose to buy condos in existing complexes to decrease the ecological impact on
building structures. There's plenty of work for construction people to do here on the island to
remodel and repair existing buildings. We don't need this project. Other reasons we're opposed
to this proposal, in addition to water and sewage issues, is the. . .if there's an emergency, we
already have a problem of evacuating South Kihei safely in the event of fire, flooding, or other
disasters, and this, this project would compound the safety issues. Dearest Council Members, for
Maui's sake, I urge you to get the necessary, proper, and current impact studies to limit Maui's
growth especially in Makena, the only area around that's still pristine. By limiting growth we'll
protect the beauty and of the land and the sea. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Gach. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, we have Colin McCormick followed by
Rob Parsons. Colin McCormick?
MR. McCORMICK: Aloha, Council Members. Last time I spoke before you I talked about the
endangered six or three out of six endangered species found within Makena State Park, the
Hawksbill Sea Turtle, the Hawaiian Hoary Bat, and the Hawaiian Stilt. But today I'm not going
to spend time on that. But if you guys have any doubts because there were people that were
questioning the potential impacts that this project will have on their habitat area and on, you
know, the survival there, you know, the survival, you can question me after this testimony. But
I'm here today to humbly ask you, the County, to please follow its own laws and require that an
- 72 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

updated complete biological survey be completed for the entire rezoning area before any
rezoning, as required by County Code Section 19.510, Change in Zoning Application Rules.
Chapter 19.5.0, Chapter 19.510.010 or Section 16 states, specifically states "Identification of
environmentally sensitive areas, habitat, and botanical features which include, but are not limited
to, wetlands, streams, rock outcroppings, endangered plants and animals, and exceptional trees.
If applicable, a baseline study and a preservation/mitigation plan and comments, if applicable,
from the Department of Land and Natural Resources of the State, the US State Fish and Wildlife
Service, and the United States Corps of Engineers". Okay. You heard this many times. I think
Michelle Anderson did a really good job during the Wailea 670 hearings, you know, reminding
you guys. Don't go through that same process again. Let the developer complete his application
to save you guys lots of time rather than you guys spending all the valuable County time just,
you know, going over this over and over again. Okay. Keep in mind that the Makena Resort's
EIS was done in 1975. Okay. And they did a botanical survey for 1,100 acres in three days. So
you've got to wonder really what was accurately surveyed. As a botanist I would love, I'd really
like to see a completed botanical survey done. I think that's just the bare minimum that should
be requested. I know for a fact there's hundreds of Wiliwilis up there, some 350 years-plus years
old that are going to, hundreds of them are going to be bulldozed. I provided the Clerk earlier
with archeological data from Project Ka' eo which shows GPS points of all the archeological sites
that have been found in the Makena Resort property lands, and I don't know if you guys have
that in front of you, but if you do. . .if not, I guess--looks like no one has it--but on your own
later on just take a look at, look at the maps and you'll see there's hundreds, let me say again,
hundreds of archeological sites. And, you know, why can't more of those sites be included into
a, you know, a cultural landscape? You guys have that kind of -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. McCORMICK: --that possibility. Okay. So ask yourself, wouldn't careful planning in this area to
ensure that the biological and cultural heritage resources that are, you know, make sure those
things are best preserved, add more value to this project? Even if it does go forward, wouldn't
keeping those things alive as best as possible, wouldn't that add more value to this project? I
think everyone can agree to that. The existing rezoning conditions do nothing to protect the
native plants and animals as currently written. This needs to change. Okay. As a teacher here in
Maui the one thing that I know my students love hearing more than anything else and I'm sure if
you were teachers, some of you were, can relate to this, they love learning about their home, you
know. That defines who they are, that defines where they came from. Well, you guys approved
Wailea 670 -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. McCORMICK: --and now you're about to approve Makena 1,800. What home is going to be left
to be proud of in South Maui? So please send them and send us, the residents of South Maui and
of Maui, the right message. That's all I ask. Aloha.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. McCormick.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, questions for the testifier? Councilmember Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. McCormick, thank you for being here. I have two questions
for you. As a botanist have you had a chance to look at the biological survey, and does it indicate
in the survey the ancient Wiliwili trees that you mentioned?
MR. McCORMICK: Yeah. It mentions, I think, only four species, and it mentions the Wiliwili as one
of the endemic species found there. But, again, this botanical survey, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Does it cite them where they are?
MR. McCORMICK: Not specifically, no. I mean this was done over 1,100 acres of land -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. McCORMICK: --which is, you know, a big area. So there has to be another, there should be much
more independent studies to review because that's a lot of land to cover . . .(change tape, start
4B). . . There's, just right next door there's, there's incredible A'a habitats with some really rare
species left. So I wouldn't be surprised if people actually look for it, they're going to find more,
more rare and endemic Hawaiian species in those lava flow areas.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. And then the endangered species that you mentioned, the
Hawaiian Monk Seal, the Stilt and the Bat.
MR. McCORMICK: The Hoary Bat. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you know if there's anything in the Endangered Species Act
that protects their habitat, that calls for protection of their habitat?
MR. McCORMICK: Definitely, yeah. I mean all those things have recovery plans and if you guys
want, just you can get it online, just type in the recovery plan for those three, and it specifically
mentions, you know, what, what should be done. Because these are all Federally listed
endangered species that are, you know, by law supposed to be protected, and a big, you know,
unfortunately a big reason why these things are endangered is because of habitat loss.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
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MR. McCORMICK: And, you know, it's, it's just. . .yeah, you can learn, you can read about it. I don't
have to explain it to you guys. I'm sure you guys understand that humans are, you know, they
adversely affect...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. We heard that there's some, somewhere in the
neighborhood of 400 Hawaiian Monk Seals left.
MR. McCORMICK: Yeah. And I know there's, there's two residents, two resident Monk Seals that
have been tracked for many years now right off Little Beach that keep coming back. I see like,
you know, at least, I've seen many Stilts in the wetlands right at Oneloa. I've seen just last week
Wednesday the last Hawksbill Turtle nest, I was there to watch the keikis, you know, released
and watch them hatch out. These are endangered animals, you know, Hawksbill Turtle, there's
only 60 nesting females. Six of the nesting females come to Maui and two of those nesting
females choose Big Beach and you got to wonder why. I mean these are the creatures that
actually hatch out of Oneloa sands. Okay. So aren't these the true residents? Aren't these the
true residents? Don't they deserve our best, you know, effort, our best effort?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's their habitat.
MR. McCORMICK: And the Hawaiian Bat, you know, people. . .oh, there's Hawaiian Bats all over
Haleakala. Let's just say, oh, there's Hawaiians all over Haleakala. Hawaiians deserve to live
wherever they're from. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. McCormick.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you, Member Anderson. Any other questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you, Mr. McCormick.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: We have Rob Parsons to testify. Before we entertain testimony from Mr. Parsons,
please be careful out there in the gallery, folks. We don't want any injuries. Be aware of the
equipment that exists out there. After Mr. Parsons, we have Jaiia Earthschild.
MR. PARSONS: Aloha, Chair Molina, Land Use Committee Members, ladies and gentlemen. My
name is Rob Parsons. Next Monday will be my 31 st anniversary of calling this beautiful island
my home. Few points I'd like to make to you today. Number one, a matter of procedure I think
needs to be emphasized and I found very compelling Councilmember Anderson's questions at
the beginning of this meeting about reconsideration of 41 conditions. And because the unilateral
agreement is coming back with a new owner other than the one that was, discussions were with
three or four years ago, and because there are plans to amend those 41 conditions, I think we
need to fully revisit this. And this needs to be done before a lot of this discussion takes place or
it may be moot and we may have to come back and hold the meetings again. So I think that
procedural item is one that we need to look at as soon as possible. Much has been said about
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jobs today, and I think that there, there are many who claim that the reason that we're here today
is because of a sagging economy and the need for more jobs. But you, Council Members, are so
much more than an employment agency. You know, we need to look at comprehensive planning,
not one land use by one proposed developer. We need to, just as the GPAC is, is doing, look at
all of South Maui and in truth all of Maui island and assess those development impacts. You
should have specific and accurate data before you, including what are the number of current
permitted units in Makena, what are the number of current permitted projects in South Maui and
island-wide. Then we'll have a much better determination of do we really need jobs, do our
workers really need work or is there plenty already on the books? And you need to have that at
your fmgertips. How many County workers are unemployed, if any, and why? Is it because the
off-island financing investment dollars are currently unstable with the economic situation
nationally and worldwide? Then why would we try to approve more of the same sort of
development? And finally, how many construction workers on Maui are commuting from Oahu
and the Big Island? Because I've heard out in the gallery today those that are at the airport on
Monday mornings say there's quite an influx of construction workers. So we need to address
that and getting jobs for our workers here before we import more. There's been talks of a
desalination project here. I think we need all the details of that. Anyone who swims in the South
Maui waters knows that there are numerous places where there is freshwater influx which
nourishes our nearshore reef ecosystems. It is, it's essential that not all the water is withdrawn
for purposes on land. It really does connect with a greater ecosystem. So we need full disclosure
and I think we need to revisit the EIS if we're going to be looking at these kinds of broad
changes. The same with storm water runoff, someone mentioned earlier the October, 2003
impacts on a Dowling Palauea project that had thousands of truckloads of fill added, and then the
October storm brought tons and tons of that silt into the ocean and it has never been the same
since. We don't have to have a collision of the ecology and the economy. With responsible
planning we can really take care of both. Finally, why are we here today?
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. PARSONS: Thank you. I would subscribe that it's, it's not so much about jobs, it's about land
speculation and entitlements. What are zoning entitlements worth to the project owner? Is it
$100 million? Is it $200 million if he has additional zoning on top of current entitlements?
Whatever it is. . it's not small potatoes, it's huge. Development such as what is being proposed
here continues to erode the quality of life on Maui and not enhance it. Why? Because it
increases the social chasm between the haves and the have-nots. Makena is truly that place
where after driving down the Piilani Highway through the sprawl and through the housing
developments and through the malls and then into Wailea, which is a private enclave, Makena is
that place -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. PARSONS: --where collectively--I'll just fmish this thought--collectively we take a breath. We
feel that our soul is nourished. We appreciate the open space, the natural beauty of the area, the
cultural richness. It touches our soul and spirit. So let's support jobs that build things that we
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can agree upon as a community, such as a South Maui high school, medical centers, affordable
housing, and infrastructure. Please put this project on the shelf until we can give it a full review
and choose a wiser path for Maui's future. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Parsons.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Rob, did you say that you saw or somebody
you know saw off-island construction workers coming on to the island?
MR. PARSONS: Yes. I talked with a person in the lobby who said that when she came in recently on a
Monday morning from, returning from Oahu, that there were essentially two plane loads worth
of construction workers coming from Oahu to work on Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Holy...
MR. PARSONS: So, I mean, I really think that it would benefit you all to know what numbers of
workers are coming here and, and what jobs they're working at.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Additional questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Mr. Parsons.
MR. PARSONS: Thank you, Chair and Members.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next, we have Jaiia Earthschild followed by Mark Sheehan Jaiia? Okay. Jaiia is
not here. We shall move on. Mark Sheehan followed by John Arisumi.
MR. SHEEHAN: Good afternoon, Chair, Members of the Council, members of the public. My name is
Mark Sheehan When that young man said about his father, well, after all he's old already. I
resemble that remark. I'm old already and I've gotten old dealing with the Makena issue. I was
involved with the original group that worked for 10 or 12 years to make Makena a State Park and
continue to have an interest in it. But I'm here today as a real estate broker to just talk about the
kinds of development that we have really been distracted into. And by the way, for the people
who work at the Makena Resort you should understand that the, the owner plans to tear down the
existing hotel and rebuild another hotel. And it has to do with the very--I interviewed him on my
radio show a few weeks ago, he's a man I have a great deal of respect for. However, the basic
strategy of building for the wealthy, which has been the general Maui strategy, and now for the
super-wealthy, and that's why things are shutdown from Kapalua to Makena. We have a strategy
of building for the upper one-tenth of 1 percent of the wealthiest people here with the idea that
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they're rich enough that when the recession hits, it won't affect them. So let me just give you
some numbers from real estate sales. The average sale at Kaanapali for a home sale was
$2 million, at Kapalua it's $4 4 million, and at Wailea where there are 25 homes that have sold so
far this year, the average sale price is 3.4 million. And in the condominiums I'll just give you
Wailea and Makena sales figures, there have been 168 sales with an average price of 2.2 million.
Okay. Now I hope you have your pens out and can kind of write this down here and if you'd
like, I would submit this to you. I want to look at some contrasting figures in the condo market.
There are 103 units for sale under $200,000 on the entire island. At the same time there are 111
units for sale over 2 million. In fact there are actually, in homes there are more than 424 homes,
there are exactly 424 homes for sale over $1 million. But if we look at the figure of, for homes
under $300,000, under $300,000 which I would consider to be getting into the affordable range,
there are 13 homes for sale. But over $3 million there are 117 homes for sale. Or if you say,
well, $300,000 and you know what you get for $300,000; if you don't know, come see me and
I'll show you on the computer, not much. But let's say $400,000, there are 63 homes for sale.
But for $4 million there are 72 homes for sale. What's the point of this? The point of this is
we're talking about development and every development -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. SHEEHAN: --for that super-wealthy class that we have catered to. The resorts are like temples to
cargo cults, like as if somehow we build them big enough and beautiful enough, rich people will
come here and take care of us, and that's not been the case. Every house, every tap, every faucet,
every hose bib that is built for the wealthy people are, is water and construction that is not
available for local people. So look around, we're here because we want jobs. It's not the fact of
jobs, it's the kind of jobs. And right now as Mr. Hyde said, investment is over and there will be
no development for the near-term future. It's done, it's finished. This country is basically
bankrupt and we did it to ourselves. However, the green economy is coming in and we should be
paying attention to it. As Mr. Holter said, there will be jobs for construction of energy.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. SHEEHAN: We spend over 500, over $600 million a year bringing in oil and fuel to this island,
Maui island.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Sheehan, if you can conclude.
MR. SHEEHAN: We should be building the alternative economy for, for resources here. So please take
that into consideration. I hope you will respect the General Plan Advisory Committee and wait
until their report comes out, because they've had a chance to be on the ground and look at the
resources out there in a way that you haven't. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Sheehan. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR MOLINA: Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Sheehan. Next to testify, we have John Arisumi
followed by Norma Barroga.
MR. ARISUMI: Oh, good afternoon. My name is John Arisumi. I was a former ILWU member and is
very familiar with Maui Prince Hotel. I do want to tell all of you folks here that when Maui
Prince came first to, first to Hawaii, it was something like 1970, and during that time they were
getting some real problems to get water down to Makena. And all of a sudden I pass the road, I
see this big five, six feet diameter waterline going from Waihee Valley down to Kihei. So I
questioned that and they said that this particular pipeline was put in by Maui Prince,
AMFAC. . .C. Brewer, Wailea Resort, and A&B. These are the guys that started off and there's
no question somebody told me when I told them that, that they get their money back. Of course
they're going to get their money back, but they lolo. You're talking something like $6 million.
And all these things was done before by Maui Prince and the four partners, not four partners, but
the four different companies. Now because we shut off water, Everett Dowling is trying to get
his zoning straight. You know, he has two golf course on the agriculture, he want to make it to
get, put that into a proper zoning. They also only have what, 200 acres or whatever housing or
whatever. I'm sorry, I didn't bring my papers up. But when you think about the person who
gives that much to the public, you go and, you know, you Council people should take into
consideration, never mind what the people say. Listen to me because I've been around for a
long time, okay?

AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Go, Johnny! Go, Johnny, go! . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. ARISUMI: I've been around for a long time and you talk about being on the Planning
Commission, being on the Liquor Commission, being on, you know, community college board of
directors. All these things I did and I knew what I was doing and I know what's happening to the
general public. Okay. So, you know, I read one of the progress papers that you folks had from
Dowling, dated June 7, 2004. On that paper it was written that in that year they have completed
the zoning. Now they back again with that zoning. I don't know why, you know, because some
guys come over there and make noise, you folks go and change 'em, that's up to you folks. But I
don't think -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. ARISUMI: --it's fair. So for me I strongly feel that you folks help, help the ILWU because the
ILWU workers at the Maui Prince Hotel, the golf course and every place, we need some money
for the company so they can supplement the wages because of this economic situation. I thank
you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Arisumi. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony, Mr. Arisumi. Thank you. Next to testify, we have Norma
Barroga followed by Luz Ramil.
MS. BARROGA: Aloha, Council Chair Molina and Council Members. Thank you for this opportunity
to speak before you regarding this project. My name is Norma Barroga, an educator, a leader in
the Filipino community, and a resident of Maui for the past 30 years. I'm here today to advocate
for the rezoning application by the applicant, Mr. Dowling. I believe that this development will
help improve the County's economy and provide more housing and jobs for people in the
community. We are in the midst of an economic recession that can significantly impact the lives
of many people, including myself. Mr. Dowling's project would cushion the effects of the
recession. Primarily this project would provide more housing, for there are still many people and
local people who would like to own a piece of Maui. This project would allow them to realize
their dreams. In addition, this project would help improve the lifestyle of the many workers, and
many of them are here today. It would create much needed jobs, and the purchase of the building
materials for the project would boost the suppliers' revenues, and there would be a trickledown
effect and the County's tax revenues would increase. This development will help create
hundreds of jobs that are greatly needed on Maui. There are construction workers who have
been out of work ever since the mortgage downturn, which actually occurred on the mainland
and it's now affecting us and I guess it's worldwide. This project would help employ the many
union carpenters, the masons, the metal workers, and many others. And Mr. Dowling is known
to be an environmentally sensitive and innovative person who is visionary and community—
minded individual. As an educator I know that he, and many of you know, that he built Kamalii
Elementary School, and Kamalii is now benefiting a lot of people in this community. He is a
person of good character and a will to do great things for the common good. I believe that
Mr. Dowling will implement mitigation measures to protect the environment. He has people
working with him and he's known for green building and for sensible and responsible projects
that he has developed so far.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. BARROGA: Therefore, I believe that this, his project in Makena will greatly benefit the
community. Council Members, I humbly ask for your support for this project. Thank you very
much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Barroga. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Ms. Barroga. Next to testify, we have Luz Ramil
followed by Dave Atias.
MS. RAMIL: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aloha.
- 80 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

MS. RAMIL: Mabuhay!
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mabuhay!
MS. RAMIL: Good afternoon, Council Chairman Mike Molina and Members. Thank you very much
for the opportunity to speak before you this afternoon. My name is Luz Romero Ramil, a school
home assistant for the Department of Education and a courtesy clerk at Foodland, Kihei. I'm an
ILWU member. . .and a Maui Meadows resident since 1976. I am here today to humbly ask you
to please approve Mr. Dowling's request for rezoning and development of his proposed project in
Makena. I believe that this marvelous development--in Spanish, we say maravilloso--will help
improve the County's economy and provide more housing and jobs for people in our community.
It will also help improve the tourism industry, which is the backbone of our economy. You know,
I go to the homes and convince the students to go back to school, but they want to work to help
with the mortgage and they find peace, I mean they find the productivity in working in the
hotels, in Makena, in McDonald's. Let's give them a chance after school. Furthermore, this
development will help create many jobs that are much needed on Maui. There are construction
workers who have been out of work ever since the financial crisis hit America as a result of the
mortgage meltdown. This project would help employ the many union carpenters, masons, hotel
workers, housekeepers, housemen, waiters. When many job opportunities are available here on
Maui, our children will stay. My daughter Iris teaches in Arkansas, but she will bring home my
first grandson on July 10 from Arkansas for his baby luau. All of you are invited.. .
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
MS. RAMIL: . . .Binhi At Ani, Filipino Center. I'm also the recording secretary under the presidency of
Norma Barroga, my boss, a woman hero. The most important of all is that the County tax
revenues would increase due to the additional properties that would be sold, affordable homes so
the Haiku women don't have to drive long distance to Makena. Mr. Dowling cares for this
community, loving and forgiving, as he built Kamalii Elementary School, and I know that he
wants to help boost the economy through his project. Therefore, I ask you to please
support and approve Mr. Dowling's project. He is God given to us. Mahalo nui loa, malama
pono. Take care and Shane Victorino is home! Get your autograph! Mabuhay!
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Ramil. Committee Members, questions for Ms. Ramil? Thank you
very much for your testimony, Ms. Ramil, and we'll be there for your grandchild's party.
ALL: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: And, and thank you for bringing that to light. I was just informed today that my
Secretary Colleen became a grandmother again today.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yea!
CHAIR MOLINA: Her daughter gave birth to a seven pound boy so -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hey, right on.
CHAIR MOLINA: --we'll make...
MS. RAMIL (from the audience): We'll be grandparents of the year!
CHAIR MOLINA: That's right. And come join us for the party for that one, too.
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: So anyway, okay, folks. All right. Let's move on. Dave Atias followed by Nikolina
Musto. Dave Atias? Not here. Okay. Let's move on. Nikolina Musto? Nikolina Musto? Not
here? Okay. Lily Brown followed by Nick Warmeth. Lily Brown? Had to go? Okay. Nick
Warmeth? Nick Warmeth? Okay. Roger Hangartner? Roger Hangartner? Roger? Over and
out.
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Daniel Kanahele followed by Anita Wintner. Daniel Kanahele?
Daniel Kanahele? I thought I saw him here earlier. Oh, there he is. Okay.
MR. KANAHELE: Aloha kakou, Chair, Council Members, community members. My name is
Daniel Kanahele. I live in South Maui, and I'm testifying on behalf of myself. Thank you for
the opportunity. I would like to also request, on behalf of those who are unable to be here today
because of work or school, if possible, that a meeting be held in South Maui to accommodate the
community that will be most impacted and affected by this resort. I would also like to thank all
the mana' o that was shared on both sides of the issue so far. I think we all learn from each other
in community hearings like this, and I think it helps to bring the community closer together as we
understand our different points of view. We live in difficult times, you know, we're all in the
same canoe. We all rub shoulders at Longs, my favorite store, and Costco, my second favorite
store, and we're really caught between a rock and a hard place because, you know, our current
economic engine is really at the mercy of forces, market forces that we really don't have any
control over. And this may be a wakeup call, especially since many of you have retaken your
seats in the canoe. And many of us are wondering what direction are you going to take us and
what the plan is. I used to be the steersman many years ago when I paddled, and the steersman
has to know where he's going to go and how he's going to get there. You folks are the steersmen
and all these people are wondering where are you going to take us, and you can't really expect
different results if you keep doing the same things the same way. You know. . .what will happen
if the worst case scenario, the boats stop coming and the airplanes stop coming? How will we
feed ourselves? Our families? How will we take care of ourselves? Maybe this is a wakeup
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call. My ancestors and many of you who have koko lived on this land sustainably for a
millennium. They didn't rely on boats to bring in their food, they didn't rely on airplanes. But
yet they took care of themselves and their families, they were sustainable. They're some aspects
of our current economy that is not sustainable. Sometimes we have ups and downs and we're
having a very bad down, and who knows how long this is going to last. So what we really need
is some vision and some direction, and we are looking to you, all these people behind you are
looking to you, I'm looking to you, too. So having said that I will quickly -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. KANAHELE: --get to the issue that's always been close to my heart and that's the archeological
sites. This land where this development is going to occur is extraordinarily rich in archeological
treasures. Why is this important to me? Because the archeological treasures that are there are
the history of my people, they are my cultural libraries. People that have no knowledge of their
past, their history is like a tree with no roots, it is dead. Our past is the bridge to the future. You
cannot ignore the past. The past is our bridge to the future. So, I would encourage you to review
County Code 19.510 and to re-read the Kihei-Makena Community Plan. Both of these
ordinances and codes require that a comprehensive, complete archeological inventory —
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. KANAHELE: --inventory survey . . .(change tape, start 5A). . . the application--I'm just going to
finish this off--along with a review and acceptance by SHPD and OHA. Do you have those
documents? I will ask you over and over again if you have those documents before you. Thank
you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kanahele.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you, Daniel.
MR. KANAHELE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, we have Anita Wintner. Okay. Not present. Ipo Kahele?
Ipo Kahele is here? Kanoa Kukava? Kanoa Kukava? Dustin Tester? Dustin Tester? Dustin,
are you here? Okay. After Dustin we have Bonnie Marko.
MS. TESTER: Hi there.
CHAIR MOLINA: Hi.
MS. TESTER: My name is Dustin Tester and I'm a business owner on the island of Maui here. I own a
surf school called Maui Surfer Girls. Little plug. And--hi there--and I'm here to oppose the
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project. I grew up on Maui and learned how to skim board at Makena. I'm grateful
. . . (inaudible). . . on the beach with no one there. My family used it all my life camping on the
weekends. And, again, I work with kids, teach them how to surf, and I work with tourists, and a
lot of the tourists that I speak with and the kids that I teach are in awe of this land and their
opportunity to enjoy its resources. And then without that, I don't think I'd be in business. And I
understand the argument about the workers not having construction jobs, and I guess it's a
compromise that we have to make. We have to also preserve the land, but provide jobs and think
outside of the box. And I wasn't here all day to hear all the testimony, but I think a lot of them
said about green jobs and alternative, you know, ways to create our economy that's not based on
the model that's happening right now. So, I hope that we can come to a compromise and look
outside the box. Thanks.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Dustin.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony. Next to testify, we have Bonnie Marko. Bonnie? Bonnie, not here.
Linda McDonald? Linda McDonald? Not here? Laurie Chang followed by Elise Teagle.
MS. CHANG: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Council Members. It's been a long time. Don't let this
cane scare you. I'm all right. . . .(chuckle). . . I'm here as a resident of Makena. I'm here to
speak for my husband and myself. My husband, I'm sorry he wasn't able to come here because I
believe today he is the oldest Kukahiko that now survives and lives in Makena.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
MS. CHANG: I've heard so much today and I want you to know, my husband and I do support Makena
Resort. We always have, we always will. And there's a reason for it because my husband having
been from Makena, he knows what Makena was like and what it is today. Now it's sad to see all
of you really not knowing what really Makena was once like. I don't know either. I'm a
Wailuku girl. But I've heard from the kupunas. The kupunas have told us lots of stories. I've
heard from my husband. The stories that I heard now are just memories for him, and one of
these days what you know now will soon be memories, too. So what's important to us, for my
husband and I, was to get to know Mr. Dowling because we want to live behind, when we go, we
want Makena to be a nice place, too. You know, all of Maui is scared. It's not only Makena
that's sacred. All of Hawaii is sacred. It's sacred to, to all, to the Hawaiians who were born and
raised here. So, I think all of you should now get into this mode to say Hawaii, all of Hawaii is
sacred, it's all precious. Now for us coming back to Makena, we probably wouldn't be there
because we had learned some of the comforts of the mainland. And when we came back and
saw, gee, Makena has a nice road, Makena has water, Makena has electricity, my husband didn't
have that when he grew up. When he grew up, it wasn't like that. You know, he went to school
up in Ulupalakua. He came down Old Ulupalakua Road. Now I even heard my father who came
from Okinawa talk about that. He used to go on the donkey all the way to Makena. So you see,
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we've lived through some of the history of this island, and I can tell you Mr. Dowling is a good,
he's a good developer, and I think he'll listen to us and he'll try his best to keep what is there
now. He'll try to keep some of it so that it will be passed on -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. CHANG: --to the generations to come. I think that's what's important. So, all of you, think about
it. Council people, think about it. I think this has been on the docket long enough. It's time for
you to make a decision. Make it now so that this will stop and we can go on. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mrs. Chang. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, okay, thank you for your testimony, Mrs. Chang. It's good to see you again as well.
Please give our regards to your husband and congratulations, too. Next to testify, Elise Teagle
followed by Kai Nishiki.
MS. TEAGLE: Good afternoon. I'm Elise Teagle, I'm also a resident of Makena. And it's always
difficult for me to follow any speech by passionate Laurie Chang. I would say after listening to
all the testimony, the wonderful things that the developers have done in Makena is only good.
Roads, water, they are taking care of the public restrooms, the parking lots, security. Everything
is good, and they're willing to work with our community. And we would like a community in
Makena. I've heard your testimony today and so many of you speak about taking away things
from you. I don't think this project is about taking away. As I understood it, there's going to be
no change in the beachfront where all of you are coming. I hope I did not hear that incorrectly,
no change in the beachfront. It's still going to be there for you. Makena is a very welcoming
place and it's going to continue to be a welcoming place. The beaches will be there for you.
Makena Prince, whether it's new, a new hotel or the old one, you can still come there for your
Sunday brunches where you come to celebrate probably more so than we residents there. It will
continue to be a welcoming place for you. Nothing is going to be taken away from you. Only
more good. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Teagle. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Next to testify, we have Kai Nishiki followed by Kimokeo Kapahulehua.
MS. NISHIKI: Aloha, Mr. Molina, Council Members. Thank you very much for having this meeting.
The public appreciates being heard. It is our generation, my generation who is going to be living
with the effects of this plan, of this project and many others. So, I urge the Council to carefully
consider what the effects might be and not rush it to a Council decision right away. There are
many things that are old and outdated in the application as well as the environmental impact
statement, and it would be wise to look at that again and reevaluate whether appropriate
measures have been taken, as well as the 41 conditions that sat unsigned for many years. I think
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that it would be wise to look at those as well and see if they should be reviewed and if they're
applicable at this time. So, I ask the Council to please review the application carefully. And,
Mr. Dowling, you have done wonderful things in our community and I hope that you will
continue to build schools and community centers and possibly some renewable energy plants.
Let's work on those things. Those things will move our economy in the right direction. And
developments such as this are not for the benefit of our residents. And I know that, that we are in
a hurry and everyone is panicking, but let's not make bad decisions just because we need things
right now. It is wise to look towards the future and honor the past. Honor our kupuna, honor the
historical sites, honor what their desires were for us, and also look towards the next generation.
And I think that it is wise to look at everything and not just say we need jobs right now. And
when it comes down to jobs, it's not always a project we know, it doesn't mean a project gets
approved and we get jobs instantly. It doesn't work that way. And I know that we want, we want
a long-term future for our children, and I really believe that, that if we work towards a green
economy, work towards food independence, if we work towards energy independence, this is the
area that we want to move towards. And, and change is really difficult and it's scary sometimes,
but I think that it's the government's job to work on Capital Improvement Projects that are, are
actually going to move us in that direction. And I think that we have to look to the private sector
as well as the government, and we can move in that direction. And I think that that will provide
a long-term solution to our economic woes. So, I thank you very much for your time. I would
urge there to be a time for the public to testify in the evening in Kihei since it effects their
community, and so that's what I ask. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Nishiki. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Kai. Next to testify, we have Kimokeo Kapahulehua
followed by Natasha Gonzales.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Aloha, Chairman Molina and Council Members. My name is
Kimokeo Kapahulehua. I'm before you to tell you about this project. Because first, Chairman,
that we came here I think early part of the month and we testified before you, and Mike Victorino
brought this discharge before the Committee. And the discharge that day was resolved by this
option of you making this for the public, so we want to thank you to bringing this Land Use
Committee forward to the public and bringing this project to the public. So now the process was
shown to us this morning by the developer that, what they plan to do, and this was confirmed by
the Planning and Corp. Counsel and throughout this discussion, the area that they're going to ask
for rezoning that is in that particular land use already in the zone, so. And then now we're going
to take this particular process and you guys going to decide today to conform to the Kihei
Community Makena Plan. That's why we here for, you know. So in bringing this process you're
going to have to make sure that the Land Use Commission, Land Use Committee going tell us
that you're going to bring this before the Council. Is that correct, Mr. Chairman? So, so I'm
just, I'm trying to understand the government procedure. So it's going to be held in the Land
Use Committee until you bring it before the full Council. So when you bring it before the full
Council, all of the people who came here today is going be discussing the, or be able to come to
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the meeting and discuss the situation again and bring their ideas of, about the rezoning. So with
that what they, everybody is doing today and the people who is saying that they're for and the
people saying against, this ohana will be back again because that's the process that we're going
to come to. So in this Land Use Committee thing that we have today is for you to decide
whether this rezoning go forward or go backwards. But even in our General PAC or the GPAC
told you today, the question was asked is that in the GPAC for the future, is that include for
development. He said that's included for development. And so we are confirmed with this
system, so, you know, I'm here to tell you, the Land Use Committee, that to move this to the full
Council so we can get to the nuts and bolts. Because I don't think in the Land Use Committee
we going discuss the water development, the energy development and all this thing that
everybody asking about, the shoreline, the biological survey, the archeological survey. So let's,
in the Land Use Committee bring it forward to the Council so we can have all these questions
answered to the people who don't have these answers, because the developer cannot move
forward because he's going to show these answers. Show Me the Water Bill, that is not going to
be -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: --here in the Land Use Committee. If this Show Me the Water Bill and he got
to show the water, then let's bring it forward from the Land Use Committee, bring it forward to
the full Council so all of these things that you're missing and everybody's been asking all these
questions, that full educational process not going to come until you move it out of this
Committee, you know. If it, if it, if you have that information, then, you know, a lot of people
don't, but I would encourage you, Mr. Chairman, I would encourage all of you Council Members
or Land Use Committee Members so bring it forward so all of these things can show the reason
why we have it before you in our Kihei-Makena Community Plan. And they also have it shown
in the GPAC, and the GPAC told you today that they're going to bring it to you guys in the latter
part of 2009. Before come back to the public, it's 2010. So I'm here to tell you that, encourage
you, the Land Use Committee, to approve these -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: --zoning change so we can conform with the Kihei Community Makena Plan.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Kapahulehua. And before I recognize
Member Anderson for questions, just to clarify your question as well. We could discuss those
issues you had mentioned about water and other matters in Committee as well depending on
what happens, where we go from the Committee. And if it does go on to the full Council, it will
have to have two more readings, so this would only be one of three major steps for this proposal
to eventually, to possibly get approved. So -MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: --it'll take...this is just one, one step. Member Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, I just wanted to clarify that for Kimokeo,
because, you know, getting answers about water and about sewage and I know Mr. Dowling
wants to do a desal plant, that's a whole new proposal that we haven't heard before. And so all
of the information relevant to this request has to be done in this Committee.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's all Committee work.. .
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: . . .so that when it comes to the Council, we've already done all
the answers or questions and answers, and generally the only thing that happens at the Council
level besides a vote is sometimes there's some last minute amendments. But what you're
describing is actually Committee work.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Thank you, Member of the Council. And, and last, one thing that I would
encourage you, like everybody's encouraged you, the community is asking you to move the next
meeting, if you going have another reading, to do this reading in South Maui, and that those
people that in South Maui can show up and make it in the evening so we can have a lot of
people. We have a lot of people here, but the people around there would have an opportunity to
come after work. So I thank you, Council Chair, and I thank you, Council Members. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Kimokeo. And by the way, it's good to have you back in good
health as well, Kimokeo.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Looking good.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair, can we get our afternoon break?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. All right. We have Natasha Gonzales scheduled to speak. Members, after
Ms. Gonzales is complete with her testimony, we'll go ahead and take a short break.
Natasha Gonzales, are you here? Seeing none, let's get one more person. Charlie Goodness?
Charlie Goodness? Are you here? Okay. Please come on up and testify. And after
Ms. Goodness is done, we'll go ahead and take our break, Members.
MS. GOODNESS: Aloha kakou. My name is Charlie Goodness and I am employed at the Maui Prince
Hotel. And I'm here today, once more--I was here on November 7 th --to speak in support of the
Change in Zoning for Makena Resort and, hopefully, to get it discharged from the Land Use
Committee into the full Council. As I said before, the need for this Makena development really
is now. I think many people have testified to that here that the economy is in dire straits, not
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only the Maui County, but the entire State of Hawaii. We need assistance now. The way that this
development hinges into it is the fact that it could be very helpful to us now. I believe at the last
meeting Mr. Dowling was up here and said that if the Council approves and it goes through,
leaves the Land Use Committee, goes to the Council, receives approval, he could start work on
the project within 30 days. That would provide immediate relief to construction workers and it
actually would send a wonderful signal to our investors, I think that subject was brought up
before, that Maui County is welcoming of monies coming into, into, into our County. Many
people spoke up today and said that we shouldn't be, you know, I mean there's job elsewhere that
we can put our construction people to work, we can put other people to work in other areas of the
community, and they mentioned like sustainability projects, working on getting hospitals,
schools, et cetera. But you've got to look back. Where are you really going to get the money to
do that? I mean Mayor Tavares has just been asked to cut the budget, I believe, by about
16 percent or pull back on $55 million. Mr. Dowling is, is a businessman, and he's a very good
businessman, he's a very good citizen. But I don't think he can be expected to shift his funds
around solely for the benefit of the community. Every business has to take care of itself and the
investors have to be taken care of also. Each one of us in here is our own little business person.
I mean we go to work and we're not going to work because we're greedy, you know. We're
going to work because we need the means to take care of our families, to take care of ourselves.
And Mr. Dowling pretty much is the same, you know, he's his own business, you know. There's
no way that, you know, he would be able to divert his attentions from, you know, the projects or
his business and move it into other areas. Anyway, my reasons for asking for this discharge from
the Land Use Committee are the same. The economy needs a stimulation. This development has
been waiting for years. There has been a lot of talk already, there was a lot of talk today, and a
lot of it I'm sure is repetitive. Hopefully you'll make a decision very soon to take it out of the
Land Use Committee -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. GOODNESS: --as Kimokeo said, and take it into the full Council, and let's discuss it a little more
there. And hopefully, we will come to an agreement, an approval, and we will all see that this
development is good for Maui, for Hawaii, for all of the people sitting in here. We need help and
we need it now, and we're looking forward to your assistance, please. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Charlie. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you very much for your testimony, Charlie. Okay. Members, it is 3:42.
Let's take a break, and let's return at 4:00 sharp. This meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS: 3:42 p.m.
RECONVENE: 4:07 p.m.
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CHAIR MOLINA:
. . .(gavel). . .
The Land Use Committee meeting for Wednesday,
November 19, 2008, is now back in session. Thank you very much for that break, Members. It
is seven minutes after the hour of 4:00, and before we proceed with public testimony, the Chair
would like to recognize the presence of Council Chairman Hokama to our proceedings this
afternoon. Members, we have a request from Natasha Gonzales who had to step out. We called
her name earlier and she had to step out for some important matter, and I know we recognized
John Cahill and Steve Hart to testify after the break. If there are no objections, I'd like to give
Ms. Gonzales the opportunity to testify, Members. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Gonzales, please proceed.
MS. GONZALES: Hi, my name is Natasha Gonzales and I'm a taxpayer of Hawaii, I'm a resident. I'm
also a descendent of the Hawaiian Monarch. Okay. First of all, I wanted to address is our aina is
already doing bad enough already, you know. I'm also a bodyboarder and a surfer. I love
Makena. I'm there everyday. Where do you think people go on their downtime that's free and
you don't have to pay to go to the beach? There's not going to be parking for locals here at that
area in Makena. There's--of course, I'm not against anybody. We need jobs, everybody needs
jobs. It's hard times right now. The economy is going down as it is whether you build it or not.
We just hope and wish that you guys take into consideration that you will ruin our culture, where
we come from, who we are. I mean my therapist tells me that. I should go out and use it on
something that's good. Surfmg is a part of my life. I hope and wish that I can take my two little
boys when they get older to surf at the same spot where I learned to surf. My aumakua is there,
also archeology that hasn't been discovered yet. You'll be building over heiaus, burial grounds,
a part of our past which is important and makes us who we are today. And I had a few questions
also about all of this happening a few years ago, right? And how can you vote on something
that's been in the past? It's like forging a lie basically that was done years ago and then changing
it and making it legal. That's not right. I just hope that you guys take it into consideration,
especially for the locals. We're all basically going downhill from here. I know that the rich
known as Japanese, people from all over the world that don't even live here and have to deal
with this and cope with it and hurt just as much as every other local. Just like with the jobs,
everybody needs jobs like I said.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. GONZALES: Everybody needs jobs. Okay. So what can we do that's good and a positive that's
not going to hurt? There's other places that can be built on that's not going to hurt our
archeology, our local people, our economy. Water is important, too, we fish there. A lot of our
economy is feeding off of the ocean, including land. Water is our source for vegetables,
vegetables, fruits. Where we going to get that from after it's all gone? That's all I have to say.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Natasha. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you for your testimony.
- 90 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, we have John Cahill followed by Steve Hart. John Cahill? Not
here? Okay. Next, Steve Hart followed by Vernon Ta' a. Steve Hart? Last call. Okay.
Vernon Ta'a followed by Scott Newman
MR. TA'A: Thank you, Chair Molina and Members of the Committee. I'm glad to be here and
appreciate the time that we're giving to the, to the public to testify. My name is Vernon Ta'a and
I'm speaking on behalf of Mr. Reginald Castanares, a Business Manager, Financial Secretary of
the Plumbers and Fitters Union Local 675. We are in strong support of this project. I have
submitted testimony, but I would like to just echo the testimony of a wonderful woman that I just
met today, and Laurie Chang, and echo her words in her testimony. I'm 66 years old, my family
comes from Maui. My grandfather Samuel Kalama, related to the Samuel Kalama who served
as, as chairman of the Board of Supervisors here in Maui. I am part of the Kalama clan I live
on Oahu, but my roots are here in, in Maui, from Maui, even from the Makena arena. My great,
great grandfather received an ahupua'a in Makena, Kihei about 30 acres during the Mahele. So
my roots are really here. But I must echo the words of Laurie Chang, I appreciate her. If it
wasn't for the developers, Makena would have been all dust, kiawe trees. It wasn't very nice in
those days. Same thing in Honolulu, you go to, you go to Hilton Hawaiian Village, the ocean
came right up to the wall where the Hale Koa Hotel . . . (change tape, start 5B). . . well, first, you
wouldn't have a sandy beach, you wouldn't have the tourists coming to Waikiki. There was no
sand in Waikiki. So I'm, I'm grateful for the developers that came and made Hawaii look better.
On Molokai, I had to go to an outhouse in Hoolehua with no light, no hot water. Try go in there
with all the cockroaches and the centipedes in the outhouse.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. TA'A: You'd be very grateful for the plumbers.
ALL: . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. TA'A: So I must echo her, her sentiments because I knew what it was like to, to have to go to an
outhouse with no lights. And if it's raining, you had to find your way to the outhouse with a
flashlight. That's, that's not how I want to go back to. I don't want to live in a grass shack. It
leaks, too. But I do want to say that government--and add this to my testimony--that government
does not create revenues, and you all know that. Government simply -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. TA'A: --redistributes revenue. The taxes that come into government come from private sector.
This is a private sector project that generates income and revenues for us to use as tax as, as the
government. So it's the private sector that gives the taxes. The government redistributes the
taxes into all the different, into the different parts of our government. I agree with Laurie Chang
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that all of Hawaii is sacred. I am, I am, I firmly believe that when God made Hawaii, what was
leftover he made San Francisco, California. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Ta'a. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, Scott Newman followed by Geoff Moore.
Scott Newman?
MR. NEWMAN: Aloha, my name is Scott Newman I want to thank the Council Members for calling
this meeting, and I also would like to call for a p.m. meeting in Kihei to give other people a
chance to testify. I appreciate the efforts of the Members, especially Ms. Anderson. Thank you
very much for your continued passionate at hurling yourself against brick walls constantly in
your effort to preserve the integrity of this island. Mahalo nui. I have a hard time wrapping my
head around the idea that all Hawaii is sacred, because somehow I think Makena is more sacred
than the rest of Hawaii. I'm trying to balance that out. Makena is a place of spiritual
rejuvenation for many people. Many people who come here enjoy the peace that Makena offers.
I, myself, have for probably half my life. To develop this area, to me it seems obvious that to
develop the area more than what it is already developed negates its value, it actually devalues it.
How can we have such a wonderful, beautiful place that people, residents, and visitors alike like
to visit if it's all developed? I've met people from Wailua, not from Wailua, from staying at the
Four Seasons in Wailea recently that said it felt so good to get off that ship. And I said, well,
what do you mean, you're staying at the Four Seasons? I thought does a cruise ship package
deals with Four Seasons? They said oh, no, Wailea, we call it a ship because it's like a cruise
ship. Getting out of Wailea is really nice, we're glad to get out of there, might as well be in
Beverly Hills is what they said. Might as well be in Beverly Hills And I hate to see the rest of
Makena being developed as a place similar to Beverly Hills because it has so much to offer.
Pretty much I think half of the gallery was employees of the Maui Prince, and I think it's a shame
that Mr. Dowling didn't have lunch catered for us. It would have been a good use of aloha tax
deductible spirit to provide lunch for us all, but I'm still hungry. I think the promotion of gated
communities being a good thing is pretty much abominable. Gated communities are the most
contra-aloha exhibition that I can imagine, and we're being sold the idea that these things are
good, that they're good for the island and they're good for us, and it puts dinner on our table.
And I need work. I am hoping that this week my, my unemployment benefits come through,
because I don't know how I'm going to pay my mortgage this month. I live up in Pukalani, I
have six people living in my house. We get to share 363 gallons of water. And when I hear these
people in Wailea get to use 2,000 gallons of water, it makes me upset, it upsets me. And these
people coming into South Maui to, to stay in, in Wailea, well, they need their air conditioning
24/7. I just read in The Maui News last week that Maui is leading the State in emissions of gas,
greenhouse gases.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. NEWMAN: We are leading the State. And any more development of this kind of exuberant
consummation of our resources to me is, is death to the area. Again, developing that area negates
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its value, it makes it valueless. Its value is in the pristine beauty that is there now. Thank you for
hearing me.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Newman
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony. Next, we have Geoff Moore followed by Russell Duarte.
MR. MOORE: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for allowing me to testify today. I'd like to start
off by saying that I'm here representing a lot of family and friends who can't make it here today
because they are working and that I also took today off from work to testify. I'd like to request
that there be a meeting held in the evening in Kihei so it's more convenient for working families
to come and testify. My ohana and I are opposed to up-zoning Makena Resort. While we want
Maui County families to have work, we want them to have work that will benefit the residents of
the island. Building high density luxury housing for rich people who do not live on Maui will
not help the working families on this island. And the fact is that Makena Resort already has the
zoning to build and put people to work, so if they're so concerned about rushing to get people
work, then they can move forward now with the zoning that they have. But we know that their
concern is not for the working families on Maui but for maximum profit for their investors and
shareholders at the expense of our island community. Everett Dowling has been green washing
our community for years now and we don't buy it. Spreading charitable contributions around the
island and pretending to be green does not excuse developing the last precious open spaces we
have here on Maui. Maui's economy depends on tourism. Tourists come to Maui because it's a
beautiful place. If we don't protect what's left of Maui's fragile environment, tourists will stop
coming. If Makena Resort gets the zoning they want, we'll have a city looming over Makena
which will put more stress on our reefs and the endangered sea turtles which come to, to Oneloa
Beach for nesting grounds. It's time to conduct a new environmental impact statement for this
project as it has not been done since 1974. We think the Council owes it to the community of
Maui Nui to wait for the General Plan Advisory Committee to conclude their hard work before
you move forward with a decision on whether to grant Makena Resort the up-zoning they want.
It would break my heart to see Makena, the last of Maui's undeveloped leeward shores, taken
over by part-time residents who only take from Maui and give nothing back in return. I know
each of the Council Member here, Council Members here today have made campaign promises
to protect Maui's environment and their island lifestyle, so I hope you will live up to those
promises by voting no on Makena Resort's up-zoning and also give the working community a
chance to have their voices heard by having a meeting scheduled in Kihei in the evening. Thank
you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Moore, for your testimony. Committee Members, questions
for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to testify, we have Russell Duarte followed by
Irene Bowie.
MR. DUARTE: Well, well, this says good morning, but it's good afternoon. My name is Russell Duarte
and I'm speaking in favor of the Makena Resort's rezoning approval. Throughout our nation and
till the island of Maui, we have been adversely affected by a gravely weakened economy. I do
not believe there is anybody, anyone in this room that's not affected by our weakened economy.
Our union brothers and sisters and all the other people in the stores that are related to the support
of the industry, construction here on Maui, they're all being affected. There's no lie about that.
Numbers of unemployment, we have not seen like this for years, years. Our unemployment here
in the State of Hawaii and Maui County, it's probably at the highest it's ever been for such a long
time. Now this project has been on the books for ten years, a decade. It's a very, very long time
for decision-making. I'd like to see and I hope to see that we can make a real quick decision.
There is many, many jobs at stake. We have a developer here that's willing to provide work
opportunity, work opportunity in the construction industry and the related industries soon, maybe
right away. It weighs on a lot of people here in the room, our supporters but you, our honored
Council. If passed, this project will greatly help in bringing back--that's a glass dropper, isn't it?
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. DUARTE: If passed, this project will greatly help in bringing back many in the construction
industry and the related fields. Further, the State of Hawaii, likewise Maui County, our Mayor,
you here in the Council have seeked, seeked out businesses and industries that are more energy
independent. The Makena Resort is the right choice because it will take great measures in
creating a green and ecofriendly efficient resort. That's right. We've seen the plans. We've been
in our employee cafeteria. Mr. Dowling and his corporation have shared that. We are very, very
proud. And, you know, I know somebody said earlier that we're getting paid and you know
what, we did get lunch. But that just goes to show our, our owner cares about us, the employees.
You know, you say well, he paid the employees to come here. You know, the employees
volunteered to come here on their own, a number of them. After he found out so many
employees was coming here, he asked the management, us, to find out if we could find some laid
off or on-call or casual employees to cover the shifts at the hotel, because the hotel doesn't close
down when they come here. So, you know, in a long way about it, we gave work opportunity to
people who didn't have work. And yes, lunch was good. Thank you, Mr. Dowling, it was a
delicious lunch. We wish you could have all come because we had extra.
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. DUARTE: In deciding this development you, the Maui Resort developer has a great reputation in
keeping and developing, and we'd like to develop a state-of-the-art development that could be
the flagship example of doing a resort the right way, and having an ecofriendly green resort
would create jobs not only in the industry for -- 94 -
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MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. DUARTE: --for construction, but it also would create long-term jobs in the visitor industry. And
you know what, some of you people opposing this that may be green, green friendly employees,
you know there may be opportunities for you. You ever thought about that? If we have an
ecofriendly, a solar farm, there may be jobs for you or other people, our children that aspire to
get out of the visitor industry or construction and going to something, the newest technology.
And we are going to have a resort, we are going to have a resort that's going to be the most
technologically advanced. It's going to be the envy of the country. People don't see. I see it.
I'm the Night Manager at the hotel. I have to greet some of Mr. Dowling's guests It's not
advertised. He doesn't go about and putting it in the papers. But he brings in all these people
from across the country, all makes of life and in education, technology, he's bringing in as
consultants.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. DUARTE: Why is he doing that? Because he wants a great resort. And one last thing--thank
you--is culturally Mr. Dowling is striving for a Hawaiian ethnic culture. Do you think that the
type of people ethnically that he's bringing in, the Hawaiian people, that after he hires all of
these people he would desecrate the graves of their family members? Are you insane? Come on,
who you kidding?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Duarte-MR. DUARTE: So all I ask, in closing, is that we take a serious look, you in the Council take a serious
look at this, and ten years is long enough. Please, please pass this from Committee to the
Council and let's get the ball started. Let's get these people back to work. All of them. Thank
you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Duarte. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony, Mr. Duarte.
MR. DUARTE: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Next to testify, we have Irene Bowie followed by Meg Brown.
MS. BOWIE: Aloha, Chair and Council Members. I'm Irene Bowie, Executive Director of Maui
Tomorrow Foundation. Maui Tomorrow has been tracking development projects in Makena for
nearly two decades. We've heard all the promises and we've seen those promises broken.
You're being told that granting additional entitlements to Makena Resort will create jobs, that all
you need to do is make the zoning process work. The present and former Members of this
Committee discussed and approved this project four years ago with 41 conditions, so there's no
- 95 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

need to change or review conditions now except as suggested by the developer. Don't accept
these statements at face value, instead consider the facts. In 2006, Dowling Company was given
entitlements to build a gated luxury condo project just south of the Maui Prince. The Planning
Commission was told this project would create 1,500 construction jobs between 2006 and 2009
at the project's completion. Well, the area has been blasted, bulldozed, and scraped for two years
now. Have those 1,500 construction jobs ever materialized? It's my understanding that
Mr. Dowling and his investors have asked the Planning Department to up-zone an additional 600
acres of Makena Resort land as part of the Maui Island Plan update process. This would mean
that no review of environmental, social, or cultural impacts on these lands would be required
until after the first entitlement decision is made. This second rezoning request is not before you
today, but should bring up questions as to whether today's rezoning request is about jobs or
maximizing corporate profits, in other words flipping the property once it is the desired zoning.
Makena Resort already has the right to seek building permit approvals on over 100 acres. In
light of the economic crisis we now face, it would behoove the Council to make sure that
Makena Resort's backers have firm financing to guarantee these promised jobs. Remember
Seibu's outrage when it was suggested that they only pursued rezoning because they intended to
sell the resort lands for a sizeable profit? When the price was right, that's exactly what they did.
Can any of you assure the thousands of people who just voted you back into office that what is
being promised today will actually come to pass? If not, reject this corporate move on one of
Maui's greatest natural and cultural assets. Let Mr. Dowling provide the jobs he has already
promised our community. Let him use the zoning he already has, and let the fmal development
of Makena Resort be decided in the new Maui Island Plan with real input from the hundreds of
people who participated in that process. Any zoning application that requires 41 conditions to
bring it into compliance is fatally flawed. Since the Land Use reviewed this application and the
attached 41 conditions, Wailea 670 has been reviewed with conditions of its own and we don't
know how these two projects will jive. Councilmembers Baisa, Victorino, and Pontanilla, I sat
with you and 300 members of our community -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. BOWIE: --last Saturday at Christ the King Church as you pledged along with FACE Maui to work
towards affordable housing and appropriate land use and for better, more diversified jobs. I urge
you today to make good on that pledge and push for jobs that create affordable housing along
with jobs that increase efficiency. Revamping existing buildings, cars, and appliances,
improving transit, waste, and water infrastructure--these are the jobs that will keep our County
working and our quality of life something we can be proud to pass on to our children and
grandchildren. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Bowie.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony.
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MS. BOWIE: I also do have a map that was passed out at the GPAC that's the 600 acres that I referred
to, so you'll be receiving that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We've got, we've got the map and so this yellow and green, I
guess, is supposed to all be green.
MS. BOWIE: You know, the yellow, it's all supposed to be green but my printer, my color printer was
running out. . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So is all this green that is around the -MS. BOWIE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the north, the northwest -MS. BOWIE: Northwest, right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --portion of the current Makena Resort, that is the area that's 600
acres that he wants to be Rural zoning-MS. BOWIE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --which is currently Ag and pastureland?
MS. BOWIE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other questions? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony,
Ms. Bowie. Next to testify, we have Meg Brown followed Ben Raimo. Meg Brown? Okay.
Not here. Ben Raimo? Ben Raimo? Margaret Crose [sic] or is it Cruse, I'm sorry.
Margaret Cruse? Margaret Cruse? Not here? Bill Kamai followed by Jackie Haraguchi.
MR. KAMAI: Aloha and good afternoon, Council Members, Chairman Molina. For us it's about jobs,
it's about the work, it's about the employment opportunities that if this application is approved,
that it would be afforded us in the construction industry. This is how we pay our bills, this is
how we put food on the table, this is how we put gas in our car, this is how we pay for our kids to
go to college Imagine, if you will, if you got laid off, everyone in this room, tomorrow no more
work, stay home already. First thing that cross your mind is did I save enough money to help my
spouse, my, my kids, my moopunas get over this slump while I'm not working? Second thing
that comes to mind is how I going pay my bills? First thing you do is you go to unemployment
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office, you file for unemployment, and what that does is starts the clock ticking. You got six
months of unemployment or "x" amount of dollars to use in that time period before you find
another job. But nobody tells the cable company you not working, nobody tells the Maui
Electric, nobody tells the phone company, nobody tells the, the credit card people, nobody tells
the bank, the mortgage lenders, the people you pay rent to that you're not working. Okay? After
that you collect unemployment insurance and when that runs out you, what the bruddah said
earlier, you got to think about moving to Las Vegas because you cannot feed your family, cannot
pay rent, cannot pay your mortgage, you lose your house, it's tough. And currently, we have
243 members going through that scenario what I described to you just now. Makes for a tough
Thanksgiving. I heard Foodland get turkeys for sale, I don't even want to get into Christmas, but
that's what our members are going through right now. There's no jobs right now in the pipeline.
I know that there are over 50 percent of the Operators Union out of work and that's, that spells
troubled time for the rest of us. Because the operators go in there first, after them comes the
plumbers, electricians, carpenters, the rest of the trades people. And when the operators' bench is
over 50 percent, that tell us that there's no work in the pipeline for the rest of us. This body has
the opportunity to create some relief for our members in the construction industry. And it's not
just us, it's our brothers and sisters in the hotel and tourism industry as well. After we gone -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. KAMAI: --we create job opportunities for people at front desks, housekeeping, landscaping,
maintenance workers. This is an island economy, and what we do affects other people. When
we run out of jobs and when we run out of work opportunities, we're in competition with the
hotel workers, too. So, I ask you to give us some relief and approve this application. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kamai. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Kamai, thank you for being here. You
heard earlier testimony from someone who said that two planeloads of construction workers
from Oahu arrived here on Monday. During the Wailea 670 hearings I tried to put a condition in
that would require the developer to use Maui labor, specifically Maui union labor. And you at
that time testified that it wasn't necessary, that a handshake was good enough. Do you still feel
that way?
MR. KAMAI: Yes, I do.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
for your testimony, Mr. Kamai.
MR. KAMAI: Thank you.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, we have Jackie Haraguchi followed by Ki'inani Kaho'ohanohano
MS. HARAGUCHI: Hi, I'm Jackie Haraguchi from the Maui Contractor's Association, and I also am
here to plead and let everybody know that our industry is in dire times. I have members that now
are in the shortfall from 20 to 80 percent of their company. I have owners sharing days off with
their employees because they don't want to lay them off I have owners who are barebones now
with just themselves and their secretary because they have no work. So, I am here to ask you to
take a stand for the economy, for our industry and to say yes and push this, this project forward.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Haraguchi. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, Ki'inani Kaho'ohanohano followed by Shannon Guillermo.
Ki'inani? Not here? Okay. Shannon Guillermo followed by Ralph Overton. Shannon? Okay.
On the way.
MR. GUILLERMO: Good afternoon, Council Members. My name is Shannon Guillermo. I wanted to
thank you guys for the opportunity to be able to share our mana'o with you guys. This, Makena
has always been a sore spot for me because it's where I grew up, it's where I learned the core
values from my family to be able to become the person that I am today. It's hard for me to come
up here and speak because we as a community need to come together. I watched the community
on Molokai be divided because of what happened with Molokai Ranch, and the people on both
sides both had the right answers. It's just they needed to come together. So with the decisions
that were made they still had, it divided families, it divided, you know, husbands and wives, it
divided kids and parents, and it's the same thing that's happening now. I don't know
Mr. Dowling. Today was the first time I actually even saw what he looked like, and I have
nothing personal against this person, and I have nothing personal against all of you in here,
because everybody's here for what they believe is right and they're all here for the right reasons.
You know, you guys have families, you guys need jobs, you guys need to have your finances and
stuff in line to be able to provide, and you don't do that at the expense of taking away the
innocence and taking away what is vital to the community. I mean there has to be options, you
know. I moved back home from the mainland 'cause my mom had to have a kidney transplant
and I had to watch her go through some tough times. And when we were in the hospital if the
doctor told me oh, we going try this or maybe this going work, I was like, bruddah, you crazy,
you not going, you know, test tube my mom, you not going try stuff and try figure stuff out with
her life in the balance. You going sit down, no matter how long going take, and you going figure
out the right answer before you proceed on, and that's what I'm asking you guys to do. There's
things and there's rules and stuff in place to do the right thing so that everything goes through.
Yeah, the community needs jobs, but from what I understand and maybe somebody needs to
explain this to me or clear it up for me, is that the jobs won't be available tomorrow. So this
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whole thing is, is based around our economy as far as we don't control the tourists that come in
on the plane, we don't control how much money they spend or when they come or how they
come. So even if all of this got approved and we had a brand new hotel tomorrow, we just snap
our fingers and there's a hotel, the construction guys had jobs, they get paid; the workers all that
work in the hotel, they all get paid. If tourists don't come to spend their money on the island
wherever it's at on the island, we don't control that, that's, that's beyond our control, beyond our
means. But we did it at the cost of desecrating sacred sites. I just wanted to share two things. I
got, I believe it's called an EA, an environmental assessment, and this EA was for Mr. Dowling.
This was prepared in August, 2006, prepared for Keaka LLC. I've heard a lot of people come up
here and say that Mr. Dowling is a great guy and I'm pretty sure he is, and he probably has good
intentions for whatever he's doing. But this -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. GUILLERMO: --this people that he hired that did this study, it says right here if native Hawaiian
rights exist on the property and not other properties, it could have a negative effect on the value
of the property. So this tells me right now that if he were to say there's these archeological sites
or sacred sites on his property, his property value goes down through the toilet. So that
automatically tells me from what I'm reading is that he just going overlook stuff or he going hire
people that overlook stuff, and everything should be taken into consideration because we all
supposed to be coming together to figure out one, a solution for everybody. We shouldn't be
divided, you know, the developer on one side, the community on the other. We all from Maui.
What you guys do at work affects me. If we plant 3,000 people in Makena, how we supposed to
get to the beach? Even more worse if we get one fire, how the 3,000 people supposed to get out
of Kihei? There is no other route, there is one road in. You're talking about putting people in
danger.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. GUILLERMO: So all I ask is that you make the right decisions at the right time and think about
the overall community, not just one side, because there's more than one side involved. Thank
you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Shannon. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, we have Ralph Overton followed by
Clyde Hayashi.
MR. OVERTON: Good day, Council Members. My name is Ralph Overton, I'm testifying on behalf of
the Dorvin D. Leis Company. I had the opportunity to witness the meeting of November 7 th and
witnessed the testimony given by nearly 25 citizens. We are all facing difficult times with
layoffs, project slowdowns, and tourism drop-off. However, there is a theme of change and hope
everywhere and that change and that hope is in our ability to move forward. Your action
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. . .(change tape, start 6A). . . essentially a huge impact on everyone's families and our

community, providing the Committee takes the important steps, which probably will be
tomorrow, to move forward. I urge the Committee to move forward, to move forward to pass the
Change in Zoning on to first reading. I would like to take a brief look back in the history of this
draft bill in order to see why we must move forward. As we have seen, a request for a Change in
Zoning was initiated by application on November 8, 1999, and on July 25, 2000 the Maui
Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the request to Change in Zoning subject
to ten conditions. On March 12, 2001, the Committee deferred consideration of the draft bill.
On July 5, 2001, the Committee deferred consideration of the draft bill. In August 2001, the
Committee deferred consideration. At its meeting of September 5, 2001, the Committee deferred
consideration. On October 8, 2001, again the Committee deferred consideration. While change
did occur at the October 29, 2001 meeting, the Land Use Committee recommended that the
revised draft bill pass first reading and that the County Clerk record the unilateral and declaration
for conditional zoning. Two years later, the Committee had a site inspection. Between
March 8, 2004 and April 14, 2004, the Committee held 17 meetings without moving forward and
passing of final reading. Today, over four and a half years later, the Council Committee has
another chance to move forward by passing the change on to first reading. The Dowling
Company is highly respected and is a community-minded developer. Now let me repeat that,
they are highly respected and are a community-minded developer contrary to what a lot of other
things I've heard up here today have said. They address all reasonable concerns and conditions,
as I understand it have. . .but four conditions that haven't been met as we speak today. This is a
quality project which will help with construction industry sustainability and provide
infrastructure progress. And speaking of moving forward, what about an infrastructure project to
put people to work and build what's needed for Maui to move forward? A great example can be
seen the other day in Oahu whereby water officials decided against moving forward -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. OVERTON: --with a desalination plant, and the reasons provided, consumer demand had dropped
due to decrease in population growth and better consumer water conservation, a project that costs
an estimated $20 million. So let's, why not tap into the knowledge gained from their project,
perhaps we can effectively address the Maui water issue with construction of a desalination plant
that would be a great opportunity to get behind and support, maybe not by the Dowling
Company, but how about us as taxpayers. I would, I would support that kind of project. So,
again, I ask you and I urge and I ask the Council Members what do you guys say? Let's move
forward tomorrow. Thank you for the opportunity.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for testimony. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Mr. Overton. Next to testify, we have Clyde Hayashi
followed by George Aikala.
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MR. HAYASHI: Good afternoon, Chair Molina, Council Members. My name is Clyde Hayashi. I, I'm
testifying on behalf of Hawaii LECET. Hawaii LECET is a partnership between our signatory
contractors and Hawaii Laborers Union Local 368. I want to echo much of what bruddah
Bill Kamai talked about. Our union, we have the same situation, 25 to 30 percent of our
members are on the bench right now. Relief is needed now for those members, those workers,
and their families. But I think maybe more important is the need for economic stimulus because
as we, as we talk with our members and we talk to contractors, what they see down the road isn't
very, isn't very good. I mean we don't see, the light at the end of the tunnel is very dim. And so
what we're hearing is that as time goes on we're going to, our bench is going to grow and grow.
Something is needed to get, kick-start the economy, something is needed. This, approval of this
would show other investors, right, that, that, that there's a positive movement. This, and, and the
other thing I want to mention is that this project is slated to be, this isn't just temporary work, the
work is slated, this whole project would take from what I've heard over 30 years. Maui, Maui
members, Maui workers can work, can be provided jobs for that long a period of time. The other
thing I wanted to mention is that we're, the Laborers Union at the national level and locally are
very concerned about green building, very concerned about, about the whole, our leaders are
involved in the Apollo Alliance at the national level. And I want to share that Dowling
Company, Everett, Jennifer Stites, and others have been leaders in this area in promoting green
building. They've been active trying to get architects more educated about green building.
They're involved in a lot of community forums, a lot of conferences encouraging people to really
look at the problem of global warming, look at the problem of greenhouse gases. And I think
that he's been a, he's been a leader in this area. I think he deserves support. It'd be great to see
an entire project built green, green building. Green building is really something that's needed.
Right now that's actually contributing more to greenhouse gas emissions than transportation.
Sixty percent, 70 percent of the energy consumed is used for buildings like this, air conditioning,
computers, lights, and so on, you know, and then he's been a leader in this area. So. . .and again,
I want to re-emphasize relief is needed now, so we hope that the Council will see favorably on
this project. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for your testimony. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Mr. Hayashi.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, George Aikala followed by Marc Turtletaub.
MR. AIKALA: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, Members, Council Members. My name is
George Aikala. I'm the Field Representative for the Laborers Union Local 368 here on the island
of Maui. As Clyde Hayashi just said a little while ago, we're between the 25 to the 30 percent
bracket area of unemployment. The reason why we're not that high like the rest of the trades is
because of the fact the laborers are the first ones in and the last ones out; and this has always
been that, that scenario. So we still have some people working, but we have a lot of people that
are out of work. We're talking about 40, excuse me, we're talking about 85 people out of work
right now on the island of Maui. I know Ms. Anderson said something about two planeloads
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coming in from Oahu and stuff like that landing here on Maui bringing in construction workers.
These construction workers are in the trades. There are special key workers that come here
because they probably haven't any work over there on Oahu, that are coming here to work
alongside with the Maui workers that are here. Of course, some of the companies are letting go
some of the workers here on Maui, but some of them are still working. The Carpenters Union,
what do you call, 200, 200 members out of work. That's a shame right now. You know, the
thing about it is, and now that people come up here and they're testifying about Makena, they
don't really know the whole issue. The thing about it is we want rezoning above the Makena
Road, not down in the ocean area. Okay? It's not going to affect the Monk Seals, it's not going
to affect your surfing or whatever you going to do down in there. Of course, maybe the traffic
will, what do you call, increase after a period of time. We're talking about 1,000 units, not 1,600
units. So you guys that are the leaders out there that are trying to tell these people what's
happening in Makena, please give them the true, what do you call, lowdown on what's
happening in Makena. Don't be telling them, oh, it's going to go, you guys not going be
swimming down there, the fish is not going to be there anymore, there's not going to be any
diving. No. The project is above the Makena Road, above the golf course area. Now another
thing, they always come up here and they say, hey, where the water going come from? When I
was here Friday, I remember Mr. Dowling say he has 12 wells, 9 of them are in operation right
now, 3 of them are basaltic. But he also stood here and he said that he's willing to build a
desalinization plant in Makena that's going to cost them $23 million if they get the approval for
this, what do you call, zoning. So are you listening? Is anybody listening to this? It's going to
help the people here on Maui, the residents. Okay? And as for these guys that do their kayaking
and stuff like that, that's property that Mr. Dowling owns and if he, and it's his prerogative to say
you can't use it, you can't use it. Okay? The Makena Landing where that restroom is located
down there, it's privately owned and guess who takes care of those, what do you call, restrooms
down there? It's the employees from, what do you call, Maui Prince, they're the ones that go
down there and clean those toilets -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. AIKALA: --that the public uses it, you know. And he's not stopping them from going there, and
he's not going to stop you from using that area either, my Hawaiian bruddahs and my Hawaiian
sisters. Okay? So now we got to look at these things, we need jobs, people are hurting. We got
people that bought homes about a year and a half ago, they can't pay their mortgages. Some of
them are moving back with their parents. I know because I got a son. Okay? I want him to
move back out again, no. . . .(chuckle). . .
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. AIKALA: But anyway, this is what's happening. So look at this situation, there is water, these
people have the water, they're willing to pay to build a plant, $23 million. You know how much
work that's going to do for the island of Maui? Okay? So let's. . .whoever is organizing these
people, please let them know it's not going to touch the ocean. All right?
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MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. AIKALA: It's not going to bother the Monk Seals. And if this continues to go on, some people
probably be eating the Seals. Okay?
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Aikala.
MR. AIKALA: Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to
testify, we have Marc Turtletaub. Marc Turtletaub? Not here? Kenny Hultquist?
Kenny Hultquist? Gone. Lee Altenberg? Okay. Excuse me. Kenny, Kenny's here. Okay.
Mr. Hultquist.
MR. HULTQUIST: Good afternoon. God, it would have been great to follow Marc Turtletaub, he's a
great guy. My name's Kenny Hultquist. I've lived on Maui for 18 years and in Lahaina for 12.
I'm a self-employed papermaker, fiber artist, and an independent videographer, and I currently
have 58 programs on my producer list at Akaku. A lot of the people that have been coming up
here, constituents--actually, I've been home in Lahaina watching this for the last five hours on
TV. I just took the bus over here. I planned on coming here. I stayed up to 4:00 in the morning
and did my testimony and wrote it all down and fell asleep and got up too late to be here to, now,
to be here early enough. It's going on long enough that I actually got to take the bus and get over
here. Let me start on my testimony. Many of the constituents testifying today against the
rezoning of Makena Resort will be pointing out the obvious issues like lack of water resources,
archeological surveys, or out-dated traffic studies. It's disappointing that Everett Dowling has
brainwashed or bribed people into believing that approval will immediately generate jobs for
hundreds of unemployed residents and that the labor force hired to construct these affordable
homes will qualify to buy and live in one. The focus of my testimony today is to communicate
to this Council the significant collateral damage to the overall health and welfare of Maui
County. Certain injustices have occurred as an unintended consequence of previous approvals of
Dowling developments. This past October 23 rd, the Policy Committee unanimously rejected a
resolution to seek State legislation that would take cable access fees from Akaku Community
Television and be given to the County government. Riki Hokama who introduced the resolution
for the Committee to consider said, and I paraphrase, "I'm confident that we can put forth a
proposal and hopefully convince the Legislature to consider a higher percentage be provided
from the current cable provider." Jo Anne Johnson supported this statement and emphasized the
desire to maintain transparency in government. Gladys Baiasa [sic], I'm sorry, Baisa -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Perfect.
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MR. HULTQUIST: --said I would like to join Chair Hokama and Ms. Johnson in supporting some sort
of new law that would provide an adequate funding source to Akaku to do the work that they do.
It just makes sense, it's what democracy is all about. And I would take that to mean that this
Council supports Akaku and what it stands for.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. HULTQUIST: Everett Dowling is a well connected and influential UH, ex-UH regent who just
happens to have an intense dislike for Akaku. It's no secret that the man whose company's motto
is "Building in Balance" spent a couple of hundred thousand dollars in 2005 arranging for
SB 959 and HB 748 to be introduced to the State Legislature, and they were bills designed to
reduce Akaku funding by two-thirds. The Senate and House bills died, but meanwhile Dowling
was able to influence the DCCA to appoint friends of his like Charlie Jencks to the board of
Akaku and succeeded in stacking the board eight to seven and immediately fired the CEO. After
15 years of stellar community service providing uncensored programming and all these cameras
that are sitting around here is Akaku, and that's why everybody at home can watch what's going
on right now today, uncensored programming to Maui community citizens -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. HULTQUIST: --and winning praise from many entities, including Governor Lingle. And the battle
for the control of Maui community television continues to this day. Dowling has not abandoned
his assault on Akaku and his latest attempt to legitimize and justify his goal to take over and
censor Akaku, he started funding a business in Paia called Maui Media Lab. . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Kenny. Kenny, can you hang on? Can you tie your comments back into the
project itself?
MR. HULTQUIST: Actually this is, I really believe that what I'm talking about is part of what's going
on. Because if you guys agree to approve Dowling's project in Makena, that will, that will
supply him more funds to combat freedom of speech and try to take Akaku out. So to me that's
something that is inherent in what we're approving here today, we're talking about. So I'll cut to
the end. I respectfully urge that Maui County Land Use Committee reject this Zoning Change
for Makena Resort -MS. NAKATA: Five minutes.
MR. HULTQUIST: --and to redirect your priorities to advocate and encourage true affordable housing
developers who don't want to use their personal wealth to provide homes for the privileged rich
while taking resources and opportunities from the general public. In other words, send this
carpetbagger packing.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your comments. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? Okay. Thanks for your testimony, Kenny.
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MR. HULTQUIST: Thank you for the time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Lee Altenberg, I believe he's out. Okay. Jennifer Jensen followed by
Kurt Baumhower [sic]. I hope I got that correct.
MS. JENSEN: Hello, my name is Jennifer Jensen and thank you for giving us this opportunity to speak
here and give our opinions today. I've been inspired to free dive and explore the reefs on Maui
recently. As I dive off the beaches in Kihei and Wailea, I have become increasingly concerned
about the health of the reefs. What I observe are diseased and dying coral forests. I see the
creatures that remain in the ocean existing in this much degraded landscape and I feel
embarrassed that humans are causing this destruction. It feels to me so shortsighted that the
health of the reefs have been bypassed in this race to develop Kihei and Wailea. We may be very
successful at creating pleasant environments for humans above ground while we completely
ignore the effects that our manmade environments are having on the oceans. I'm not a scientist,
but it is clear that development is what is causing the worst destruction. Whether it is the silt
smothering the reefs or the algae blooms from the nitrogen runoff, it seems we have initiated a
mass die-off of corals and the downward spiral of the reef ecosystem. I have a very difficult time
with environmental destruction. I believe there really is no excuse for it. If we destroy the
natural landscape in order to attempt to make a paradise for the few in a desert with no water, we
are not taking our role as stewards of the earth very seriously. It seems to me a blatant disregard
for our future to allow money to be the guiding force behind our actions. We do not need
5,000 square foot multimillion dollar condos, shopping malls, and golf courses rising up the
shores of Makena. If Everett Dowling is truly a green developer, then why would he be planning
to develop on a piece of land covered in hundreds of sacred sites and full of rare ecosystems? It
is inevitable that the reefs below this project will be degraded in the process. Dowling's current
development project adjacent to the Prince has increased the amount of silt covering the reef at
Maluaka Beach right now. My hope is that those in positions of power will recognize this
opportunity to stand up for the ones who don't have a voice in this discussion, that you recognize
that all life is sacred and should be cared for, not just the wealthiest 1 percent of the human race.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Jennifer. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, Kurt Baumhower [sic] followed by Mathew Driggers, and hopefully,
I pronounced your last name correctly, Kurt. My apologies if I didn't.
MR. BAUMHOVER: Close enough. It's Baumhover. And thank you very much for allowing this
opportunity to open these proceedings to the public. I hope you continue to do so and schedule
an evening meeting to allow more people who are working today to attend and who didn't have
the opportunity to be paid to be here. I hear that Everett Dowling is green, but I think we all
- 106 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

know he's white and I am as well, and that culture comes with a bit of embarrassment. And I, I
see the game, and I feel that the working people here have been duped and that they are carrying
forward the interests of the rich. It makes me sad to see. I wonder if you want to have the job, if
your. . .if it wants to be your hand that places the rock on that wall that separates the beach,
separates your heritage from your own people, from your future, from your children for their
ability to be there to know where they're from, to not have a homogenized culture like the
mainland like that runaway greed we've seen. It is, it is an issue of class as much as anything
else. I wish that we could look at this issue from the future and look back to see the, the impact
that this has on what's left after. You say that you need jobs now and that's a totally
understandable thing, but you have to consider what's left. This is permanent change, you can't
ever go back. To paraphrase a native American saying from the mainland, "After you've cut
down the last tree, and after you've poisoned the last river, and after you've killed the last fish
you'll realize that you can't eat money, and you can't buy any of it back". I believe that condos
for second homes for part-time residents of Maui worth millions of dollars is, is not a service to
the community as, in fact, putting outside of the realm of anyone here the ability to enjoy
Makena, the ability to have property, anything like that. The thing is it's, it's exclusive, it's
making more exclusive the water, it's making more exclusive access to the beach, it's destroying
the reefs, it's obvious. Right now above Makena Landing there is bare earth. Why was this earth
ripped bare right now for the rainy season just so that runoff can go right into the reef? I mean
that's unconscionable. We're talking about green building? Right there you can see it. It's
running right across the street, and now you want to do the whole hillside. Unbelievable. I can't
even believe this is the discussion.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. BAUMHOVER: I would just like to ask the people to reach out to the people who, who see this as
an opportunity to work, to realize that with creative thinking we can create jobs, jobs that we can
feel proud about and so we're not at issue with ourselves. We don't come here and have this
inner dialogue, turmoil inside because you know you're doing the right thing. You know that
you're creating a job and doing a job that's doing benefit for your whole community and is not
making this place a playground for the rich. It will make Maui more expensive. It will make it
more difficult for the working families if you continue to make this place a playground for the
rich. Your property taxes go up. Your standard of living goes down because more and more of
the resources available to you are scarce. And who are they going to go to? The ones who can
pay for them. I'd just like you to consider that your interests are not the same as the very rich.
We see now at a national level a $700 billion bailout -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. BAUMHOVER: --and that's what we're seeing here on a, on a smaller level.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR. BAUMHOVER: We're seeing just a take and a take and a take.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I have to ask you to wrap up. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? Okay. Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Baumhover.
MR. BAUMHOVER: Thanks. \
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Matthew Driggers followed by Rose Royce.
MR. DRIGGERS: I'm nervous. But I want to thank all the Council Members and all the Staff because
you guys probably have the hardest job. You got to listen to everybody get mad and stuff like
that, so I give you guys credit. I'm for the project. I've lived here my whole life. I used to camp
out down in Makena when I was a little kid. You could actually like drive up to the beach. And I
used to go diving and there was fish before and there's not that many, much fish nowadays. And
I don't really think that's a result of the buildings and all that. I think it's more just the people.
We weren't managing our lands correctly. But I think Dowling's a really good developer. I
actually believe in like the things he says. But I really don't believe in most people. That's the
thing, like they'll tell me all these spews and I listen to a lot of developers and people that come
here and then they leave, they do all kinds of stuff. But he actually like. . .he'll hire the smartest
guys, you know, and people talk about like the heiaus and all that. Like I see Uncle Bully on like
his golf cart driving around marking all these areas and stuff, and, and he's always out there, you
know. So for the heiau part I think he's doing it, a good job, you know. And I don't think
Dowling would allow anybody to cover up a heiau. And for the water and all that stuff he just,
he's an awesome individual, you know. We are so blessed to have a developer like him in charge
of something like this, you know. And everybody has faults in their, in their careers, their life
and stuff like that. But he's just a really good person and you'll, he's, he's not embarrassed to
hire an individual, and these individuals cost a lot of money. They're not like $10 an hour,
they're like couple hundred dollars an hour. And then like if you look around, it's like a lot of
local people. I'm pro-Maui, you know, I don't want to say that but I am. You know, I want to
see all my friends have jobs because most of them go to the mainland. I just had one of my dear
friends move away and that hurts me, you know, because he was a working friend. I have a lot
of friends here that don't work, you know.
ALL: . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. DRIGGERS: But that's what happens when you live here your whole life, you know, you're like
ho, did you get a job yet? I can't hang out with you until you get one. But he's just really good
and I had other things to say. Oh, like the, the earth is on ground over by the black rock kind of,
the black beach over there. That's because they're re-sodding so that they can actually save
water, because the current grass that we had at all the golf courses require too much water
because the salt was eating it up. So they're like re-sodding it to conserve water. So he's taking
initiatives to go green. He's going like above and beyond. He actually like throws meetings
about like all these high tech filters and stuff like that, to filter out all the debris before it hits the
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ocean. I got like a masters in business management. I went Stanford University for project
management. I'm on like a County board. I'm in the Guard part time. There's a lot of things I
do and like his stuff is just awesome, you know. Like, I'm like whoa, you know. Like I know a
lot of high tech stuff. I work with servers, computers, and stuff, but his stuff is cool, too, and I
think his project is just awesome. I love how he hires local families and stuff. If I looked around
and everybody wasn't from Hawaii, I would be like, you know, I would be against the project.
But he actually hires local people and he has like our best interest at hand.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. DRIGGERS: And I just want to thank you guys for doing an awesome job.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Driggers.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Next to
testify, we have Rose Royce followed by Elden Liu.
MS. ROYCE: Good afternoon, Council people. Nice to see you again. First, I'd like to emphasize the
fact that I have no interest in the Dowling Company and I'm not fmancially associated with the
Dowling Company. I am strictly here as a business person and as a resident of Maui since 1977.
I have seen a lot of changes on Maui, some of them good, some of them okay; however, most of
them have been good. And there are developers who have come and gone, which some of them I
really probably wouldn't like to remember. However, when it comes to Everett Dowling, I have
the highest regard for Mr. Dowling. I respect him as a human being, as a developer, and I don't
say this lightly, believe me. I respect him as a member of the community who does like me, me
on a small scale, manini, gives a lot of money to charities. Maui Arts and Cultural Center, you
name it, I mean he is always there with a pocket. He's in many ways also, like myself, I try to
hire as many local people, again on a manini scale. He is very supportive of the community.
Some of the testimony I have heard earlier is very, very hard for me to swallow because even so
I'm a business person, my heart and soul has always been for Maui and the Maui people and the
islands in general. If anybody cares more about the aina than I do, believe you me, I'm just like
a Hawaiian who has been born here or have been for, the family has been here for generations. I
love . . .(change tape, start 6B). . . Mr. Dowling feels the same way. But I also want for you to
understand how hard it is right now as a business person. Right now in this recession I, myself,
have to make the sacrifices so I do not have to lay anybody off If I would have to lay off my
secretary right now, she would lose her home. So for me there is no trips, except for the
bathroom, because it's free.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
MS. ROYCE: Okay. There is no shopping, except when I might need some panties, and I'm telling you
I go over to Wal-Mart, and that is the God's honest truth. Everybody says, oh, the rich people,
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the rich people. Well, let me tell you, right now nobody is rich, we're all pooling our resources.
However, we do need jobs, we do need to look for the future. Even so right now it's tough, but
you know what, the world ain't going to come to an end, there will be tomorrow.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. ROYCE: And we have to build for the future. Makena right now, in my opinion, is a bit of a
hodgepodge, but with Everett's project I think we can pull it all together. And with Wailea and
Makena we will remain the world-renowned resort destination. And when the people come with
the money, honey, I take the money. I am not prejudiced. Thank you very much and God bless
you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Rose Royce. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, we have Elden Liu followed by
Sandra Drane.
MR. LIU: Thank you for giving me this opportunity, Council Members, mahalo very much. Aloha
kakou to all in the audience. I am here today to share with you the issue of land ownership. This
property that we call Keauhou, the Ahupua'a of Keauhou, which would be on the Kahului side,
just roughly on the Kahului side of the Grand Wailea down to Poolenalena Beach or in that
section, and this proceeds all the way up pass Tedeschi Winery to the top of the mountain
somewhere below Polipoli Forest and this Pu'u Makua. Now this is the ahupua'a. This
ahupua'a was awarded to my ancestor back in 1848, I think February 4 th , and it was also worked
on again in August 11 th of 1852. But what I have here is a document from Susan Shaner, the
State Archivist, and may I read these? "I, Susan Shaner, State Archivist for the Public Archives
of the State of Hawaii, do certify that the attached document is a true and correct copy of Land
Commission Award 6715 and the Royal Patent is number 8213 to Hoomanawanui. She is the
konohiki" This is on file at the State Archives, this letter here is dated July 10, 2007. Along
with that letter this document here, which is the royal patent, a copy of the royal patent, was also
forwarded to me, and I will read the contents that was translated by an instructor at the Maui
Community College. It says Number 6715, Hoomanawanui. She has made a claim for this place
at Keauhou, an Ahupua'a in Honua'ula on the island of Maui. Whereas, she received this place
from King Kamehameha, Kauikeaouli, the third king of the Kingdom, in the land division or the
Great Mahele of 1848 which lasted to 1855, I believe. She has resided here without objection
until now. That is what we are here to execute for Hoomanawanui, that she has fee simple right
of property. If she pays the government's quarter, then it's appropriate to grant her the royal
patent, excluding the rights of the people therein. I repeat, excluding the rights of the people
therein. However, it is for she to pay for the trial and the judgment, which that cost came out to
$10 at the time. We have executed this right because of a declaration of a new law decided upon
the 19th day of June, 1852 regarding the konohiki. So, I would like for you to seriously take a
look at who owns the land. Presently, I believe the title is a warranty title on this property -- 110 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 19, 2008

MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. LIU: If I'm mistaken, please correct me. But a warranty title in Black's Law Dictionary, Second
Pocket Edition will tell you that a warranty title does not convey ownership. It might explain the
grant towards good clean title and a defense against all challenges. So, I am saying to you to
really consider this. And I have forwarded a lien that I sent to Title Guaranty Hawaii with no
response. I waited over a month just to clarify the ownership. They did not respond back to me.
I also forwarded a default notice as well, and I waited more than the ten days that I said I would,
I waited about a month and no response. So maybe they don't want to mention that this property
does not belong to whoever claims it now. So I am just -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. LIU: --bringing you up to date with the ownership. Any questions, I'll answer what I can.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Liu. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry. I didn't catch your name at the beginning.
MR. LIU: My name is Elden Kapena Liu.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're a descendent of -MR. LIU: Yes, I am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --Hoomanawanui?
MR. LIU: Yes, I am. If you want to see that, I will talk in private to you 'cause I don't think that's
public information. I will show you what you need to see.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Committee Members, any other questions for the testifier? If not, thank you
for your testimony, Mr. Liu.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Sandra Drane? Not here? Donald Brown? Donald Brown? Okay. Chris Mentzel?
Chris Mentzel? Okay. Abel Kaho'ohanohano, Jr.? Okay. Michael O'Kane? Michael O'Kane?
No? Joyclynn Costa followed by Kenneth Barr.
MS. COSTA: I guess it's like, good evening, Members. Good to see you folks again. Aloha, my name
is Joyclynn Costa. Wow. Did you hear what that last speaker said? This is going on 5:30 in the
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afternoon, this morning at 9:30 you heard another kupuna, who by the way I think is associated
with Na Kupuna, Uncle Jacob Mau. Yeah. So Na Kupuna, through Uncle Jacob Mau, has given
his testimony as well. You know how passionate I am about the truth for the royal patents, the
Land Commission awards, and if you look at that title insurance that was delivered to you, I
think it was on the second page, one of the very first royal patents in there, there's an exception
clause. And it said that the, the very first one--I didn't read through the whole thing, just one
alone--1508, I think that grant, that the rights of that native tenants is reserved to their royal
patent. That's not even Hoomanawanui. That's 80 acres someplace else. And that the mineral
rights is reserved to the State of Hawaii just as in the royal patents. So whose wells and water is
he tapping into? It's just, it's the same reservation as in the royal patents. I know within your
rules of conduct you need to make sure that there are no clouds to this title, that you have no
doubts.
I going shift gears little bit. As I came through here and I had to make my way through the
masses of people, I hugged a lot of them, I kissed a lot of them, I haven't seen them for a while.
And I don't say that they were sitting on the other side of the aisle, they were my family, they're
my friends, my acquaintances, 'cause we all come from that human race, yeah. Sad when we got
to feel like we got to sit on separate sides. I like reach out and I like talk to all of you folks, I like
be your guys' friend. And the one who wants to be your best friend is actually Mother Earth.
Everything in this room, everything that's upon you right now is Mother Earth, the fabric you
wear, even the money that you guys need made out of this paper that came from a tree. And
yeah, the gentlemen was talking about the Indians and how they said, you know, the last tree, the
last this stuff. I got to speak to an Indian chief and they said -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. COSTA: --they said if every man, woman, and child was to drop dead today, totally drop dead,
maybe 'cause you wasn't employed and we never get to eat and we starved and we all died,
Mother Earth can live and she going flourish. But if we destroy Mother Earth, not one of us
going be able to survive, not one. So you can dig up all the wells you like, you can drain out all
the water you like, you can destroy all the reefs you like. You can. . .`cause it's greedy, we not
going leave nothing for the future. I'm not talking about tomorrow's rent. That's greedy, you
guys. So, Mr. Dowling, I offer you and I put this challenge on to you, come talk to us so we can
work out a better solution for everybody. We meet in the center. We meet in the center.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. COSTA: We meet on a bridge. Because we as Hawaii's people, kanaka maoli, never shut anybody
out.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Costa. I have to call your testimony. Committee Members,
questions for Ms. Costa on her testimony? Member Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Joyclynn, I just wanted to ask, you didn't go through the,
all of the ownership records to see how many royal patents there are?
MS. COSTA: Well, I have a indices book that already tells me who actually is on those properties, and
the way that the laws are set, even in your version called the HRS, it actually was taken from
Chapter 21, Section, Section 1 of our Kingdom laws. And it stated that every, the royal patent
known to us through the Land Commission award is for the benefit. . .and is for the benefit of the
heirs and assigns of the original patentee, even if the property was alienated, meaning sold,
traded, whatever. So if you look in your HRS today, which is like your bible, Corp. Counsel,
172-11, it states that. The Land Commission award, the original awardees still holds the title, it's
in your guys' law books, and the beneficiaries to that are all of the assigns as well as the heirs. It
doesn't say the heirs and if they sell, then the assigns don't have. It kept it into perpetuity for the
unborn children to come, all of them. So that would be HRS 172-11 and it's backed up by cases,
but it originated from the Kingdom law Chapter 21, Section 1.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Any other questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, mahalo for your testimony, Ms. Costa.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, Kenneth Barr. Kenneth Barr? Not here. Diana Dahl? Diana Dahl?
Steven Aronson? Steven Aronson? Not here. Randy Niklason? Randy Niklason? Randy
Niklason? No? Nio Kindla? Nio Kindla? Patricia Nishiyama followed by George Kahumoku,
Jr.
MS. NISHIYAMA: Aloha. . . . (sigh). . . It's been a long day, my goodness. Aunty and I are here. My
name is Patricia Nishiyama aka Aunty Patty Nishiyama, born and raised in Lahaina. My
birthplace was called Puukolii in the Ahupua'a of Hanakaoo, which is now called Kaanapali. Na
Kupuna 0 Maui are here today to support Na Kupuna 0 South Maui, south district. Na Kupuna
O Maui has been involved with this project for over five years supporting the kupuna of that
district. We have taken the responsibility to be the caretaker and support the kupuna of that
district for all cultural preservation of this development and, of course, making sure it's a smart
development. To all, you can rest assure that Na Kupuna 0 Maui will protect and preserve all
our culture in Makena and anywhere else. This will include burial sites, cultural sites, the heiaus,
and all native Hawaiian plants. Who will challenge our kupunas' wisdom, who was born and
raised in that area? Na Kupuna supports Everett Dowling. He has been meeting with our
kupunas and keeping us abreast of what's going on. Everett Dowling has acknowledged the
kupunas' concerns. He will do anything what the kupuna tells him to do. Kupuna south district
is happy with Everett Dowling. We are very pleased with Everett Dowling. Please move this
project forward. Na Kupuna 0 Maui has taken the kuleana to make sure that Everett Dowling
will be pono and his work for the community will be pono. Mahalo.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Aunty Patty.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. NISHIYAMA: I want you to meet, this is Aunty Olive Purdy Silva. She is the oldest sensei in the
world, and she has been recognized as the oldest sensei in the world. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Wow. Terrific, Aunty. Or shall we say youngest at heart sensei in the world.
Fantastic. Thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, we have George Kahumoku Jr. George
Kahumoku Jr.? Not here? Oh, Aunty, you're going to be reading his testimony?
MS. NISHIYAMA: Yes, I am.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Proceed, Aunty.
MS. NISHIYAMA: Aloha, Council Members. Congratulations to our newly-elected and pre-elected
Council Members. I am not feeling well today and have asked Aunty Patty Nishiyama to present
this letter for me. My name is George Kahumoku Jr. and I teach art and ceramics at Lahainaluna
High School. I am also a farmer and grow taro, kalo, bananas - maia, uala - sweet potato, and
other local produce. However, I am best known for winning three Grammys for the annual 48 th,
49 th , and 50 th Grammy Awards for Best Hawaiian Music Album. I'm writing this letter in
support of Everett Dowling's request to develop Makena. I have been on the Hawaiian Homes
Land's list for over 37 years. My great grandmother Emily Ho'opale was on the original list,
1920 list and died at the age of 96 without getting a Hawaiian Home Lands award. My dad
waited 50 years on the list and he died also waiting to get a homestead. The reason I am writing
this letter is because in 2006 I was fmally awarded a Hawaiian Homes lot in Leialii in Lahaina.
This subdivision was built by Everett Dowling at a remarkably affordable base price range of
$160,000. If it was not for Everett Dowling, there would be 100 more Hawaiian families in
Lahaina without affordable housing. I feel that we are blessed to, one, to be chosen 100 to get an
affordable housing, but there are many thousand more who need our help. Just because we have
a home we cannot sit back and do nothing for the thousands of brothers and sisters who also need
affordable housing and help, and our help. Please, help Everett Dowling build our more
affordable homes of our Hawaiian people and as well as for others in our Maui community. This
man is a doer, not a taker. Please help him to do good for us. Please support Everett Dowling's
development for Makena. Mahalo, George Kahumoku, Jr.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Members, any questions? Seeing none, thank you for doing
Mr. Kahumoku's testimony, Aunty Patty. Next to testify, we have Nathan Nishiki followed by
Michael Friday. Nathan Nishiki? Nathan? He's gone. Michael Friday? Michael Friday? After
Mr. Friday will be Robert Apo.
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MR. FRIDAY: Hello, I'm Michael Friday and I represent the 1,200 Longshore and Warehouse Union
members at the Grand Wailea Resort, many of whom aren't going to have a real good Christmas.
All we hear is cutbacks, closures, cutbacks, and closures. I support this development because I
know that it will make not only construction jobs but long-term union jobs that will feed
families, working families who are the backbone of Maui. How many more people have to leave
Maui just to get something to eat? Who are we protecting the aina for if the kamaaina have to
leave? Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Any questions for Mr. Friday? Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Friday.
Robert Apo followed by Kiana Soloria.
MR. APO: Aloha, Council Members. My name is Robert Apo, I've been a hotel worker since the late
`70s. I actually opened the Maui Prince Hotel. So a lot of my friends here, who it's nice to see
them here, I hate to see them without jobs and I'm speaking here today jobs, jobs, jobs. Molokai
Ranch, Aloha Airlines, ATA, we can't have any more people on this island unemployed. So, of
course, I'm in support of the change in the zoning for the Makena project. To tie in with the
construction industry like Mr. Kamai mentioned, you know, we need the, the work for the
construction guys. We don't need any more unemployed people on this island. As far as the
developer, in my mind I can't think of no other choice to develop Makena than Mr. Dowling.
Thank you for your time. Thank you for your patience for being here, we're almost at 6:00 p.m.
Thank you, Council Members.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Apo. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony. Kiana Soloria? Kiana Soloria? Sanchia Foiles, Foiles? I
hope I have that pronounced right. Sanchia Foiles? Not here? Okay. Douglas Corbin? Douglas
Corbin? Okay. Adam Petersen? Adam Petersen? Our 120 th signee, Robin Knox? Robin Knox
followed by Kyla Manzano.
MS. KNOX: Good afternoon and mahalo to the Members of the Committee for allowing us to come
and speak to you on this matter. I would just like to extend some empathy to the members of the
labor force who are concerned about their jobs and in fear. I know what it's like to be apart from
family and to give, not own a house and to go without getting paid for a long period of time,
because I have done all of those things to come here and to fight for better implementation of
environmental laws in this State and for this island. So I can really understand your fears and the
suffering that some of you are facing because I've faced the same things. I would also like to
echo what other speakers have said about Mr. Dowling and the Dowling Company. I think
Everett is a good guy, I think he's sincere about green building and I think he's a leader in this
area, and I really commend him and his staff for the work that they do. And I often say that
Everett Dowling is doing more for water quality than many of the environmental activists on this
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island, and I truly believe that. But I don't think the economy or whether or not Everett's a good
guy is really the issue before us this evening. I, I think that the issue is land use and the impacts
of land use. And from what I've heard and what I've seen, I don't think that there's sufficient
information despite the very long timeframe involved for you to make your decision. I would
ask that you ensure that you're living up to your duty as a public trustee of the waters of this
State and that you would make sure that you have a complete application, and that that
application should demonstrate that this project will not harm the environment or the resources
and that it will be in full compliance with State and Federal laws, like the Clean Water Act and
the Coastal Zone Management Act. I specifically ask that at some point in this process that the
environmental impact statement be updated. Not only is the information in it outdated, but the
project has changed over the years and our knowledge has changed. It's only recently that we
have gotten some very clear information about the impact of injection wells on the reefs. The
emerging science on water quality says that changing the land itself is one of the best predictors
of impact to water quality. You don't even have to model the particular loads of pollution, you
can look at how you're changing the land and predict the impact to water quality. When you
change topography and hydrology, you change how the system functions. So development can
not only bring its own pollutant load -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. KNOX: --but it can actually reduce the ability of ecosystems to function and to process those
loads. I've submitted to you 20-something pages of testimony that include a lot of specifics
about where I think the deficiencies in the EIS are and what the specific standards are that are to
be met in your duty as public trustees. And so I encourage you to look at that and that you make
a decision to have complete information before you vote on this matter. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your testimony. Member Anderson, question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman. Robin, thank you for being here. Just so
others who don't know, you are a water quality expert and have degrees in that and have done
consulting in water quality for various entities over the years. So. . .and I know you came here to
assist us in that endeavor and I appreciate it. I know that you have also looked at the nearshore
water quality monitoring reports that were done by Seibu's consultant over the years. These are
reports that are required when they got their golf course zoning. And the purpose of these reports
is to monitor the runoff into the nearshore waters over periods of time. I think the reports are at
least once a year, it might be twice a year. But I recall gathering these reports together for the
Council's Land Use Committee when Seibu owned this and brought this forward for review.
And what we learned at that time is that the nearshore waters fronting Makena Resort have all
exceeded water quality standards, State water quality standards for nitrogen loads, nitrates,
phosphorous, and turbidity. So my question to you is you say that we need to look at the Clean
Water Act to make sure that whatever we do will adhere to that, and I hope Mr. Dowling will put
in some controls to stop what's going on and not allow any further damage to our reefs. Can you
tell us the condition of the reefs fronting this shoreline right now due to the impaired water
quality?
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MS. KNOX: Well, I'll start by saying that my expertise is in, in water quality and, and the clean water
regulatory structure. I am not a coral reef expert. I have been working with coral reef experts
and experts on algal blooms and, and learning from them. My personal observation is that, from
reading all these reports and from swimming out there and snorkeling out there, is that there is a
gradient, there is a pattern developing that where we have development we have impairment of
water and also degradation of the reef ecosystem. And, you know, the more development, the
more impairment is the pattern that we see. That pattern does seem to be moving down the coast
even in the few years that I've been here. I've seen more of the invasive . . . (change tape, start
7A). . . and, you know, I think one of the points is that we still have a very healthy reef at
Maluaka, and Russell Sparks--he's with the Division of Aquatic Resources--will tell you his
advice is to protect the reefs that are not degraded. Because we don't even know if we can
restore a reef system. It's a very complex system. And so the best thing to do is to be prudent
and to go slowly and to bring forth the best science and the best engineering. And I think that the
Council has a really unique opportunity here, because I think that we've all heard Everett
Dowling will bring the best people here. And you know what, it's not his responsibility, it's your
responsibility to protect the public trust. He's a developer, his job is to develop. He's a property
owner, he has rights with that property. It's not his job, it's the job of this Council to make sure
that your decision is based on good enough information and that there's some demonstration of
compliance with the law. Now you can put that burden of proof back on the applicant and ask
him to get all of this good science together and show you. But so far I have, I don't even have a
clear understanding of what the project proposal is, you know. I've, I've, for instance I've heard
how many numbers of units, but that's not a meaningful parameter for protecting water quality.
What would be more meaningful is to know how much impervious surface are we talking about,
and how much are we changing the grade, and, and questions like that. And I, you know, I, I
think that we can have development and reefs, too. I think that it has to be that we need more
involvement of the County in implementation of State and Federal laws. And I did put some
specific suggestions. For instance, the marine monitoring programs that are often put in place as,
as conditions of these permits or zoning rights, really all they do is kind of document decline
They don't feed back into management programs, and they're only looking at water chemistry at
Makena anyway. We're only looking at water chemistry out on the reef and that's a very, water
chemistry is subject to so much variability, sea conditions, and whether or not there was runoff
and all kinds of things. So that's not really the best way to tell. Biology tells you more, but by
the time the biology is gone it's too late. So, I think it would be better to look at what is the
loading coming from the, the project. And, and when a developer tells you about all the great
technology that they're putting in to reduce that loading, ask them what is that load and how
much pollution is going to be discharged after all your technology is put in place? And how
much more is that than what we have now today so that we can start to make quantified things
and make more informed decisions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much, Robin. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for
your testimony, Ms. Knox.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Kyla Manzano? Kyla Manzano not here. Members, the Chair is aware of the time.
I know some of you look like you're hurting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: It's been a long day for us. We have covered, we have left 104--oh, excuse me, we
have 143 signups, excuse me, didn't mean to shake you guys up. We have roughly 20 people, 20
signups left. Members, what we'll do, we'll go ahead and take a short recess till 6:00. Chair will
come back and ask you how you want to proceed. With 20 signups, Members, do you--well,
why don't I just ask now. Do you guys want to look at a dinner break or just take a shorter,
shorter break? We have 20 people. I believe we can wrap this up real soon.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What time-CHAIR MOLINA: What is the body's pleasure?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What time do you think we'll be reconvening tomorrow?
CHAIR MOLINA: Tomorrow I'm looking at maybe 9:00 a.m., possibly 10:00 if that's the pleasure of
the body. If you need an extra hour to sleep in or rest up tomorrow, I'm open to doing that. I
know Mr. Victorino. . .well, has a lot of late nights, right. But anyway, Members, we can discuss
that later. Why don't we go ahead and take a ten minute break.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Maybe if you could take a poll of the 20 that are left by
calling their names and see who raises their hand? Who's here and who's not here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Good idea.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Members, any objections to the Chair polling to see who's here left to
testify? Amy Chang, are you here? Okay. That's one out. Stephen West, I see you here.
Lucienne de Naie, I believe Lucienne is here. Ernesto Rosetes? Ernesto, are you here? No.
Noah Ho'opai? Noah Ho'opai? Not here. Uncle Les Kuloloio, I see you here. Sylvia Clarke
Hamilton? Sylvia, you're not here? Ashley Rodrigues? Ashley's here. Darla White? Darla's
here. Elaine Wender? Elaine's here. Hannah Bernard? Hannah? Not here. Dan Honma? Dan
is here. Gabriel Brewdant? Gabriel? Not here. Ivan Lay? Okay, Ivan's here.
Christopher Meader? Christopher Meader? Okay. Daniel Grantham? Daniel's here.
Fred Spanjaard? Fred Spanjaard? Fred not here? Okay. Ed Lindsey, I see Ed's here. Okay.
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Kelii Gomez? Kelii Gomez, you're here? Marilyn Stupplebeen? Marilyn's here.
Richard Michaels is here. Paul Hugel? Okay. Paul's here. And Clare Apana? Clare's here.
Okay. Anybody else? Okay. At this point we have left-MS. SOUZA-AMARAL (from the audience): . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Zandra, you're. . .okay, we'll include you as well. All right. Then,
Mr. Medeiros, we have at this count so far 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 14, 15, 16.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. It's the will of the body, I guess.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, I would like to ask you, do you want a long dinner break or just a shorter
break? We can come back and wrap up the last 16 people. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think, you know, we're all tired, but we also have all these
people that have been waiting all day long, and I think in respect for them that we take like a
short 15 -CHAIR MOLINA: Fifteen.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --minute break and hopefully, we all have food in our
offices. . . (chuckle). . . and we come back and charge on through.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. The Chair is open to that as well. Members, any objections to proceeding
that way?
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: All right, Members, we're going to take a recess until ten minutes after 6:00. This
meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 5:55 p.m.
RECONVENE: 6:15 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: . . .(gavel). . . The Land Use Committee meeting for Wednesday night,
November 19, 2008 is now back in session. It is 6:15, Members. We have light almost at the
end of the tunnel here. We're continuing with public testimony. First to testify, we have
Stephen West followed by Lucienne de Naie. Stephen West? Stephen West, I know you were in
the house earlier. Did he leave? Okay, here he comes. Okay. Stephen West followed by
Lucienne de Naie.
MR. WEST: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for the opportunity and thank you for sticking it out
tonight. I really appreciate it. I'm a board member of MEO and I know a few of you are
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members as well, and right now we're facing some tremendously difficult times. Everett has
donated over 3 million, $3.3 million to non-profits in the last three years. Now given the
economic situation that we're facing right now, we're looking at 16 percent cut in services at
MEO in the next budget, and 20 percent cut from the State that's coming up. Rental assistance,
we've been asked to cut. We can't do it. There's people out there hurting, people out there
starving. We have a very uncertain future for the members and non-members of various unions.
I'd strongly urge you to move this out of Committee as quickly as possible. It's going to mean
people off the bench for construction, for tourism. At least there's a future for them, they know
what's going to happen. And you know, it just, I want to sum it up because I don't want to waste
too much time. But just, I, please, please, please, please get this done quick. I've been out there
walking Kihei. I've walked house to house Kahului, Wailuku, South Maui. I've talked to
numbers of people and they need jobs. They need their kids to stay here on Maui, they don't
want them to move away. So thank you for your consideration and hopefully, you'll get this
done.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. West. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Mr. West, thank you for coming today and for this, hanging with us
for a very long day. It's in regard to this job thing. You know, we've heard over and over today
that everybody's concerned about jobs, everybody needs jobs, and I don't, that's, I don't think we
need to say that, we all know that. We've all seen the numbers and they're very frightening. I
was particularly concerned to hear about the Operating Engineers and I know that it's cutting
through the entire industry. It's been also mentioned that we have a misconception that if we
approve this project there will be jobs. What's your take on that?
MR. WEST: There will be jobs. There will be a future. You know, I wouldn't expect Everett just to
blindly move ahead not knowing what his future is. We have a man that in my opinion, I mean if
I can grow up and be like him, I would, you know, that's what I want. I want my kids -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Me too. . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. WEST: --I want my kids to be like that. He set a tremendous example for our community, for our
children. I mean if we could have one of every ten of our children grow up and be like Everett,
this would be a better world.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So your understanding is that Mr. Dowling would be creating jobs in
very short order -MR. WEST: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --to help these people that are here?
MR. WEST: Absolutely.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think that's really important because, you know, we're being told two
things and I'm trying to get clarification.
MR. WEST: Yeah. And, you know, there's another thing that has been floated out there too as, I'm
going to go off, but there's been people saying that he's going to create timeshares. Absolutely
not. He's pledged it to us that he's going to keep, keep it hotel. And I think that's very important
and there's a lot of misinformation out there, a tremendous amount of misinformation. You
know, and I respect both sides, you know, you know, but get the facts, you know, really that's
what we need. We don't need all this misinformation out there, it just creates hostility, waste,
wastes time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, thanks again, thank you very much for the clarification.
MR. WEST: Sure.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Baisa. Any other questions for Mr. West? Seeing none,
thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, we have Lucienne de Naie followed by
Uncle Les Kuloloio.
MS. de NAIE: Aloha and good evening, all. My name is Lucienne de Naie. I'm testifying as a private
citizen. I have two topics. I'm passing out a map of cultural sites because whether or not you
approve zoning, you still have a responsibility under our law to make sure that you're aware of
what the, the potential for our history to be kept or lost is. And I really would urge this body to
follow what was in the Community Plan, which is very simple. It just asks that before an area is
rezoned that there be an inventory of cultural resources, and it says very clearly all cultural
resources located within to, within or adjacent to the proposed project area prior to application as
part of the County development review process. Now this doesn't mean oh, later on, this doesn't
mean oh, some day before we build. It means prior to deciding what should be developed. And I
feel particularly strongly about this, I've given three years of my life to serve on a citizen
planning committee. When something like this is adopted as a law, it should actually mean that
it is a law. You see by your map there are over 1,000 features. These are not individual sites,
these are features. I have every faith that Mr. Dowling wants to take good care of them. But you
should not just have faith that this will automatically happen. This needs to have a better review
than has been done in the past. This was not done on Mr. Dowling's watch, but, you know, we
had that little, little heiau that Ms. Lu'uwai described today. She couldn't see it because the
landscape has been so altered there. It's still there, it wasn't knocked down. But it was lost for
70 years. It was identified in 1929 and after 30 years of surveys in that same area, five surveys
went in that same area, never saw it again, and finally it was rediscovered like in 2003, 2004.
You have to ask yourself that's a little 11-acre parcel. What else is left to be discovered?
Probably plenty. So I trust our kupuna will do a good job in doing this, but there are some very
special places there. There's the Old Aupuni Wall. There's the old wall that Kamehameha III
erected to protect the kuleana properties from raging cattle. It's on the parcel that's going to be a
hotel. I hope Mr. Dowling will protect this, it's the best fragment we have left. I don't see it on
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their archeological report as anything important. So, I really think that we need to look at some
of these things, but they aren't expensive to do, they just have to be done right. I would hope
someone who cares as deeply as Mr. Dowling would want to see that we have core samples taken
so we can know what plants lived here and we can restore things in the proper way. Hawaiian
Home Lands did this and, you know, it could be done on the Makena -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. de NAIE: --lands as well. I want to switch to one other topic and that is water. There's been a lot
of discussion of the 12 wells on the property. As many of you know, I've done a lot of research
on water. And I talk to the Water Commission guys all the time 'cause we're going back and
forth on East Maui stuff I want to share with you that the aquifer in Kamaole is a very thin
aquifer and all the wells tend to be at similar elevations, which means they're kind of drawing it
down even more. So what the Water Commission is looking at, is discussing right now--there's
nothing in concrete--is getting everyone who uses it together and figuring out how much could
be drawn out of it safely because it's not just a slam dunk thing. And they do have concerns that
so many developments after, one after another saying oh, we'll build a desal plant, oh, we'll
pump this, we'll pump that. Because when you do that, you could just end up with more salt
than water and then your desal is very expensive. Right now those wells are -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. de NAIE: --at least double the allowable potable or triple, and that's the current pumping and
chloride reports. So nothing is as simple as it is portrayed, and I'd be happy to meet with any of
you and discuss more of this information if you think it would be useful for you in your own
leisure. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. de Naie. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Lucienne. I'm assuming this came
from the study that you did . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. de NAIE: Yes. Those little dots are, Theresa Donham plotted and GIS every single feature that had
been recorded up until 2006. Of course, some new studies have been done since then and so
those are, are not on there. But I just want to point one thing out. You'll see the largest
concentration of sites are right behind Pu'u Olai, and I would hope Na Kupuna 0 Maui in their
wisdom and others who review this would consider recommending that this be an area--very
little development is proposed in this area maybe 50 acres, 60 acres. Maybe a tradeoff could be
made and this area, it could be left as a cultural resource and a cultural research site, a living
university so to speak where the views would be unimpaired from the State park. If God forbid
our State park ever had rising sea levels and was engulfed by the ocean, we'd have some land
behind it that could maybe be adapted. There are some magnificent sites in this area that I've
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seen photographs of, and I've seen a few of them in person on a tour that Seibu took us on years
ago. And
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So -MS. de NAIE: --they're really worthwhile.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --so my question is, the ones that you have shown as radiocarbon
dated -MS. de NAIE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --the square ones -MS. de NAIE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --would most of those turn out to be prehistoric?
MS. de NAIE: Yeah. Virtually all of them are. There's a few from what's called the Historic Era. But
you have to realize the Historic Era was a very important era, too. This was the time of
Kamehameha I, II, III.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. de NAIE: So, you know, but many of them are Pre-Columbian and, you know, they're from, there's
a lot of sites in the 1400s to the 1600s in, in Makena and, of course, back to 1000 even. And
more would be discovered, frankly, if, if the surveys were completed. A lot of the lands have
never been surveyed for 20 or 30 years. They were surveyed briefly when the golf course went
in and then they weren't threatened so no one ever surveyed them again.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So when I look at the ones, the sites that are on the golf course,
most of them are in the roughs. Some of them are in the green.
MS. de NAIE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So would it be fair to assume the ones, the dots that are within the
greens are gone?
MS. de NAIE: For the most part they are. I mean this is a GIS and, you know, we're at a big scale here,
this is from Google Earth. But over 100 sites are documented as having been destroyed over the
process of creating the golf course. So, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So could you just give me an idea of the percentages of these sites,
these dots that you show on the golf course, what percentage still exists? Just a rough estimate.
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MS. de NAIE: My guess would be at least two-thirds.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. de NAIE: Oh. Oh. Oh, on the golf course itself?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
MS. de NAIE: No. On the golf course probably 80 percent of what's shown on the golf course areas is
destroyed. But the ones in the rough, probably 95 percent still exist.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The rough being the undeveloped lands?
MS. de NAIE: Yeah. And I must say, too, that...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Not the rough on the golf course?
MS. de NAIE: No. The rough of the golf courses.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. Okay.
MS. de NAIE: The rough of the golf courses -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. de NAIE: --and the undeveloped lands that the golf courses surround.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. de NAIE: There's a tremendous potential here. A real tremendous potential.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you so much.
MS. de NAIE: You're welcome.
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
for your testimony, Ms. de Naie.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, Uncle Les Kuloloio followed by Ashley Rodrigues.
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MR. KULOLOIO: Chair, fellow Council Members. Leslie Kuloloio. I just wanted to hit it real fast.
I've listened to many of the speakers and I think I'm qualified to speak about Makena tonight.
I'm qualified because I can go back to many of the land titles that took place with the County of
Maui and how we processed the other land titles and the archeological sites review when I
returned from 1962 from the US Army. In 1963, I did most of the archeological sites with
Charles Keau, deceased. Remember Uncle Charlie Keau and, you know, Leslie Bruce who had
some reports she gave Lucienne. Lucienne took the report and flew it and took away with a new
report. And so I'm just wanted to bring things up to par. The land titles in Makena was clearly
defmed. When the court cases was brought to the County here, we took it to district courts. And
at that time the Ulupalakua Ranch sold them to Seibu. There was questions of titles and various
speakers came here about kuleana lands that they think belong to them; however, it's in the
wrong area. Yeah, one of the speakers told the bruddahs they're more on the Wailea side. These
titles of Seibu and the ranch was clearly defmed by the courts. So the titles are cleared and. . .so
far. And then what, what is a guarantee when say clear, yeah, but it was cleared in the courts,
okay, especially with the County Council, the old County Council during that time.
Archeologists started in 1974 and 1965. I was in a 1965 court case that dealt with land and
power, land and power that dealt with all the realtors here on Maui, and during that time in 1965
it was a booming real estate by the Japanese coming to Hawaii. Remember? And Makena was
just primo, primo, primo. There was issues about fishing. Well, guess what? There's a lot of
fish in Makena because I fish, throw net, and dive yet. There's more turtles I've seen now than
in '65 when I returned. And the only reason why turtles are getting hard time to hatch, because a
lot of people are sitting on the beach. But the turtles are really compacting and have returned
from , Kanahena, Makena Bay, Kalaeloa, all the name places that I know of, okay,
and they nest there. And so after 1976, the occupation of Kahoolawe, then came 1978 where the
State recalled all the historical sites. Remember? In 1978, they recalled it. But, you know
what?
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. KULOLOIO: Seibu did a very good job in the archeological sites, and I compliment Seibu, I
compliment Dowling for taking the challenge, grabbing the bull by the horns by taking
unfinished business and making it better. I support Mr. Dowling. I support Mr. Dowling. Why?
Because remember the last testimony I gave? I can look him eyeball to eyeball and guess what?
I love his team. And the team composed of local men and women now, not from outside of the
State of Hawaii. College grads and they come back with all these specialty things. So both sides
we need to work together. We need to work together. And finally, the, the archeological sites,
please, don't listen to features. We have a State Historic Preservation Office and they're doing
good job. The Burial Council is doing good jobs.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. KULOLOIO: And other than that, all I can say I have more to share, but I support him because, eh,
I think he's going to follow up. He's going to make little bit better than the rest I've seen. Only
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two developers I support, the rest . . . (inaudible). . .but he's one of them. Everett, you're on my
list, you know that. I'm watching you like a hawk. He knows that.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you for your testimony, Uncle Les.
MR. KULOLOIO: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, mahalo for your
testimony.
MR. KULOLOIO: Thank you guys. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mahalo. Ashley Rodrigues followed by Darla White.
MS. RODRIGUES: Hello. Good evening, everybody. My name is Ashley Rodrigues. I am 17 years
old and I'm a senior at Baldwin High School. I came here at like 11:00. I have early release, so
I wasn't ditching or anything. So I came here 11:00 just to testify for this. I do, I would like to
say p.m. hearings and hearings down in South Kihei are much needed for the youth and the
working people, which I am also a working person. I've been working since the age of 16, I
work at Sears. As far as tourism goes, yes it is more than like 50 percent of our income, but
tourists don't come here to see our hotels. Tourists also don't come here to see our buildings, our
State buildings. They come here for the beaches, because we have agricultural sites, because we
have cultural sites for us to represent the Hawaiian people. As far as that goes I talked to a lot of
tourists, I'm in the retail business. I talk to them in-between the tourism, the tourists and the
local people. They like our land, they don't like our buildings. If they wanted to see buildings,
they could have stayed home. That's all I really have to say as far as tourism goes. But as far as
jobs goes as well, yes this will create jobs, but it's only going to create a short-term or temporary
job. When construction goes out, which people before me have testified that yes, jobs are
needed, but this is like our last land that we can build on. Once this hotel is done being built
where else are they going to go? Where are you going to build? Right on top of Haleakala? I
mean I don't think we can build... already in Wailuku we building up the mountain into the
valley. I don't know how, when storms come like how last night was pretty storming, raining, if
it rains like that, those houses are going to come down the hill. I mean construction, yes we do
need. I have a lot of family members in construction are out of a job right now. But to push this
forward and to speed it up just to create a temporary job is not the answer. Because, yeah, if we
get a big paycheck, we need someplace to spend it. And I believe that affordable housing is
actually the better way to go because me as a youth I wouldn't want to come back, I wouldn't
want to go to college get a degree and come back to work as a hotel manager, whatever, and have
no place to live. What is the point? There is no point. So that's all I have to say to you guys.
Thank you for your time.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
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CHAIR MOLINA: Mahalo for your testimony. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Ashley. And thank you for staying here for so long.
We seldom see people your age willing to stick it out. Mahalo. Next, we have Darla White
followed by Elaine Wender.
MS. WHITE: Aloha, Council. Thank you for the opportunity to come and speak tonight. My name is
Darla White and I'm a marine scientist with the University of Hawaii and Division of Aquatic
Resources. I am not wearing that hat tonight per se, but do have a lot of experience and opinions
based on that. I've learned a lot this evening, just this evening with regard to this process and
what the actual zoning means. I've been out at sea and just arrived back but wanted the
opportunity to catch up here. The, Mr. Dowling, my hat's off to him for a lot of the things he is
doing to help our community and the environment; however, there needs to be more work done.
And I'd first like to second everything Robin Knox stood up here and said, and with respect to
that and the studies that you brought up a little bit ago. Once a year water quality
monitoring--I'm sorry, I have not seen these studies yet, but I can tell you from that it's
inadequate. . .the. . .and it is very complex. We know a lot more now, there's a lot better
methodologies. And so I think more work needs to be done. I highly recommend redoing the
EIS for this project. It's, the EIS itself actually recommends this and states that it is not in
compliance with current regulations. The EIS was performed 34 years ago. We've come a long
way since then, we know a lot more, we have a lot better technologies, and a lot of changes in
our environment. One of those changes I'd like to talk about tonight is climate change and this
has a lot to do with water and our island's water. Sea level rise and climate change is very real. I
know a lot of people are still having a hard time absorbing that. The terminology now is
committed climate change, committed global warming, committed ocean acidification. And
what that means is if we were all to quit our CO2 . . . (change tape, start 7B). . . to quit breathing
and exhaling CO2, we'd be in this loop of global warming for the next 100 years, like it or not.
So we have to adapt and we have to be able to ensure resilience in our ecosystems, and to do that
we need to take all of the pressures and stresses off of them and work towards not putting any
more on them. With, and I'm not saying I'm against development, but we need to work harder at
being better, and at these developments, impervious surfaces are huge. We live in a, in a unique
environment -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. WHITE: --where we have very steep watersheds or watershed in the cultural context is the same as
an ahupua'a. It extends from the mountain to the ocean. Everything in the sea is part of that and
it is all connected. There is no disconnection between the two. What you have to do on land
affects the ocean. I hate to say that I feel like I'm here monitoring, my job is watching our reefs
decline, and I'm watching the death and destruction of our reefs and it's due to anthropogenic
impacts from many different sources, of course. But it's happening and there's a lot that we can
do and have the responsibility to do if the Council can ensure by being the first step in planning
to help mitigate some of these impacts. Our protections for our resources start on land and, I'm
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sorry, I'm going to read so I don't skip too much. Maui County has a responsibility to protect
our resources and it starts with planning.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. WHITE: And additionally, the applicant has the burden of proof to demonstrate that there will not
be impacts to these resources. And the burden should not be put on the State, the County or the
public to demonstrate the applicant's compliance with State and Federal environmental laws.
Also, due to changes in methods by DLNR since the last archeological inventory survey, I
respectfully request that a new one be mandated.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Ms. White, I'm sorry. I have to stop your testimony.
MS. WHITE: Oh. Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: But thank you. I have a question for you from the panel. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Ms. White, thank you for being here and
coming off the ocean for us. When you said that the decline of our reefs can be traced to
anthropogenic, anthropogenic impacts, you mean human, human impacts?
MS. WHITE: Yes, ma'am. That's true.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and those impacts could be...
MS. WHITE: They are largely, a number of things. Every reef has its own set of stressors and they are
a combination of things, and they range from runoff, injection wells, over-fishing, pollution in
general, non-point source runoff from storm events.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I just wanted you to clarify that. A lot of people don't
know what that term means. And then the other thing that you said that you are monitoring the
decline of our reefs. Can you give us, and I don't know if you're familiar with the reef in this
area, anywhere close to this area.
MS. WHITE: Out in front of...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There has been a study done. So I'm, I'm just wondering if you
can give us some idea of the decline of the coral cover in this area.
MS. WHITE: In that particular area right now we do resource fish surveys. We do not have a
permanent coral site right, located directly in front of that. There are some in the adjacent areas.
Areas, several areas around the island are declining at rates exceeding most places on the planet.
So it's of grave concern.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Due, due to high algae growth?
MS. WHITE: Not necessarily. High algae growth is a result and factor of the excess pollution, which
are nutrients. Our waste is their food. So that increases turbidity which decreases sunlight which
is difficult for corals. The algae blooms which compete with corals for space, and we're also
seeing not only the invasive algae's taking over, but now the turf algae's that we thought were
just, you know, docile are now taking up the crustose coralline algae, which is the pink stuff that
cements the reef together. That's also the landing pod for any of the baby corals coming out of
the ocean. We're seeing a lot of things that we've never seen before. And the increase in algae,
algae produces sugars which increases bacterial content. I've been talking with a researcher over
at Manoa about the increase in staph, and he's finding staph in the water closer, reliably around
populated areas. We're hoping to bring him to Maui to do more work, but...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And thank you for your work, we appreciate it.
MS. WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very
much for your testimony.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next, we have Elaine Wender followed by Dan Honma.
MS. WENDER: Good evening and thank you for staying. My name is Elaine Wender. Listening to the
testimony today takes me back almost 30 years, the time when Uncle Eddie Chang stood in this
Chamber representing himself in a contested case to try to stop the first Makena luxury
development, Makena Surf Resort, next to his property. This was in about at 1980 before my
friend Laurie Chang and her husband Uncle Eddie's son moved back to Maui from the mainland.
So I've been sitting here thinking if he were still with us, what would Uncle Eddie think'? Back
in 1980, Uncle Eddie addressed many issues and time has shown his concerns to be valid. He
was very worried about the siltation of the reef caused by erosion runoff and the effect on marine
life. Anyone who snorkels in that area knows how the reef has been degraded over the past
decades because of the development. He warned us about the failure of injection wells, the
scarcity of our water supply, the impact on historic sites, and the social impacts of luxury
housing. Uncle Eddie could see what would come to pass, but the County didn't listen. I ask
Mr. Dowling today what would be enough for him? How much money does he need to make?
How many luxury projects does he need to build before he's satisfied? He said as long as there's
a need, no matter where that need comes from he will build, and that about 15 percent of his
luxury housing is bought by Maui residents. So 85 percent is built for off-island residents who
have a want, not a need. We don't need any more luxury housing. It's not healthy for a
community to have so much property owned as second or third homes by off-island, very much
part-time residents. Gated communities are the antithesis of what life on Maui represents for
most of us. The idea that the rest of us aren't good enough to go inside these exclusive enclaves
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is truly repugnant. I urge you to immediately pass an ordinance prohibiting the creation of gated
communities in Maui County and to deny the request for rezoning. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Wender. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, Dan Honma followed by Ivan Lay.
MR. HONMA: Welcome. You know I'm here--my name is Dan Honma--I'm here to support the
development, and, you know, I ask that you approve the zoning change. I think the current
economic situation, you've heard it all, all day long basically, probably what, 24 hours already.
And, you know, I, I don't want to repeat the same thing, but, you know, the economy, you know,
if we were six months behind the mainland, then I think the worse is still to come. I'm just
worried about the trickle effect that's coming that, you know, we're not really fully aware of. So
you got to be prepared and kind of move forward with plans to kind of shore up our local
economy. The development that I, as I understand it, is going to incorporate a lot of green
concepts, energy conservation, and production even. So and if that's not the type of development
we're looking for, then I, I got to ask the question, what are we looking for in a developer and
their project? Gosh, you know, I have two kids, three kids actually, two kids that still live on
Maui, but I don't see their future working here as very bright at this point in time. So I really,
you know, would like to see some, some options out there. Maybe there is something that I'm
not aware of, but, you know, for now, for today I kind of look at the development as a plus for
the economy. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Honma. Questions for the testifier, Members? Seeing none, thank
you for your testimony.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, Ivan Lay followed by Daniel Grantham.
MR. LAY: Aloha and good morning, Chair Molina and Council Members. Did I get that right?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
MR. LAY: Oh, excuse me, good morning. We're at this afternoon, evening already, we're at the
evening. Excuse me. . . .(chuckle). . . My name is Ivan Lay of the Hawaii Carpenters Union.
I'm here to ask for your support of the rezoning of Makena. Jobs, employment opportunities for
the construction industry include operators, electricians, plumbers, laborers, painters, as well as
work for our, our hotel, bellboys, waiters, waitresses. . .waiters and waitresses, managers. These
are all opportunities that can happen with this development. And the trick, it's a trickledown
system. When these people are working, what happens? They have the ability to go to
restaurants, they have the ability to feed their family, to take their families to the doctor, to clothe
them, ensuring that they have a good quality of life, ensuring they have the medical care. These
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are all important factors. They're able to pay their bills, they're able to make their car payment,
they're able to, most importantly, pay their mortgage to stay here in the islands. You have the
ability to fix Maui's economy, to change it, to get it in an upswing. You have to take this first
step to change our economy. You've seen all the people today here. Everyone's saying there's
no work. This is the first step. Everyone's said Everett's a good developer. Let's go. And by
the way, Everett, you're a good neighbor and if you ever want to move to Haiku area, let me
know, okay, 'cause you can fix our roads up there, get me some water, be all great. We
appreciate all you've done for the community. Thank you very much.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any questions for Mr. Lay? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony. Next to testify, Daniel Grantham followed by Ed Lindsey.
MR. GRANTHAM: Mr. Chair, a question first. I was fortunate to come late and I have testimony from
Diane Dahl who had to leave and couldn't give her testimony. Can I give that for her?
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any objection to Mr. Grantham reading Diane Dahl's testimony?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Proceed. You may do so.
MR. GRANTHAM: Thank you. Congratulations on the fortitude you're showing here to go through all
this. There is a concern, more serious in coastal areas that needs to be considered in
Everett Dowling developments. Mr. Dowling's signature style and his upscale project involves
bringing in tremendous amounts of fill until the natural landscape has been completely covered
into a flat table or into flat terraces on a steeper slope. While this makes building easy, it covers
up and blocks all the natural drainage. In the Palauea Bay project, for example, so much fill was
brought in that Wailea residents complained for a year and a half about the constant traffic of
dump trucks. I think the total dumped was in the neighborhood of 200,000 yards. The natural
drainage that had protected the coastline by slowing and filtering the storm water through porous
rocks, porous beds of lava rock was replaced with huge underground culverts that accelerated
runoff from the project onto the road and beach. Whether muddy storm water originates on his
project or from farther uphill, it now has a relatively direct path to the reefs. It's the gift that
keeps on smothering. This does not appear to be a one-time mistake by someone who learned
from it. The more recent Maluaka Beach project follows the same fill nature until buried
philosophy as did the Kulamalu project before both of them. This is a distinctive Dowling style.
The Maluaka fill appears to contain less silt than the Palauea fill. But since Mr. Dowling made a
point of trying to prove the mud below his Palauea project came from up the mountain instead of
from his fill, maybe he just found it cheaper to use local rock. The culverts are still in place
ready to hurry the runoff away. Since the Council has a mission to protect our natural resources
and Members have made commitments to sustainability, we need to charge planners with
carefully inspecting proposals for the kind of easy-to—catch, repeated mistakes like this. And
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they really ought to consider who is going to pay the cost to the future generations of impacts
like this. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, any questions regarding Ms. Dahl's testimony? Okay. Mr. Grantham?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did she give you any answers? . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. GRANTHAM: What's the question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
MR. GRANTHAM: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Dan, you have your own testimony now?
MR. GRANTHAM: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead.
MR. GRANTHAM: This is from Daniel now. As a long-time supporter of efforts to provide affordable
housing and real assistance to the homeless, I was intrigued enough by the following article to
read the meeting minutes. The article was by Ilima Loomis in February, 2008, The Maui News.
It says, Wailuku. Maui economic concerns of the community, which runs the Kahale A Ke Ola
Homeless Resource Center and another shelter in Lahaina, is likely facing a management audit
after receiving more than $500,000 from the County and State to keep it afloat. The
February 4, 2008 Budget and Finance Committee meeting discussed a proposed management
audit of MECC. MECC is supported by State and County grants and loans as well as private and
developer donations. Member Mike Victorino first asked to be recused from voting since he is a
board member of MECC. The Corp. Counsel said it was not necessary since there was no
financial interest involved in the decision on the management audit. The minutes on Page 20
describe Member Victorino saying that he and the MECC Director knew of a private party who
doesn't want to come forward yet, but is working on the details to build from scratch to
completion 100 affordable units for MECC to assist the South Maui community. The question
arises as to who this private party is since an offer to build and donate 100 affordable units to a
corporation that Victorino is a board member of certainly does represent a fmancial interest.
Could this party be or be connected to a developer who has a project before the Council needing
a vote from Member Victorino? Could it be Mr. Dowling? While we all applaud efforts to help
create affordable housing and help for the homeless, is it not clear that projects must succeed on
their own merits? Was not the Affordable Housing Bill designed in part to relieve
decision-makers from dependence on developer promises to sweeten the deal with a charity
donation? There are other related policy issues raised at the question by Council Chair Riki
Hokama that deserve attention. The first question, however, is on the table.
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I would just like to add some personal comments that I am saddened by the process that we have
such an adversarial process going on. I think that it would serve us, all of us better if we were
able to acknowledge the testimony of all and respect it, and focus on accepting their feelings,
their testimony, their thoughts -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. GRANTHAM: --and working on finding a way to resolve them on both sides. And that is I think,
you know, Joyclynn Costa spoke about meeting on the bridge. You know, I have concerns about
jobs, I have concerns about the environment, they two shouldn't be fighting. They shouldn't be
struggling, they should be working together to fmd the solution. And if there's something that I
can help with that process with you, our leaders, I would be happy to help. And if there's some
way that all of us here in the audience can help with that process, I would, I would strongly hope
that we could step forward to that. And I think the first step is to say yes, I hear you, I hear what
you're saying and I recognize the validity of that to you, and we need to work on that.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. GRANTHAM: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Daniel.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A question and a comment. Mr. Grantham -MR. GRANTHAM: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --thank you for being here.
MR. GRANTHAM: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, you talk about reaching out and crossing the bridge,
and reaching out and touching each other and working together. Yet, you go out of your way to
point out something that's very irrelevant, but that's fine. 'Cause there is, no, never was, never
will be in this man's heart in this community all the things I do, and I do take it personal 'cause
you used my name. Mr. Grantham, I have worked more years than you've been on this island,
sweat equity helping those who need. I worked two jobs for many years supporting my family. I
never asked for your help or anybody else's help in this community. We worked and took care of
our family first because that's what my parent, and that's the way of the elders. Take care of us
first, take care of your family and then you help others, and I have dedicated my life, my whole
family has dedicated their life to helping this community. So I, I am very appalled at your
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accusation. Okay. Best you watch what you say, especially when it comes to what I do in this
community to help homelessness or any other organization who needs help. That's me. Don't
go there.

AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, folks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I'll stop at this point, Mr. Grantham, because I don't want to
get into a back and forth match
MR. GRANTHAM: Mr.-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But if you want to reach out to me, you respect me like I respect
you. I don't put you down, I don't expect to be put down. Do I make myself perfectly clear,
Daniel?
MR. GRANTHAM: Mr., Mr. Victorino, I never put you down.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, yes you did, my friend.
MR. GRANTHAM: I did not. . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You better watch what you say. Thank you.
MR. GRANTHAM: And you can read the record in there. All I-CHAIR MOLINA: Gentlemen-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. My record is perfect. My record is to work for the people.
CHAIR MOLINA: Meeting in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 7:00 p.m.
RECONVENE: 7:01 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: . . .(gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting for November 19 th is now back in
session. It's 7:00 p.m. Mr. Victorino, do you have any more questions for Mr. Grantham?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I do say that I thank you for the
opportunity to say what I needed to say. Thank you, sir.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Committee Members, any other questions for Mr. Grantham? If not, thank
you. Thank you, Mr. Grantham.
MR. GRANTHAM: Mr. Molina, I feel this is unfair to me and I would like to offer the testimony I've
given to all of the Members, and if there is, if you can find an accusation that Mr. Victorino has
done anything wrong in here, I will humbly apologize.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Grantham, okay. We'll accept your written testimony and we'll circulate
it to the Members. Okay. Thank you. Next to testify, we have Ed Lindsey followed by
Kelii Gomez.
MR. LINDSEY: Aloha ahiahi, Council Chair and Council Members. Thank you for hanging in there in
this very important decision-making processes. My name is Ed Lindsey. I have been working
with the aina and I try to stay subsurface and. . .and walk the talk. This is the worst place to
make a decision because it polarizes everybody. We just saw what happened. Hawaiian style is
to sit down and talk story. That's how I'm able to move ahead in the projects that I'm working
with, sit down and talk story. If we could clear the decks and use our intellect that we, our God
given intellect and our mana'o that comes in from the ha and give each other ha. It's a life.
Everybody has a right to life. Everybody has a right to an opinion. I tell my children that's my
opinion and I'm entitled to my opinion when I'm scolding them. Some of the eloquent speakers
from the union were my former students, being a retired teacher, and I'm proud of, I'm proud of
their talent and their passion and the way that they communicate. And we have young people
who are in the back who are also, this is their first time giving testimony upfront, and I'm proud
of them. We are one ohana. We need to sit down as a community and discuss what can we
develop, what do we need to save, and what kind of jobs we need to have without getting upset
at each other, and without calling each other names You know, my main agenda--and it has been
my agenda for my life--are the archeological sites. These archeological sites, even as Melissa
Kirkendall told me when I used go into her office and talk story, she said the sites that have been
surveyed in 1973 are all obsolete because there's new techniques. What those techniques are, I
don't know. There's new techniques to go in to discover what's coming on. We have been
working on an archeological site for nine years now and that's in Honokowai Valley.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. LINDSEY: That valley is, are archeological sites that are contiguous and they are Pre-Columbian,
they are older than Machu Picchu. They are older than the Tokugawa Period, the samurai in
Japan. They are older than the Ming Dynasty. They are older than the Vikings that sailed across
the ocean blue in 1492 or before then. These archeological sites give testimony of our culture
and our people and who we are. They settled in an area at the height of the Roman Empire-Maui, Hawaii, Molokai-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
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MR. LINDSEY: --carbon dated 264 AD, Halawa Valley. That's our kupunas that have came up here on
double-hull sailing canoes and they had settled in all different sites of these islands. And these
days, you know, if we were to go up and destroy Machu Picchu, ho, you going have the whole
world screaming at you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Lindsey, I'm sorry. I have to cut short your testimony. Members-MR. LINDSEY: Can I finish with one sentence?
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead.
MR. LINDSEY: I ask you, bring our community together. We need the jobs, we need to save our
things. And mahalo and God bless you.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Lindsey. Committee Members, questions for Mr. Lindsey?
If not, thank you for your testimony. Next to testify, we have Kelii Gomez followed by
Marilyn Stupplebeen.
MS. GOMEZ: Good evening, Chairman Molina, Committee Members. My name is Kelii Gomez and I
support the Makena Resort project. The emerging economic issues facing our precious Maui
County are problems that we need to address now. This project will create hundreds of jobs in
the construction and hospitality industries, two parts of our economy that have and will continue
to suffer greatly during this recession. But not only will these two segments benefit, all of Maui
County will benefit from the real property tax revenues this project will generate. So, Council
Members, Makena Resort is the right thing for our island's economy. Please take action now and
approve the resort's Change in Zoning request so that we can all benefit from what it has to offer.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your testimony. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? The Chair has one question for you. Are you a student or are you employed?
MS. GOMEZ Oh. . . (chuckle). . .I'm 32.
.

COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(chuckle). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, my goodness. Well, I see so many young people in here, that's why. So
anyway, well, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good boy, Michael.
CHAIR MOLINA: We're getting, it's getting late in the evening. Thank you for coming out. Okay.
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AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whoa, that was a little close.
CHAIR MOLINA: We're almost there, Members. And thanks everybody for sticking it out.
Marilyn Stupplebeen followed by Richard Michaels.
MS. STUPPLEBEEN: Good evening, Committee Members. My name is Marilyn Stupplebeen and I'm
here in support of the Makena Resort rezoning. There is no better steward of Makena Resort
than the Makena Land Partnership and for Dowling Company to be in the helm to create a
sustainable community. You have heard many testimonies this evening here today, and I hope
that you approve the project. You have worked long and hard on previous deliberations and it's
time to take a vote and vote yes. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Marilyn. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony. Next, we have Richard Michaels followed by
Paul Hugel.
MR. MICHAELS: Aloha, Mr. Chairman. Good evening, Members of the Committee. I want to talk to
you this evening about something that hasn't really been dealt with very much. One or two
people just referred to it briefly, but it's inexorably linked to the decision you're making about
Makena Resort and that's emergency evacuation from South Maui. We can no longer ignore that
this will never happen. We saw in this morning's paper that a fast moving fire on Lanai caused
the evacuation of the Manele Bay Hotel yesterday. Hundreds of people were gathered on the
beach to escape the flames and waiting for boats from Expedition and Trilogy to pick them up.
They got lucky because the wind changed and the crisis passed. What's going to happen when,
and I say when, not if, there is demand for an emergency evacuation from South Maui? First of
all, let's examine what the process is in getting out of South Maui. I live in Makena . . .(change
tape, start 8A). . . everybody here who lives in South Maui knows that when there's an accident
on the Piilani Highway, traffic stops. The only way out going north is Piilani Highway or South
Kihei Road. If you try and get off the highway and go to South Kihei Road, you fmd that
everybody else has done that too and you can't, you just can't move. And that's when only a
fraction of the population is in a car. Because most people are at work or they're with the
visitors or at the beach or at the hotels or, or people are just home. Only a fraction of people are
in cars. What is going to happen when everybody has to evacuate in the case of a fast-moving
fire or an oncoming tsunami? This is a problem we've talked about before, but we've never
done anything about. I testified about this at Wailea 670, but the Council didn't take any action
or didn't try to do anything about it. So what can you do about it? What can this Council do
when you're talking about creating other routes out of South Maui? Where can we find money?
These are State and Federal ideas. What can this Council do? Well, we have a unique
opportunity because two months from now we're going to have a new President who was born in
Hawaii, who is constantly talking about the economy being his number one focus. And how is
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he going to deal with the economy? Infrastructure. He wants to make a lot of money available
for infrastructure. At the same time, our Senator Inouye has just become the Chairman of the
Senate Appropriations Committee, where the money is. So what can we do? I would like to
suggest to this Council -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. MICHAELS: --that you consider hiring a person as a lobbyist, as you've done before for State
issues, a lobbyist to lobby the Federal government, our Congress person Mazie Hirono, and our
Senators, and see if perhaps as this money for infrastructure becomes available, that we can
possibly create some kind of evacuation roads and, and which, which road would be the, you
know, there are many, many possibilities. But one of the, ones that presents itself is the
extension of Piilani Highway which has always been planned. And now what's happened is
you've approved Wailea 670 with 1,400 extra units and now you're considering 1,100 more in
Makena. The situation gets worse and worse. So I'd like to suggest that you consider getting
into, take up this, this issue because eventually it's going to happen -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. MICHAELS: --and this could be a tragedy of huge proportions. I even have a suggestion as who
you might hire and that's your esteemed outgoing Chair Mr. Hokama. If he's available and
willing to do it, why not? Maybe he can get some money for Maui County. The other thing I
want to just bring up briefly is that in one of the conditions in the old package when Seibu was
seeking the zoning was an agreement to create construction roads above Wailea, above the
Wailea golf courses, actually the same extension of Piilani that we're talking about, at least
cutting a dirt road so that all this construction traffic and all these trucks aren't going through
Wailea and Makena Alanui, because that's the only way they can get to the property right now.
So, I had heard that there was possibly a change in that or that Mr. Dowling might have sought to
not have to live up to that agreement...
MS. NAKATA: Five minutes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Sorry. Mr. Michaels, I'm going to have to -MR. MICHAELS: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: --cut off you there. But we'll, I'm sure during the deliberation phase we can make
some -MR. MICHAELS: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: --inquiries of Mr. Dowling.
MR. MICHAELS: Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, any questions for Mr. Michaels? Seeing none, thank you very
much for your testimony.
MR. MICHAELS: Thanks.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, Paul Hugel followed by Clare Apana.
MR. HUGEL: Aloha, Council Member -CHAIR MOLINA: Aloha.
MR. HUGEL: --Council Members. I'd like to start off with just a brief prayer, if that's all right, 'cause
there's been a little tension here and I'm a little shaken up myself. ...(Prayer)... My name is
Paul Hugel. To some people, a very less than a handful, I'm known as Kamana' opono(?). I've
been asking questions over the years. In 1992, I was asked a question, what is your vision for
Maui? A group of technology people came together and what came was that my vision for Maui
was to establish it as the environmental science center of the world. Now technology can be
used to kill people more effectively or save lives more effectively. So technology by itself is not
good or bad, it's how we use technology. When the Dalai Lama came here recently, I videotaped
and broadcast worldwide. And part of an excerpt of his speech was effort with vision, patience
and determination, a more holistic view. With that I believe we can resolve many crises. That is
my fundamental belief. And again that was by the 14 th Dalai Lama of Tibet when he came to
visit here on Maui. Now again these questions I've been asking to people on Maui, what do we,
what are the important questions to ask yourself? How can we protect our unique island, our
lifestyle, our environment? Some of the answers that I've gotten from people, such as Jo Anne
Johnson, I believe, is we need to look seven generations into the future when we. . . sanctify these
projects now when we give them our approval. How will it affect seven generations into the
future? What has happened for the last seven generations to now, the growth? How is
everything going to be affected in the future? So I've been thinking about these projects over the
years in Makena and I've been giving testimony, and I believe with one of the projects that came
through I had the idea that of, well, maybe it would be a good idea to have an ocean water
desalinization plant. I know that you can scale these things from a small boat with -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. HUGEL: --you know, two people on a yacht with ocean desalinization up to whatever you need.
So again, I'm not advocating something that's horrendously out of proportion and inappropriate.
But I had suggested that possibly that would be a good first step before any development is
approved, first step. So then I thought about, well, do we need more people with these gated
communities? And again, what came to mind is Gettysburg. I think it's in West Virginia. They
have a cultural colonial town that's built in which basically people can go back into time and
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learn what it was like being in colonial America. What if, I asked another question, would it be
possible to preserve the native American, the native Hawaiian culture with an enterprise?
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. HUGEL: Perhaps I'm speaking to Mr. Everett Dowling here. Would you be able to create
revenue, substantial revenue, provide something of cultural significance, help establish a large
number of jobs, create an alliance perhaps with the University of Hawaii, the Maui Sustainable
Living Institute and other organizations, perhaps get government grants and have a working
Hawaiian village where kahus can then teach-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Hugel, I'm going to have to end your testimony. But I'm sure that's
something--I'm sure Mr. Dowling's in the gallery--he can take that under consideration. Okay.
Members-MR. HUGEL: So, I thank you all very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Hang on. Committee Members, any questions for Mr. Hugel? If not, thank
you very much for your testimony, sir. Next to testify, we have Clare Apana followed by
Zandra Souza-Amaral.
MS. APANA: Good evening, Council Members, Chair. I was just here yesterday testifying to try to
protect an old neighborhood where the great wall of Palama went up. And testimony I've heard
here today really concerns me. I didn't know that Mr. Dowling had so many projects that were
ready to go but are not going. Because if he's the great guy that he sounds like, I think he would
be doing it for the people, and I'm really scared that a project this big he may not be able to
finish. So I'm here in support of you to really make this project tight so that in the event that
Mr. Dowling is not able to finish it and it gets passed on, we don't end up with something like
the Palama Street wall when the next developer comes in. I think it's a real possibility. I, I, it
really scared me to hear the person testify and say the projects that were on hold now and that
there was no work going on in some of these places. And I feel so terrible that you can't count
on anything in these days. I actually want to tell you about, I want to read the, the Code, from
the Code. This is 19.510.9, "Preliminary archeological and historical data and comments from
the Department of Land and Natural Resources and Office of Hawaiian Affairs of the State, and
if applicable, a preservation and mitigation plan which as been reviewed and approved by the
Department of Land and Natural Resources and Office of Hawaiian Affairs of the State". We
went to look for the AIS [sic] for this project and did not fmd a completed up-to-date one. We
didn't find one that looked over the whole project, and there was no reviewed
preservation/mitigation plan approved there in the records. And so I would ask if, if it, you have
it in your packet? I mean I would really love to see it. This is just something that I feel very
strongly about preserving our cultural sites and our culture as much as we can. And having those
well documented is going to be really key to preserving them. So if you have them in your
packet already, I would really love to see them, and I would encourage you, if not, to be sure that
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you have a comprehensive, up-to—date, and complete plan Because those sites are important to
our history and to our people, and they really need to be documented well.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. APANA: And I thank you very much for your time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Apana. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Clare.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Hannah Bernard, excuse me, I'm sorry. Zandra Souza-Amaral followed by Hannah
Bernard.
MS. SOUZA-AMARAL: Aloha auinala
ko'u mau, hoa aloha. Good evening, my friends. My
name is Zandra Souza-Amaral, and I stand before this humble body and thank you for your
support of the Makena Resort project. As I listen to my fellow brothers and sisters giving
testimony, and truly we are, speaking to the young ones out there who have such passions about
the land that their ancestors grew up with. And myself, someone from the year of 1952 who
played and camped, hunted with the Lu'uwai's in Makena. I hold that land very dear for me, to
me, and that is why, envision this, my brothers and sisters, rather than having a project that is
broken up into many developers, into many pieces, I lived through that type of development and
it does not work. A holistic approach works much better. Everett Dowling is a man who is a part
of this community, who has proven himself to us. When we fought for a school in Kihei, could
not give, he built and we've got that. But that's not what this is all about. We're not going to
build this project because Everett Dowling's a good guy. We are not going to build this project
because I want it or you want it. We're going to build it because this is what is best for the
community. My brothers and sisters, these are some of the concerns I heard as your humble
testimonies were given. My brothers and sisters, I must tell you Makena will be developed.
Dowling and his partners will be challenged by their banks, and as a real estate broker I can tell
you, the banks will come to him and say you know what, Mr. Dowling, the money that we have
to loan you that doesn't match up is no longer, the property is no longer of value because value
property is dropping, we are going to force these individuals to piecemeal this project and sell it
out to outside developers. So, brothers and sisters, get this clear, please. It will be developed.
The Federal government, the Constitution of the United States of America guarantees that all of
you and Mr. Dowling, owners of land have the right to develop that land to its fullest and most
beneficial potential, which mean it's going to be done. Archeological sites. I heard Na Kupuna,
Kimokeo, and Uncle Eddie Lindsey, three groups that I hold very dear to my heart, and I do
know that Everett Dowling has gone over and beyond with the projects that is there now in
taking care of archeological sites. And I know with Na Kupuna, Kimokeo and Uncle Eddie
Lindsey by his side, he will take more than good care of the archeological sites. The water, I do
know as a broker that there are 12 wells out there -- 141 -
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MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. SOUZA-AMARAL: --and I know that he is wanting to put in a desalinization plant. Gated
communities. Gated communities today are put there because crimes, and it happens in my
community and yours. Beaches, the beaches will not be developed, they are developing mauka.
In closing, in closing, my friends, Mike, Danny, Michelle, Gladys, Jo Anne, Bill, Riki, Joe, and
my dear, dear cousin Mr. Victorino, I humbly ask you for your consideration in passing this
sustainable community plan out of this Committee and back to the full Council. And there, my
brothers and sisters, public review and testimony can continue. But tonight at least I ask you,
move this out of your Committee, at least put it through the full Council.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. SOUZA-AMARAL: And I say this humbly, and I thank all of you for, for being here. Mahalo.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Amaral. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you for your testimony. We have Hannah Bernard followed by Everett Dowling.
MS. BERNARD: Aloha kakou. You folks are my heroes. Thank you so much for hanging out tonight
and for all of you in the audience, look at this, I mean this is phenomenal. It's 7:30 at night,
weeknight, we all gotta work again tomorrow. Mahalo for caring enough to be here and showing
us the respect, your community, to be here tonight. And for all of you who testified for the first
time, mahalo for caring enough to show up. I am testifying on behalf of Hawaii Wildlife Fund
against this development and any large development past Pu'u Olai going towards the
Ahihi-Kinau NAR. I'm against developing a large scale development because the water
resources of Maui, the nearshore resources, the nesting habitat for the critically endangered
Hawksbill Sea Turtle, the 'ea, the honu' ea, and the natural reserve at Ahihi-Kinau would all be
compromised if this development or any major development is approved south of Pu'u Olai. In
fact, current and proposed development in this area have been identified and the top five threats
to this NAR, to this natural area reserve. This natural area reserve that was established in 1973
partly because of proposed development to this area back then because it is so unique and
special, it is the only one in the State that has both land and oceanic components. It also allows
for culturally-based subsistence level take by the lineal descendents of this ahupua' a from the
nearshore environment. Therefore, this NAR in particular is rooted in the balance of the host
culture and the natural perpetuation of this native ecosystem. This NAR will be threatened by
any development major this size past Pu'u Olai. I have three pages of testimony that I've
submitted already via email, so you have copies, I take it. Plus, I have Department of Land and
Natural Resources' handout that shows the correlation with injection wells and the algae blooms,
and the degradation and destruction of our reefs on Maui just because of us, just because. . .only
because of us. It's, it's just something that we can do something about, though. Our injection
wells are leaking into our nearshore environment. We can't have any more injection wells. We
can't have necessarily desalination plants. We need to examine this very closely because of the
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brine that will be produced. And although I'm very supportive of the developer proposing an
alternative to using Iao Valley water or tapping this aquifer, which is good, good that he's trying
to do something different, desal has its own whole suite of potential problems that need to be
evaluated. We can't just approve it. We must really evaluate it. But there's no water that should
be permitted to flow in that desert, that arid environment, that a' a lava, that place that the ancient
Hawaiians lived in without altering. That's why it's a NAR, a natural area reserve, because of
the cultural, archeological, geological, and natural components of that place.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. BERNARD: And, as I said, it was identified through a strategic planning process by the managers
of that area and a number of community members. One of the top four threats is development to
that place. So, I have a lot of background information about why. I'd like to just offer for
30 seconds of any questions about the, the nesting habitat. I know you heard about the, the honu,
the green sea turtles, they're doing great, yes. It's the Hawksbill that nests on, on Oneloa, on Big
Beach. That species is critically endangered. If you have any questions about those resources in
that area that are so precious that they're being held in trust for future generations, that will
change, they'll be totally impacted and changed if we develop that area. If you have questions,
I'd just like to save 30 seconds of my testimony for any questions about that. Mahalo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Hannah. Committee Members, any questions for
Ms. Bernard? Seeing none, thank you. And we appreciate your expertise on nesting habits on
turtles as well. Thank you. Okay, Members. Thank you for your testimony.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: We have Everett Dowling, and he's the last person to have signed up for testimony
this evening. Mr. Dowling.
MR. DOWLING: Chair Molina and Council Members, thank you for, and public, thank you for
hanging in here so long and working, working so late. The. . .I just wanted to clarify a few
things that were said today, because I don't want people leaving here with the wrong impression.
There was some statements made today that were incorrect and I want to, want to highlight those
statements. One testifier mentioned that we were going to be building on Big Beach. As most of
us know in this room, Big Beach is a State park. Big Beach is not Makena Resort's property.
Makena Resort doesn't own any property adjacent or contiguous to Big Beach. Our closest
property to Big Beach is across Makena Alanui Road. So there are, we have no condos planned
for Big Beach and it would be impossible for anyone else to have condos planned for Big Beach.
There was a comment made that we bulldozed a fishing shrine at Maluaka site. That fishing
shrine is there. We did not bulldoze the fishing shrine. I've heard on the radio, I've read in the
newspaper, and I've heard people say here that we're building a shopping mall in Makena.
Seibu as owners, the prior owners of Makena had no plans for a shopping mall, they had no plans
for a shopping center. We've never even considered a shopping mall or shopping center, it'd be
the last thing we'd want to do. So that's just, that's just factually incorrect. I heard that there
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were plans that we were going to build, building a second hotel in Makena. The prior owners
had no plans for a second hotel in Makena, we have no plans for a second hotel in Makena.
That's just factually incorrect. The, there was a suggestion that this project is being fast tracked.
This project has been before the County Council for nine years. So if this fast tracked, I'd hate
to see slow tracked.
AUDIENCE: . . . (chuckle).. .
MR. DOWLING: The, there was a suggestion that we have projects that were not under construction
on. Every single one of our projects, we're either under construction on or we're waiting for
permits from the County of Maui. We don't have one project that falls outside of those two
areas. We're either under construction or we're waiting for the County to give us permits. And
some, and some of those projects we've been waiting for the County to give us permits for
almost two years, building permits is what I'm referring to. The, there was a statement that we
closed Makena Landing. We did not close Makena Landing. Makena Landing, we maintain it,
our housekeepers keep the restrooms clean, our landscapers do the landscaping, we maintain the
parking lot, we maintain the security. What we did stop was commercial activities from Makena
Landing. The. . .it's open to the public, it's open to visitors. But people can't come onto our
property that we maintain, that we get sued if somebody, if a commercial operator, one of their
clients gets hurt and run their business on our property. The. . .there was a suggestion that we're
going to be doing time--I don't think this was actually here, I think this was, this one was
outside--that we were going to convert the Prince Hotel to timeshare. The, I don't like timeshare,
we are prohibiting timeshare. The. . .there was a suggestion that, someone said that runoff,
waters running off our property across from Makena Landing that's under construction into the
ocean. That property under construction across from Makena Landing is not our property.
The. . .I don't know for a fact that -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. DOWLING: --water's running off that property or not, but it is not our property, it is not our
construction. We have nothing to do with that property. The. . .there was suggestion that we
brought in a lot of fill at Maluaka. Maluaka was a net export site. We did not bring any fill into
Maluaka. The end of Maluaka export didn't leave Makena, because we didn't want the tractors
to be going down Makena Alanui or Wailea Alanui. We kept it in Makena and that's the benefit
of owning 1,800 acres, you can lose some dirt. The. . .so and lastly, I'm here the, we're prepared
to accept the 41 conditions. We're not changing any of the conditions. The request that you
approve the--actually, the unilateral is already approved. It was passed by a prior, prior
Committee and we're, we're prepared to sign it. There's been suggestion that we've been sitting
on it for years. We bought this property 16 months ago. Fifteen months ago, we signed a
unilateral agreement. So I, I appreciate your hard work today. I appreciate the public testimony
on both sides.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
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MR. DOWLING: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Dowling.
AUDIENCE: . . .(applause). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, questions for Mr. Dowling? Hang on. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Dowling, for clearing those things up. If you
could clear up one other thing.
MR. DOWLING: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: . . .(cleared throat).. Excuse me. There was a comment made
that you intend to tear down the Maui Prince Hotel.
MR. DOWLING: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, it is correct?
MR. DOWLING: Yes. We'll be, we'll be -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are, are you-MR. DOWLING: --tearing that-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wait. Wait. Just let me, you know, extend on that.
MR. DOWLING: Let me, let me finish your question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. DOWLING: The. . .we will be tearing the Makena Prince down. We won't be tearing it down for,
for several years. We won't be tearing it down until we get other operations built within Makena
to absorb those employees. So in other words, Maluaka has a beach club for the owners. We'll
build that. We'll be shifting housekeeping, we'll be shifting food and beverage, we'll be shifting
outdoor services to that facility. When Maluaka is built, we will shift some landscapers from the
Prince Hotel to that facility. When we do the new golf course clubhouse, we'll be shifting food
and beverage people from the hotel to that facility. And as we develop these projects out we can
shift the employees away from the Prince Hotel to those projects, and that's why we're delaying
tearing down the hotel now. The hotel is not competitive. We're competing with, with newer
hotels, we're competing with hotels that have been renovated, and we just, we can't compete.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so then I also heard that there, in the presentation by your
consultant that even though you have another hotel site, you will not be building another hotel.
So my question to you is when you tear down the Maui Prince, do you intend to build one hotel
on these two site, hotel parcels that are somewhat contiguous?
MR. DOWLING: No. When we, when the Prince is demolished, we'll be, we'll rebuild rental, yeah,
transient rental accommodations on that property. The other hotel site, parcel H-2, the
community plan on that property is Hotel. Our intention is to develop that property and we'll be,
we'll be putting forth a proposal to you for an SMA on that property probably next year, early
next year. That's planned for 74, 74 condominiums.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So there will be no hotel at all left?
MR. DOWLING: And, of course, beach parking. No, but you see in order to, in order to develop
the--you're right, we're not going to be developing a hotel. That's correct. The, the. . .in order
to develop, in order to get an SMA permit you have, the zoning and community plan has to be
the same. All this rezoning discussion that's been going on for years, it's about bringing the land
use in Makena in conformance with the existing community plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. I understand that.
MR. DOWLING: So the existing community plan is Hotel. That's why we're seeking Hotel zoning on
that site, even though we're not planning on building a hotel.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But the Hotel zoning allows you to put transient units there?
MR. DOWLING: Which we are not-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Or transient condo units or whatever you want.
MR. DOWLING: We could but we're not, on that property we're not.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: On which property?
MR. DOWLING: On the property that we're rezoning to Hotel.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The H-2?
MR. DOWLING: H-2. We are not putting transient rental on there. We're not putting timeshare on
there, we're putting condominiums on there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Condominiums -MR. DOWLING: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that, that would be able to be-MR. DOWLING: No. No. The CC..., the CC&Rs -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, you're going to be putting a covenant? Okay.
MR. DOWLING: --the CC&Rs prohibit that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. DOWLING The only place we want transient rentals, not timeshare, the only place we want
visitors to be able to stay within Makena is the existing Makena Prince Hotel property.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. DOWLING: The Maluaka, which is Hotel zoned -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. DOWLING: --we have in the CC&Rs we prohibit timeshare, we prohibit short-term rental. The
owners of the properties can't rent them out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Okay. So no more hotel in Makena.
MR. DOWLING: No. No. That's not what I said. I said we're going to be demolishing the existing
Prince Hotel and redeveloping it and that's where the transient vacation, I mean that's where the
hotel will be.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you said they're going to be condos. That's not the same as
a hotel.
MR. DOWLING: No. H-2 is going to be condos. Okay. H-2 is going to be condos, 74 condominiums.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you said where the Seibu hotel is you're going to tear that
down -MR. DOWLING: We're going to tear that down.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and make condos that are transient.
MR. DOWLING: There we're going to make condos and a hotel that-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh. And a hotel?
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MR. DOWLING: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You didn't say that.
MR. DOWLING: --where you can rent it there, that's the only property-CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Mr., Mr. Dowling and Member Anderson, I'll tell you what. Let's
continue this conversation tomorrow so we can add, you know, more clarity for everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: I think some good points are being brought up.
MR. DOWLING: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Do you have any other questions, Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. I'm just glad that -CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --he had the opportunity to clear this up for us because-MR. DOWLING: Thanks for asking the question. I appreciate it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I think it's helpful going in to know as much as we
. . .(change tape, start 8B). . . tomorrow.
CHAIR MOLINA: It, it's late.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know it's late and, but I just want a few more clarification, few
more points clarified so that everybody walks out of here at least in one mindset. There have
been a couple of testifiers, Mr. Dowling, that has stated their concern with injection wells,
Hannah Bernard and someone else earlier that, that injection wells was part of this project. But
if I'm correct in remembering how this project is being presented, all your wastewater will be
used for the golf course, landscaping, et cetera, et cetera? Is that correct?
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MR. DOWLING: That, that's absolutely correct and that's what happens. Right now we've got an
existing, we've got, we've got the most advanced wastewater treatment plant on the island of
Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. DOWLING: The. . .it's overkill for, for our, for our use of it. The. . .overtime demand will
increase. As we, as we develop properties there'll be more wastewater, there'll be more effluent.
As once there's more effluent, will lessen our demand to use the existing brackish wells. We
have no injection wells now and we'll never be injecting effluent. My concern, as owner of
Makena, we've got 1,100 feet of beach, we've got 1,800 acres and 1,100 feet of beach, and
everything that happens in South Maui ends up, given the currents, ends up right in front of
Makena.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. DOWLING: And that's why Makena Resort is paying for the pump station at the Kihei Boat
launch. Because right now when those boats come in, you know, locals out fishing or the scuba
companies, if they use their head on the way back in, they dump their head. . .the. . .and, and all
that crap ends up right in front of the Makena Hotel.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Which I think was brought up by couple other testifiers. And
thank you for that clarification. The next thing I wanted to clarify--and I'm sorry, Mr. Chair, I
know everybody's tired, but I really want to get this out, you know. There. . .one testifier said,
and this was Mr. Michaels--I go exactly who has said this--suggested or said that you were not
going to make or not going to live with that condition that had that construction road built in the
back parallel with Piilani. I think that's what he had said. And I apologize if I'm incorrect. But
anyhow, a construction road so that a lot of construction traffic would not travel on Alanui and
Makena Road. Is, are you doing away with that condition or are you going to keep that
condition?
MR. DOWLING: We will accept all of the conditions from the 2004 unilateral agreement. I do want to
make a clarification on that one, though -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. DOWLING: --because I don't want to leave anyone with, with the wrong impression. The. . .we
do not own the property from Piilani Highway to Makena. The. . .when that condition was
originally discussed, it was anticipated that 670 would be coming after us and that that road
would be made a condition of 670; and, therefore, we could hook up at the, the southern border
of 670. We, that is not our property. The. . .from Piilani Highway to Makena we do not own.
We have no control, we have no options, we have no agreements. That is somebody else's
property. Within the property we own we'll certainly do a construction road. Matter of fact we
already, we've already basically done a construction road. The. . .in terms of keeping our
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construction traffic off of Makena Alanui, we, we will certainly do that. In terms of not bringing
in import and not exporting our dirt such as Maluaka, we'll certainly do that. And, and that's the
way we've conducted ourselves in Maluaka.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then the last thing I want clarification on--and thank
you, Mr. Chair, for allowing me this, this opportunity--was the, the statement that was made
earlier, and the reason I want to get this clarified is the homeless resource center for which you
had made a donation to, for which I'm a board member, for which I tried to recuse myself from,
from voting on, which I have no fmancial gain, never had, never will because I love doing,
helping people. But the reason that we were holding back on announcing it was twofold. One, it
hadn't been finalized and you did not want that out there until it was finalized. But, two, wasn't
it a condition for some of your affordable housing requirements?
MR. DOWLING: That's, that's correct. As a, before the Workforce Housing Bill was passed.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. DOWLING: . . .our support of that project was negotiated with the County's Human Services,
Department of Housing and Human Affairs [sic]. And we made a, I think it was a $720,000, I
could, I could be off on that number, but I believe it was $720,000 donation to that non-profit for
the purpose of building, helping to build a homeless center.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you for that clarification. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
And I do apologize to my colleagues for taking up some time like this so late.
CHAIR MOLINA: No apologies necessary, Mr. Victorino. Committee Secretary, do we have any
additional signups, or any additional questions for Mr. Dowling before I excuse him'? If not,
thank you for your testimony, Mr. Dowling.
AUDIENCE: . . . (applause).. .
MS. FRIAS: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Okay, Members, we have no additional signups and seeing no one
approaching the bench for testimony, if there are no objections, the Chair will close public
testimony on Land Use Item 37.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, it is 7:45, Wednesday, November 19 th . The Chair is looking at
recessing this meeting until tomorrow morning, 9:00 a.m., 10:00 a.m., Members?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ten a.m.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten a.m.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. So ordered by the Committee. We shall recess this meeting until
10:00 a.m. tomorrow morning November 20, 2008, right here in the Council Chambers. This
meeting is in recess.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. . . (gavel).. .
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